NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

November 16, 2021
9:30 A.M.

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

Review and approval of minutes.

Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that
the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.

(ltems 3-22)

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line-item transfer for Emergency
Communications.

Fiscal Impact

. From/To || Acct No. (| Description || Amount |

[From:

[/0100-0581-004505 | [Software Maintenance [|$44,816.14 |

To:

|[0100-0581-003005 | [Office Furniture [$44,816.14 |

4,

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes,
position titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item
transfers.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3,
October 2021 Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure §
103.005.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Kenneth Mark Bell, aka
Mark, to the Florence ESD #7 board to fill the vacancy left by Amber Roberson. The
term is to commence immediately and continue until December 31, 2021, at which time
he will be reappointed.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Discuss and take appropriate action on appointing Judge Bill Gravell to the CAPCOG
General Assembly.

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding Resolution Approving the
issuance of a Tax-Exempt Loan by the Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities
Finance Corporation for the Benefit of Goodwill Industries of Central Texas to finance
or refinance the costs of certain facilities for Goodwill Industries of Central Texas in
compliance with Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code (Note: The proposed
resolution approving the bonds does not create any liability for Williamson County).

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding termination of
Professional Service Agreement for Physical Fitness Testing for the Williamson County
Sheriff's Office with Stanard & Associates, Inc. and authorize county judge to sign the
letter proving 30-day notice of termination.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying an Agreement between Williamson County
and Links Communications, Inc. for the Installation of new data outlets and cables in the Liberty Hill
Community Supervision & Corrections Division Modular Building. in the amount of
$11,879.00; exempting the procurement of such services from the competitive bidding requirements
pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Discretionary Exemption 262.024(a)(2) - an item necessary
to preserve the health and safety of the residents of Williamson County, and authorize the County Judge
to execute all associated documents.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the Interlocal Agreement for 9-1-1
Geographic Information System Database Management with the Capital Area Council
of Governments.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a lease with Sharp
Electronics Corps for one (1) copier for Williamson County Emergency Services, in the
amount of $189.37 per month for 48-months pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR-CP0-4433
lease and execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the approval authorizing an amendment to the
grant award from the Office of the Governor, Homeland Security Grant Program
(HSGP) for the Hazmat Response Trailer Replacement Project pending FEMA
approval.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Williamson County
EMS Provider License Declaration Form and authorizing the County Judge to sign
same and any necessary related documents.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive sealed proposals for Standby Generators under RFP #22RFP41.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Professional Services
agreement with Diamond Surveyors for Land Surveying at West Portion of 21 Acre
Tract SH 29 at RM 1869 in the not-to-exceed amount of $3,210.00 and authorizing the
execution of the agreement.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Chasco Constructors, Change Order
No. 1 for the Williamson County Liberty Hill CSCD Project (418P). This change order
is for the demolition of the non-habitable Liberty Hill Adult Probation office. Funding for
this project will be under CARES funds 418P.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #21IFB21 County
Road Seal Coat FY 22 Improvements to D.l.J. Construction, Inc. in an amount not to
exceed $1,052,638.20, and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for Herbicides under IFB #22IFB43.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the
Tomecek subdivision — Precinct 4.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa
Rita Ranch Phase 3 Section 3 subdivision — Precinct 3.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa
Rita Ranch Phase 4 Section 2 subdivision — Precinct 3.

REGULAR AGENDA

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on recognizing staff from the District
Attorney, County Attorney, and Technology Services for winning two national awards
for the County's Digital Evidence Management System (DEMS).

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on recognizing November 15-19 as
Geography Awareness Week and November 17 as Geographic Information Systems
(GIS) Day.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to include, but not be limited to hearing an update on the
Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget priorities in relation to remaining
CARES Act funds and American Rescue Plan funding, as well as possible future
funding and allocation plans in relation to CARES Act and American Rescue Plan
funds.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve projects and budgets for the
remaining funds in the 2022 Capital Improvement Program, Long Range
Transportation (LTP), 2019 Road Bond, Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security (CARES) Act, the American Rescue Pan Act (ARPA) and the 2021 Tax
Anticipation Note (TAN).



27.

28.

29.

10:00 am Conduct public hearing relating to a request from Williamson County Pre-Trial Services to
convert Court Specialist PCN.0180 from one full time position into two part-time positions and discuss
(1) the reason for the position changes, including the public purpose that will be served by making the
change; and (2) the exact amount of the changes, the sources of any additional funds needed, and the
terms for distribution of the excess funds that effect and maintain the public purpose to be served by
making the payments.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on converting PCN.0180, Court
Specialist, into two part-time positions.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Williamson
County Pre-Trial Services.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description || Amount |

[From

[/0100.0591.001100 ||Full time Salaries |$36,371.92 |

To

[/0100.0591.001101 |[Part-time Salaries |/$36,371.92 |

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a 2013 Park Bond transfer
to move $8,725.48 from P474 (Expo Horse Stall Barn) to P475 (Expo East Concession
& Restrooms).

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approving the replacement service
agreement between Williamson County and Motorola Solutions, Inc. to provide the
replacement of an existing generator in the amount of $177,270.00 per the terms of
DIR Contract #DIR-TS0-4101 and authorizing the execution of this agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of
Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement with Simon Lakeline Mall for off duty contracting of
County Sheriff Deputies to be effective November 16, 2021.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an agreement between
Williamson County and Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc. to provide Exterior
Waterproofing Services for the Williamson County Tax Office in the amount of
$147,653.88 per the terms of Buy Board contract # 581-19 and execution of the
agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an agreement between
Williamson County and Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc. to provide labor, material,
and equipment to refresh the Williamson County Jail Parking Garage in the amount of
$235,090.66 per the terms of Buy Board contract #581-19.

Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.

Receive the November 2021 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint
Presentation.



37.

38.

39.

40.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #211FB23 Metal Beam
Guard Fence (MBGF) In Place to the lowest responsive bidder Southeast Highway
Guardrail and Attenuators, LLC.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on setting the date of December 7, 2021
at 10:00 AM to consider and take action on proposed amendments to the Williamson
County Subdivision Regulations pursuant to the authority of Chapter 232 of the Texas
Local Government Code and authorize publishing notice of same in the Williamson
County Sun.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Contract Amendment No. 4 to the
FM 3349 at US 79 contract between Williamson County and HDR Engineering, Inc.
relating to the 2019 Road Bond Program. Project: P332. Fund Source: Road Bonds.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations regarding
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)."

Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties

Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties

a) Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.

b) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243

c) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278

d) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.

e) Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop.

f)  Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.

g) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366.

h) Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.

i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.

j)  Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H

k) Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor.

[) Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at

m) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
n) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
o) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.



41.

42.

p) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A.

q) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.

r)  Discuss the acquisition of real property near Justice Center.

s) Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North
of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center

t) Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way

u) Discuss acquisition of drainage easement in relation to County Road 176

v) Discuss acquisition of right of way for Corridor E.
B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County

Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property

owned by the County

a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.

b) Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (Formerly occupied by WCCHD)

c) Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction

d) Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave.

e) Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas

f)  Discuss the sale of property located at 900 S Main St., Taylor, 76574
C. Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of
San Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1
D. Discuss the Cobb Cavern Conservation Easement Amendment and potential
acquisition.

Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:
1. Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.

Project Crystal
Project Winston
Project Solo
Project Stamp
Project Red Hot Chili Pepper
Project Nirvana
Project Sound Garden

9. Project Def Leopard
10. Project Flex Power
11.  Project Pearson Ranch
12. Project Orange
13. Project Fittipaldi

NGO R~WDN

Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential
attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Employee/personnel related matters

d) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the



governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

e) Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

g) Claim of Regina Wright.

h) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
i) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.; In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

j) Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

k) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

I) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.

m) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.

n) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

o) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff’'s Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.

p) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 — Jesse Gomez.

q) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.

r) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.

s) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.

t) Gary Haston - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01145.

u) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-480; Gloria Cowin, Individually and on behalf of the
Estate Of Patrick Dupre, v. Williamson County; In the United States District Court for
the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

v) Civil Action No. Civil Action No. 21-481; Marquina Gilliam-Hicks v. Sean Feldman,
In his individual capacity, and Williamson County; In the United States District Court
for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

w) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #450-2021-00854 - Donald L. Foiles, Jr.

x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-615; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County; In the United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

y) Jacqueline Robinson - EEOC Charge # 451-2021-01742.

z) Williamson County Landfill Operation Agreement Terms and Conditions.

aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00834; Skylar Leal vs Williamson County and Lorenzo
Hernandez; In The United States District Court for the Western District of Texas,
Austin Division.



43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

Discuss security assessments or deployments relating to information resources
technology; network security information as described by Texas Gov’'t Code Section
2059.055(b); and/or (3) the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of
security personnel, critical infrastructure, or security devices. (Executive Session as
per Texas Gov't. Code § 551.089).

Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters).

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation,
settlement matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Employee/personnel related matters

d) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

e) Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

g) Claim of Regina Wright.

h) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
i) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.; In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

j) Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

k) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

I) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.

m) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.

n) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the



48.

49.

50.

Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

o) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff's Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.

p) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 — Jesse Gomez.

q) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.

r) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.

s) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.

t) Gary Haston - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01145.

u) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-480; Gloria Cowin, Individually and on behalf of the
Estate Of Patrick Dupre, v. Williamson County; In the United States District Court for
the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

v) Civil Action No. Civil Action No. 21-481; Marquina Gilliam-Hicks v. Sean Feldman,
In his individual capacity, and Williamson County; In the United States District Court
for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

w) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #450-2021-00854 - Donald L. Foiles, Jr.

x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-615; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County; In the United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

y) Jacqueline Robinson - EEOC Charge # 451-2021-01742.

z) Williamson County Landfill Operation Agreement Terms and Conditions.

aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00834; Skylar Leal vs Williamson County and Lorenzo
Hernandez; In The United States District Court for the Western District of Texas,
Austin Division.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews
of department heads and appointed officials.

Comments from Commissioners.

Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda ltem on a meeting’s Agenda. During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks
and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the
number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period, shall be limited to
ten (10) minutes. Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated among speakers
should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment Period. Please note
that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the
agenda.

Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge



This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 12th day
of November 2021 at 5:00 P.M. and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding
the scheduled time of said meeting.



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 3.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Emergency
Communications

Submitted By: Kelly Luna, Emergency Services Dept.
Department: 911 Communications
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line-item transfer for Emergency
Communications.

Background

We have been working with the Budget Office to find a solution to replace the chairs on the
Communications Floor. The current chairs are past lifecycle and with the confusion regarding
Capital Improvement Projects, versus the funding being in the operating budget, these were not
funded in FY22. Our newest Division Manager has analyzed what the previous Division
Manager submitted for the FY22 budget and has found some cost savings. Additionally, at the
time our budget was submitted it was undetermined if the Operating System upgrade would be
virtual or physical, which means we had to budget for the most expensive scenario (a physical
upgrade). The department will be utilizing the virtual upgrade, which will free up the funds
budgeted for the physical upgrade. The chairs will be purchased under a GSA contract (quote
attached) and are specifically designed for Communication Floors and 24/7/365 utilization. This
plan is fully supported by the Budget Office.

Additionally, we will be purchasing a locked cabinet for the new Compliance Evaluator position
so files with protected information can be securely stored.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description ||  Amount |

[From: [|0100-0581-004505 | [Software Maintenance ||$44,816.14 |

To: |(0100-0581-003005 | [Office Furniture |[$44,.816.14 |
Attachments

WCEC Chair Quote

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/10/2021 11:01 AM

Budget Office Sarah Crain 11/10/2021 11:29 AM

Form Started By: Kelly Luna Started On: 11/10/2021 10:29 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/10/2021






CONCEPT
SEATING

GOVERNMENT

3205 N 124th St
Brookfield, WI 53005

Contract #: GS-28F-0033S
Cage #: 492CO

Purchase Order

RMG102021

Contact
Michael Moody

Location
Willimason County

Address

911 Tracy Chambers Lane
City
Georgetown
State, Zip Code
TX 78626

Email Adress

michael.moody@uwilco.org

Phone Number
512-864-8234

Fax Number

Quote Proposal

info@conceptseatinggov.com

conceptseatinggov.com
PH:800-550-2298

Qty Description Cost Amount
10 3142r1 Black Staccato Fabric - C-Loop Arms - Standard Base $1,183.70 $11,837.00
10 3150HR Black Staccato Fabric - C-Loop Arms - Standard Base $1,244.92 $12,449.20
10 3152HR Black Staccato Fabric - C-Loop Arms - Standard Base $1,423.44 $14,234.40
10 Slipcovers for 3142r1 $91.00 $910.00
10 Slipcovers for 3150HR $82.60 $826.00
10 Slipcovers for 3152HR $91.00 $910.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
Subtotal of Chairs $41,166.60
FREIGHT
1 Freight which includes a Liftgate Truck for unloading $2,255.73 $2,255.73
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
Total Freight $2,255.73
COMMENTS: 4-6 week lead time from date order is received. Some assembly is required.
EUBTOTA $41,166.60
S&H $2,255.73
1. Payment Terms: New 30 Days to Approved Credit and Credit Card for ALL Orders Under $50.00
2. Freight Terms: Prepay & Add, F.O.B. Brookfield, WI unless otherwise noted. cc
3. Pric_es are held from 3_0 days of quo?e, then subject to change without prior notice.
g i:le;l;i:zo;zz:s:ﬁ]:i::;;:{s}?;f‘hupon strikes, accidents and other causes unavoidable or beyond our TOTAL $43,422.33

control.

6. Buyer agrees to promptly file claim for all goods damaged in transit.

7. There will be a 20% restocking chare on merchandise ordered but not accepted.
8. Delivery, set-up and freight charges will not be refunded.

Acceptance of Proposal: These prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby
accepted. | am authorized to order the equipment listed above with full understanding of payment.

Signature

PO#


mailto:info@conceptseatinggov.com
mailto:info@conceptseatinggov.com
mailto:michael.moody@wilco.org
mailto:info@conceptseatinggov.com

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Compensation ltems

Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position
titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount
Attachments

Merit Report

Merit LIT

Position Changes

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 11/10/2021 08:50 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/10/2021 10:59 AM

Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 11/10/2021 08:40 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/10/2021



Current Annual Lump |Pay Effective
Emp Annual Merit Merit |New Annual |sum |Proposal |[Date of
Organization Position Num Salary Amount % Salary Merit |Reason |Change
Building Maintenance Senior Project Manager.0243.001100. 14729 |$97,485.96 |$974.74 1.00 |[$98,460.70 - MERIT 26-Nov-21
COMM COURT - GRANTS Spec Court Prog Coordinator.1902.001100. [15057 ($49,731.50 |[$1,491.88 [3.00 [S$51,223.38 - |MERIT 26-Nov-21
Emergency Medical Services EMS Paramedic.0843.001100. 13063 |$44,055.84 |$881.11 2.00 |$44,936.94 - |MERIT 26-Nov-21
Purchasing Purchasing Agent.1215.001100. 15604 |$113,222.46 |$2,264.34 (2.00 |$115,486.80 - |MERIT 12-Nov-21




(TO) (FROM)
entity fund dept object dr cr
01 0100 0509 001100 974.74
01 0100 0509 001130 974.74
01 0382 0382 001100 328.21
01 0382 0382 001130 328.21
01 0100 0540 001100 881.11
01 0100 0540 002010 67.40
01 0100 0540 002020 142.56
01 0100 8004|001130 881.11
01 0100 8004|002010 67.40
01 0100 8004002020 142.56
01 0100 0494 001100 2,264.34
01 0100 0494 002010 173.22
01 0100 0494 002020 366.37
01 0100 8001|001130 2,264.34
01 0100 8001|002010 173.22
01 0100 8001|002020 366.37
01 0100 8001|001130 297.22
01 0100 8001|002010 22.74
01 0100 8001|002020 48.09
01 0100 0400 001100 297.22
01 0100 0400 002010 22.74
01 0100 0400 002020 48.09

5,566.00 5,566.00

Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901
Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901
Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901
Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901
Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901
Reversal of merit not given to PCN 1901



Current *New Earliest

Department Current Position Position Reduction |Increase to Oracle

Number and Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget to Position |[Position Effective

Name PCN |EEID |Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1043 [14974 |$37,995.31 |[$37,995.31 [$39,515.13 [$37,995.31 [$1,519.82 [N/A 1043 to PCN 1027 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1027 |N/A N/A N/A $37,995.31 [$39,515.13 N/A $1,519.82 |1043 to PCN 1027 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1105 [15696 [$37,995.31 |[$37,995.31 [$39,910.28 [$38,610.15 [$1,300.13 [N/A 1105 to PCN 1027 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1027 |N/A N/A N/A $39,515.13 |$40,815.26 N/A $1,300.13 1105 to PCN 1027 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1105 |15696 |$37,995.31 |[$37,995.31 [$38,610.15 [$38,437.86 [$172.29 N/A 1105 to PCN 1066 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1066 [N/A N/A N/A $40,495.10 |$40,667.39 |N/A $172.29 1105 to PCN 1066 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1045 |15740 |$37,995.31 |[$37,995.31 |[S40,708.48 |5$40,560.61 [$147.87 N/A 1045 to PCN 1066 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1066 |N/A N/A N/A $40,667.39 |540,815.26 N/A $147.87 1045 to PCN 1066 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1045 |15740 |$37,995.31 |[$37,995.31 [$40,560.61 [$38,500.57 [$2,060.04 [N/A 1045 to PCN 1071 11/26/2021




Current *New Earliest

Department Current Position Position Reduction |Increase to Oracle

Number and Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget to Position |[Position Effective

Name PCN |EEID |Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1071 |N/A N/A N/A $37,995.31 |$40,055.35 N/A $2,060.04 |1045 to PCN 1071 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1045 |15740 |$37,995.31 |$37,995.31 |$38,500.57 [$37,995.31 |$505.26 N/A 1045 to PCN 1131 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1131 |N/A N/A N/A $39,563.54 |$40,068.80 N/A $505.26 1045 to PCN 1131 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1028 |15828 |$48,879.99 |$48,879.99 [$54,080.00 |[$51,260.05 [$2,819.95 |[N/A 1028 to PCN 1122 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1122 [N/A N/A N/A $37,995.28 |$40,815.23 N/A $2,819.95 |1028to PCN 1122 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1028 |15828 |$48,879.99 |$48,879.99 |[$51,260.05 [$48,988.84 [$2,271.21 [N/A 1028 to PCN 1739 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1739 [N/A N/A N/A $38,006.75 |540,277.96 |N/A $2,271.21 |1028to PCN 1739 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1028 |15828 |$48,879.99 [$48,879.99 |548,988.84 |548,897.99 [$90.85 N/A 1028 to PCN 1123 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1123 [N/A N/A N/A $39,142.76  |$39,233.61 |N/A $90.85 1028 to PCN 1123 11/26/2021




Current *New Earliest

Department Current Position Position Reduction |Increase to Oracle

Number and Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget to Position |[Position Effective

Name PCN |EEID |Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 [15399 |$48,879.99 |[$48,879.99 [$59,659.45 [$59,122.16 [$537.29 N/A 1161 to PCN 1739 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1739 [N/A N/A N/A $40,227.96 |$40,765.25 N/A $537.29 1161 to PCN 1739 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 [15399 |$48,879.99 |[$48,879.99 [$59,122.16 [$56,302.21 [$2,819.95 [N/A 1161 to PCN 1068 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1068 |N/A N/A N/A $37,995.31 |$40,815.26 N/A $2,819.95 [1161 to PCN 1068 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 |15399 |$48,879.99 |$48,879.99 [$56,302.21 [$53,482.26 [$2,819.95 [N/A 1161 to PCN 1069 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1069 |N/A N/A N/A $37,995.31 |$40,815.26 N/A $2,819.95 |1161 to PCN 1069 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 |15399 |$48,879.99 [$48,879.99 [S53,482.26 |$52,984.11 [$498.15 N/A 1161 to PCN 1108 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1108 |N/A N/A N/A $40,317.11 |$40,815.26 N/A $498.15 1161 to PCN 1108 11/26/2021




Current *New Earliest

Department Current Position Position Reduction |Increase to Oracle

Number and Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget to Position |[Position Effective

Name PCN |EEID |Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 [15399 |$48,879.99 |[$48,879.99 [$52,984.11 [$51,197.33 [$1,786.78 [N/A 1161 to PCN 1097 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1097 |N/A N/A N/A $41,079.99 |$42,866.77 N/A $1,786.78 |1161 to PCN 1097 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 |15399 |$48,879.99 [$48,879.99 [$51,197.33 |$49,845.16 [$1,352.17 |N/A 1161 to PCN 1042 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1042 |N/A N/A N/A $41,514.60 |$42,866.77 N/A $1,352.17 |1161 to PCN 1042 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

573- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Grant 1161 |15399 |$48,879.99 |[$48,879.99 [$49,845.16 |$49,085.25 [$759.91 N/A 1161 to PCN 1071 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1071 |N/A N/A N/A $40,055.35 [$40,815.26 N/A $759.91 1161 to PCN 1071 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1114 |15798 |$37,995.31 [$37,995.31 |[S40,305.35 |$39,558.88 [$746.47 N/A 1114 to PCN 1131 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1131 [N/A N/A N/A $40,068.80 |$40,815.27 |N/A $746.47 1114 to PCN 1131 11/26/2021




Current *New Earliest

Department Current Position Position Reduction |Increase to Oracle

Number and Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget to Position |[Position Effective

Name PCN |EEID |Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1114 |15798 |$37,995.31 [$37,995.31 [$39,558.88 |$37,995.31 [$1,563.57 |N/A 1114 to PCN 1123 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1123 |N/A N/A N/A $39,223.61 |$40,787.18 N/A $1,563.57 |1114to PCN 1123 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1118 [N/A N/A N/A $43,161.47 |$43,133.39 |$28.08 N/A 1118 to PCN 1123 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate external

576- Juvenile hire as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

Services 1123 |N/A N/A N/A $40,787.18 |$40,815.26 N/A $28.08 1118 to PCN 1123 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate shift
transfer as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

540-EMS 0889 |N/A N/A N/A $59,977.75 |$58,251.08 |$1,726.67 |N/A 0889 to PCN 0878 11/26/2021
Reallocation of position budget to facilitate shift
transfer as allowed by policy. Surplus salary from PCN

540-EMS 0878 [N/A  [N/A N/A $55,410.93 |$57,137.60 [N/A $1,726.67 |0889 to PCN 0878 11/26/2021

*Amount may vary slightly due to Oracle rounding




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Justice of the Peace 3 OCTOBER 2021 Monthly Report

Submitted For:  Evelyn McLean Submitted By: Mary Alcala, J.P. Pct. #3
Department: J.P. Pct. #3

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3, October
2021 Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure § 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount

Attachments
October 2021 - CCP103

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/08/2021 02:06 PM
Form Started By: Mary Alcala Started On: 11/08/2021 10:06 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/08/2021



IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Evelyn
McLean, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3, Williamson County, who, on her oath, stated that
the attached report of money collected is a true and correct report for the month of
October, 2021.

.,

EVELYN McLEAN
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
PRECINCT THREE

On this yol ___ 2021, to certify which witness my hand and seal
of office.





















Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021
Kenneth Mark Bell ESD 7 Appointment

Submitted For:  Valerie Covey Submitted By: Debra
Babcock,
Commissioner
Pct. #3
Department: Commissioner Pct. #3

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Kenneth Mark Bell, aka Mark, to
the Florence ESD #7 board to fill the vacancy left by Amber Roberson. The term is to
commence immediately and continue until December 31, 2021, at which time he will be
reappointed.

Background

Mark Bell owns and runs two successful businesses in Williamson County. He has served in the
Texas State Guard since 2009 and has been an officer since 2010. He has been a member of
Cedar Park CERT since 2006 and completed the Citizen's Fire Academy. Mark served on the
Leander Planning and Zoning Commission from 2007 to 2010. He has owned property within
the ESD 7 boundaries for 8 years. Emergency services and response have always been of
great interest to Mark, and he continuously looks for ways to serve his community. He feels his
CERT, Texas State Guard and business experience will be helpful to the ESD board.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
Mark Bell Resume ESD 7

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/08/2021 03:37 PM
Form Started By: Debra Babcock Started On: 11/08/2021 02:45 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/08/2021



Mark Bell
PO Box 991
Cedar Park, TX 78630

(512) 583-0821 mbell@TxAggieEngineer.com

Education:
Texas A&M University, B.S. Telecommunications Engineering Technology 1998

Certifications:

Fortinet NSE 4, December 2019

EMC SE Accreditation (Technologies 2014), November 2014

EMC SE Accreditation (Converged Infrastructure VSPEX 2014), November 2014
EMC Sales Accreditation (File Solution: Consolidate and Protect 2014), November 2014
EMC Sales Accreditation (Cloud Solution: EMC Hybrid Cloud 2014), November 2014
EMC Sales Accreditation (Consolidate and Backup Recovery 2013), April 2013
VMware VCP5, January 2012

VMware VCP4, July 2010

Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer Messaging (Exchange 2003), October 2005
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (Windows 2003), July 2004

Cisco IP Telephony Operations Specialist, January 2004

Cisco IP Telephony Design Specialist, November 2002

Cisco IP Telephony Support Specialist, November 2002

Cisco Certified Internetwork Expert (#6550), December 2000

Professional Experience:

Jan 2004 — Present  Bell IT Services, Cedar Park, TX
President/Lead Engineer
Provided IT-related design and technical services for customers in various sized environments
Provided system and network monitoring and reporting services to customers
Designed cost-effective, flexible IT solutions utilizing products from major OEMs
Acted as trusted advisor to customers for critical business systems and processes
Provided physical and virtual server hosting services utilizing VMware vSphere
Focused on multi-site firewall implementation and management (ASA, FortiGate, FirePower,
Sonicwall)

Aug 2007 — Present  Whitestone Commercial Properties, Cedar Park, TX
Partner/Owner
e Managed commercial lease contracts
e Maintained property and tenant buildings
* Process lease payments and business expenses

Apr 2006 — Feb 2016 World Wide Technology, Austin, TX
Consulting Systems Engineer

e Worked with account managers to become trusted advisors to Department of Defense and Federal

civilian agency customers

e Supported up to two account managers at a time to provide internal technical assistance and provide

technical consultation during customer meetings
¢ Developed bills of materials and statements of work based on customer project requirements,
including estimating labor hours, specifying project tasks, and defining deliverables

e Worked with account teams from major OEM’s such as Cisco, EMC, HP, and NetApp as partners to

support our mutual customers
Jul 2005 — Apr 2006  Northrop Grumman, Austin, TX

Consulting Systems Engineer
= Provided design and product support for three sales representatives

continued on next page




Mark Bell, page 2

e Worked with internal resources to determine and plan service requirements for customer projects
o Worked with vendors to design appropriate and cost-effective solutions for customers

Apr 1999 —Jul 2005 NextiraOne (formerly Williams Communications Solutions), Houston and Austin, TX
Network Engineer V

e Provided pre- and post-sales support for sales force and field engineers
Designed, implemented and maintained Cisco AVVID and other IP telephony solutions
Designed, implemented and maintained IPSec-based VPN solutions using Cisco and Nortel
equipment
Designed and implemented multi-homed BGP networks for redundancy and load sharing
Recommended and implemented network design changes for internal and client networks

¢ Remotely supported multi-vendor customer networks containing a wide range of equipment

May 1998 — Apr 1999 Sprint Paranet, Houston, TX
Technical Analyst
» Provided pre- and post-sales consulting for clients
Designed migration plan for medium-sized LAN/WAN
Installed and maintained medium-sized LANs/WANs with Cisco routers (7513, 4500, 25xx, Catalyst
8500) and switches (Catalyst 5500, 5000, 2900)
e Designed and implemented ISDN-based dial-up solution (Cisco 3620, 1604)

Dec 1996 - Aug 1997 IXC Communications, Inc., Broadband Services Engineering, Austin, TX
Network Engineer Intern

Texas A&M University, College Station, TX
Dec 1997 — Apr 1998 Department of Civil Engineering,
SYSTEMS ANALYST
e |[nstalled and maintained network servers (Windows NT, Novell NetWare 3.1x, 4.1)
e Supervised departmental computer support staff
e Maintained user workstations and computer labs (approx. 400 workstations)
e Managed electronic information resources (WWW, FTP, e-mail)
L]
L]

Provided hardware and software procurement, installation and troubleshooting
Assisted campus CIS department with LAN troubleshooting

Dec 1995 - Dec 1996, Aug 1997 - Nov 1997 Department of Agricultural Economics,
COMPUTER OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR
e Installed and maintained network servers (UNIX, Windows NT)
e Designed and managed electronic information resources (WWW, FTP, e-mail)
e Provided hardware and software procurement, installation and troubleshooting
e Provided hardware and software training for department employees

Community Service

Cedar Park Community Emergency Response Team, 2006 — present

Cedar Park Citizen’s Fire Academy, 2006

Texas State Guard, 2009 — present. Joined as E4, promoted to O1 2010, currently O3
City of Leander Planning and Zoning Commission, 2007 - 2010. Chairman, 2008 - 2010.
City of Leander Comprehensive Plan Update Committee, 2007

City of Leander Parking Committee, 2009

Security Clearances

Secret (interim), 2005
Criminal Justice Information Services, current




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Discuss and take appropriate action on appointing Judge Bill Gravell to the CAPCOG General
Assembly

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Tammy Smith,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss and take appropriate action on appointing Judge Bill Gravell to the CAPCOG General
Assembly.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/10/2021 11:25 AM
Form Started By: Tammy Smith Started On: 11/10/2021 11:17 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/10/2021



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Resolution Tax Exempt Loan Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corp
Goodwill Industries

Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding Resolution Approving the issuance
of a Tax-Exempt Loan by the Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation
for the Benefit of Goodwill Industries of Central Texas to finance or refinance the costs of certain
facilities for Goodwill Industries of Central Texas in compliance with Section 147(f) of the
Internal Revenue Code (Note: The proposed resolution approving the bonds does not create
any liability for Williamson County).

Background

Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code provides that a private activity bond (which is what
these Bonds are considered) shall not be issued unless they have been approved by:(1) the
governmental unit which issued such bond, or on behalf of which such bond was issued,

and (2) generally, each governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the facility
financed by the proceeds of such bond is located.ltem (2) is where Williamson County comes
into this since Frost Bank will make a loan to Goodwill through the Greater Texas Cultural
Education Facilities Finance Corporation. A few of the properties being financed/refinanced by
Goodwill are located in Williamson County. Further, the approval must include a public hearing
following reasonable public notice of the bond issuance. This requirement is commonly known
as the "TEFRA requirement" because it was originally added to the Code by the Tax Equity and
Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA). The joint public hearing for each of Bastrop, Travis
and Williamson County will be held at 9:00 am on November 16 via teleconference (the Notice
of Public Hearing is part of the attachment and it was published on November 8 in the Austin
American Statesman). The bonds are not a liability of Williamson County.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
TEFRA Approval Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corp Goodwill Industries

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/10/2021 10:57 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 11/09/2021 07:43 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/10/2021






CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION

THE STATE OF TEXAS 8
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 8

I, the undersigned County Clerk of Williamson County, Texas, hereby certify as follows:

1. The Commissioners Court (the "Commissioners Court™) of Williamson County,
Texas, (the "County™) convened in regular meeting on November 16, 2021, at the regular meeting
place thereof, within said County, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and
members of said Commissioners Court, to wit:

Bill Gravell County Judge
Terry Cook Commissioner, Precinct 1
Cynthia Long Commissioner, Precinct 2
Valerie Covey Commissioner, Precinct 3
Russ Boles Commissioner, Precinct 4
and all of said persons were present except for , thus constituting a quorum.

Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at said meeting: a written
resolution, to wit:

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A TAX-EXEMPT LOAN BY THE
GREATER TEXAS CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION FOR THE BENEFIT OF GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF CENTRAL
TEXAS TO FINANCE OR REFINANCE THE COST OF CULTURAL FACILITIES
AND WITH RESPECT TO A PUBLIC HEARING

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Commissioners Court. It was then duly moved
and seconded that said resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with
it the adoption of said resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote:

Ayes: ; Noes: ; Abstentions:

2. A true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid resolution adopted at the meeting
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; said
resolution has been duly recorded in said Commissioners Court's minutes of said meeting; the
above and foregoing paragraph is a true, full and correct excerpt from said Commissioners Court's
minutes of said meeting pertaining to the adoption of said resolution; the persons named in the
above and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of
said Commissioners Court as indicated therein; each of the officers and members of said
Commissioners Court was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of
the date, hour, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that said resolution would be
introduced and considered for adoption at said meeting, and each of said officers and members
consented, in advance, to the holding of said meeting for such purpose; and said meeting was open
to the public as required by law; and public notice of the date, hour, place and subject of said
meeting was given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government
Code, as amended.



SIGNED AND SEALED this November __, 2021.

NANCY E. RISTER
County Clerk

(SEAL)

Vote of the Court:
Yes 0 Abstain
Judge Gravell
Comm. Cook
Comm. Long
Comm. Covey

Comm. Boles

(I I A I A B A
I I
(I I A I A B A



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A TAX-EXEMPT LOAN BY THE
GREATER TEXAS CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
FOR THE BENEFIT OF GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF CENTRAL TEXAS TO FINANCE OR
REFINANCE THE COST OF CULTURAL FACILITIES AND WITH RESPECT TO APUBLIC
HEARING

WHEREAS, the City of Arlington, Texas (the “City”), has, pursuant to Chapter 337 of the
Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the “Act”), approved and provided for the creation
of Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation (“Issuer”) as a non-stock, non-
profit corporation; and

WHEREAS, Issuer on behalf of the City, is empowered to issue its revenue notes to loan
or otherwise provide funds to a borrower to enable the borrower to acquire, construct, enlarge,
extend, repair, renovate, or otherwise improve a cultural facility or any facility incidental,
subordinate, or related to or appropriate in connection with a cultural facility, or for acquiring land
to be used for those purposes, or to create operating and debt service reserves for and to pay
issuance costs related to the note or other obligations, and to finance or refinance cultural facilities
to be used by a 501(c)(3) organization; and

WHEREAS, no public funds or credit of the City may be pledged to the payment of such
revenue note, and such revenue note shall be payable solely from amounts made available to Issuer
by the 501(c)(3) organization for which such note is issued; and

WHEREAS, Goodwill Industries of Central Texas (“Borrower”) has requested that Issuer
issue a tax-exempt loan or loans (the “Loan”) pursuant to the Act in a principal amount not to
exceed $45,000,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to Borrower to be used to (1) finance
and/or refinance certain costs of planning, permitting, acquiring, constructing, improving,
furnishing, and equipping cultural facilities for Goodwill located at (i) 2411 Lake Austin
Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78703, (ii) 916 West University Avenue, Georgetown, Texas 78626,
(iii) 677 University Boulevard, Round Rock, Texas 78665, (iv) 560 Highway 79 West, Building
B, Hutto, Texas 78634, (v) 9111 South 1st Street, Austin, Texas 78744, (vi) 1901 RR 620 South,
Lakeway, Texas 78734, (vii) 1701 FM 685, Pflugerville, Texas 78660, (viii) 7817 Clock Tower
Drive, Austin, Texas 78752, (ix) 107 Childers Drive, Bastrop, Texas 78602, (x) 9801 Brodie Lane,
Austin, Texas 78748, (xi) 1015 Norwood Park Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78753, and (xii) 6505
Burleson Road, Austin, Texas 78744 (collectively, the “Real Property Improvements™); (2) finance
certain costs of acquiring, improving and implementing Goodwill’s point of sale, hardware,
software and other technology systems used at its cultural facilities (together with the Real
Property Improvements, the “Project”); and (3) pay the costs of issuing the Note; and

WHEREAS the Project will be owned and operated by Borrower;

WHEREAS, the Loan will be issued pursuant to a Loan Agreement, by and among Issuer,
Borrower and a financial institution (“Lender”) (the “Loan Agreement”);




WHEREAS, the Loan will be a special limited obligation of Issuer payable solely from
loan repayments to be made by Borrower to Issuer and certain funds and/or accounts established
under the Loan Agreement;

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), requires that the Loan be approved by the “applicable elected representative” (the
“AER”) of the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the Project is located
after a public hearing following reasonable public notice;

WHEREAS, with respect to the Loan, the Commissioners Court of Williamson County,
Texas (the “"Commissioners Court”) is an AER;

WHEREAS, a public hearing with respect to the Loan was held on November 16, 2021
(the “Public Hearing”) by a hearing officer on behalf of the County (the “Hearing Officer”), notice
of such Public Hearing was published in the Austin American Statesman in the County not less
than 7 days before the day of such hearing;

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court desires to approve and ratify hereby the holding of
such Public Hearing by the Hearing Officer and the publishing of such notice; and

WHEREAS, the actions of Issuer with respect to the Project and the Loan (including the
issuance of the Loan and documents relating thereto) and the action of the Commissioners Court
with respect to the matters described herein will create no liability for the County, and are in the
best interest of the County, and the Commissioners Court desires to approve such actions;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS THAT:

1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Resolution are hereby
declared true and correct.

2. All actions taken by or on behalf of the County with respect to the appointment of
the Hearing Officer, the publishing of the notice of the Public Hearing and the conducting of such
Public Hearing are hereby authorized, approved and ratified.

3. The Public Hearing with respect to the Loan and the Project to be financed by the
Loan was held by the Hearing Officer -on the date and time set forth in the Notice of Public Hearing
attached as Schedule 1 to Exhibit A hereto. Notice of such Public Hearing was published in the
Austin American Statesman in the County not less than 7 days before the date of such public
hearing, as evidenced by the Affidavit of Publisher attached as Schedule 2 to Exhibit A hereto.
Such Notice included the date, time and place of the Public Hearing, the location of the Project,
the owner and operator of the Project, and the maximum aggregate principal amount of the Loan,
and is hereby approved. All comments from interested persons, if any, were taken at such public
hearing. The minutes of such hearing, attached as Schedule 3 to Exhibit A hereto, are hereby
approved.



4. For the purpose of satisfying the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code, the
Loan in an amount not to exceed $45,000,000 and the Project to be financed and refinanced with
proceeds of the Loan, all as described in the posted notice of Public Hearing presented to the
Commissioners Court, are hereby approved.

5. THE APPROVALS HEREIN GRANTED ARE FOR THE PURPOSES OF
SATISFYING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CODE AND THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
TEXAS, AND SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR
OTHER UNDERTAKING OF ANY KIND BY THE COUNTY IN RESPECT TO THE LOAN
OR THE PROJECT. THE LOAN SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE
COUNTY OR A PLEDGE OF ITS FAITH AND CREDIT, AND THE COUNTY SHALL NOT
BE OBLIGATED TO PAY THE LOAN OR THE INTEREST THEREON OR OTHERWISE
INCUR ANY LIABILITY IN RESPECT THEREOF.

6. The County Judge and County Clerk of the County and other officers or
representatives of the County are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such instruments,
certificates, or documents necessary or advisable to carry out the intent and purpose of this
resolution.

7. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and shall continue in
force and effect from the date hereof.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of November, 2021.

Vote of the Court:
Yes
Judge Gravell
Comm. Cook
Comm. Long
Comm. Covey
Comm. Boles

[ B 0 B A O
I I o
[ B 0 B A O



Exhibit A
to Resolution of Williamson County,
Texas

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER
REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING (INTERNAL REVENUE CODE §147(f))

[Attached]



CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER

REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING (INTERNAL REVENUE CODE § 147(f))

Re:

Tax-Exempt Loan (the “Loan”) to be issued by Greater Texas Cultural
Education Facilities Finance Corporation for the benefit of Goodwill Industries
of Central Texas, located in Bastrop, Travis and Williamson Counties
(collectively, the “County™).

I, the undersigned, do hereby make and execute this certificate for the benefit of all
persons interested in the issuance of the above-captioned Loan.

| hereby certify as follows:

1L

I am the duly appointed hearing officer for the public hearing which was held
in connection with the issuance of the Loan at the time and place indicated
in the Notice of Public Hearing attached as Schedule 1 hereto.

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Austin American Statesman
in Bastrop, Travis and Williamson Counties, Texas, as evidenced by the Affidavit
of Publisher attached as Schedule 2 hereto.

All persons (if any) appearing at the public hearing were given an opportunity
to comment on the proposed issuance of the Loan. No such persons appeared
or made comments except as set forth on Schedule 3 hereto.

After giving all interested persons an opportunity to appear and comment,
the public hearing was declared closed.

WITNESS MY HAND as of this 16th day of November, 2021.

Schedule 1 -
Schedule 2 -

Kz

Kevin Twining
Hearing Officer

Notice of Public Hearing
Affidavit of Posting of the Notice of Public Hearing.

Schedule 3 - Names and Comments of Persons Attending Public Hearing



Schedule 1

NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

GREATER TEXAS CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
TAX-EXEMPT MASTER INDENTURE NOTE
(GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF CENTRAL TEXAS)
SERIES 2021A

Notice is hereby given of a telephonic joint public hearing to be held in Bastrop, Travis and Williamson
Counties, Texas by the Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation (“Issuer”) and
Goodwill Industries of Central Texas, a Texas nonprofit corporation, and Goodwill Temporary Services,
Inc., a Texas nonprofit corporation (collectively, “Goodwill”), on November 16, 2021 at 9:00 a.m.
Interested parties may join the joint public hearing on the date and the time indicated above by dialing 1-
866 512-4865 (US Toll Free) and, when prompted, entering the participant passcode 646782+#.

The joint public hearing is regarding a plan of financing for the issuance of a Tax-Exempt Master Indenture
Note (the “Note”) to be issued by Issuer in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $45,000,000 to be
issued as a qualified 501(c)(3) bond under Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code™). The proceeds of the Note will be loaned by Issuer to Goodwill for the following purposes:

@ financing or refinancing of certain costs of planning, permitting, acquiring,
constructing, improving, furnishing, and equipping cultural facilities for Goodwill located
at (i) 2411 Lake Austin Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78703, (ii) 916 West University Avenue,
Georgetown, Texas 78626, (iii) 677 University Boulevard, Round Rock, Texas 78665,
(iv) 560 Highway 79 West, Building B, Hutto, Texas 78634, (v) 9111 South 1st Street,
Austin, Texas 78744, (vi) 1901 RR 620 South, Lakeway, Texas 78734, (vii) 1701 FM 685,
Pflugerville, Texas 78660, (viii) 7817 Clock Tower Drive, Austin, Texas 78752, (ix) 107
Childers Drive, Bastrop, Texas 78602, (x) 9801 Brodie Lane, Austin, Texas 78748,
(xi) 1015 Norwood Park Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78753, and (xii) 6505 Burleson Road,
Austin, Texas 78744 (collectively, the “Real Property Improvements”);

(2 financing certain costs of acquiring, improving and implementing Goodwill’s
point of sale, hardware, software and other technology systems used at its cultural facilities
(together with the Real Property Improvements, the “Project”); and

3 paying the costs of issuing the Note.

The Project will be owned and operated by Goodwill and used in an integrated operation of Goodwill. The
Note is not payable out of taxes and is secured by and payable solely from funds to be provided by Goodwill.

All interested parties are invited to telephonically attend such joint public hearing to express their views
with respect to the Note and the Project. Questions or requests for additional information may be directed
to Kevin Twining, Locke Lord LLP, 2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 2800, Dallas, TX 75201 (telephone: 214-
740-8688). Any interested persons unable to attend or participate in the joint public hearing may submit
their views in writing to Kevin Twining before the date scheduled for the joint public hearing.

This notice is being posted and the joint public hearing is to be held in satisfaction of the requirements of
Section 147(f) of the Code regarding the public approval prerequisite to the exemption from federal income
taxation of the interest on the Note.



Schedule 2

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared the person whose
name is subscribed below, who, having been duly sworn, upon oath said:
1. That this affiant is a duly authorized representative of the Austin American
Statesman.
2. That attached hereto is a true, full, and correct “NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC
HEARING” as same was published in the Austin American Statesman in Bastrop,

Travis and Williamson Counties on November___, 2021

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME on the __th day of , 2021.

Notary Public



NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

[Copy of Published Notice Attached Hereto]



11/8/21, 3:53 PM https://marketplaceadsonline.com/marketplace/txaus/advert/-NOTICE-OF-JOINT-PUBLIC-HEARING---GREATER-TEXAS-Notice...

Statesman

Our Call Center is available Monday-Friday, 8 a.m. - 5 p.m. at 512-445-4000 or email placeadhelp@statesman.com.
Search Classifieds Q

*
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING GREATER TEXAS CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION TAX-EXEMPT MASTER INDENTURE NOTE (GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF CENTRAL TEXAS)
SERIES 2021A Notice is hereby given of a telephonic joint public hearing to be held in Bastrop, Travis and
Williamson Counties, Texas by the Greater Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation ("Issuer") and
Goodwill Industries of Central Texas, a Texas nonprofit corporation, and Goodwill Temporary Services, Inc., a Texas
nonprofit corporation (collectively, "Goodwill"), on November 16, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. Interested parties may join the
joint public hearing on the date and the time indicated above by dialing 1-866 512-4865 (US Toll Free) and, when
prompted, entering the participant passcode 646782#. The joint public hearing is regarding a plan of financing for
the issuance of a Tax-Exempt Master Indenture Note (the "Note") to be issued by Issuer in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed $45,000,000 to be issued as a qualified 501(c)(3) bond under Section 145 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). The proceeds of the Note will be loaned by Issuer to Goodwill
for the following purposes: (1) financing or refinancing of certain costs of planning, permitting, acquiring,
constructing, improving, furnishing, and equipping cultural facilities for Goodwill located at (i) 2411 Lake Austin
Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78703, (ii) 916 West University Avenue, Georgetown, Texas 78626, (iii) 677 University
Boulevard, Round Rock, Texas 78665, (iv) 560 Highway 79 West, Building B, Hutto, Texas 78634, (v) 9111 South
1st Street, Austin, Texas 78744, (vi) 1901 RR 620 South, Lakeway, Texas 78734, (vii) 1701 FM 685, Pflugerville,
Texas 78660, (viii) 7817 Clock Tower Drive, Austin, Texas 78752, (ix) 107 Childers Drive, Bastrop, Texas 78602, (x)
9801 Brodie Lane, Austin, Texas 78748, (xi) 1015 Norwood Park Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78753, and (xii) 6505
Burleson Road, Austin, Texas 78744 (collectively, the "Real Property Improvements"); (2) financing certain costs of
acquiring, improving and implementing Goodwill's point of sale, hardware, software and other technology systems
used at its cultural facilities (together with the Real Property Improvements, the “Project"); and (3) paying the costs
of issuing the Note. The Project will be owned and operated by Goodwill and used in an integrated operation of
Goodwill. The Note is not payable out of taxes and is secured by and payable solely from funds to be provided by
Goodwill. All interested parties are invited to telephonically attend such joint public hearing to express their views
with respect to the Note and the Project. Questions or requests for additional information may be directed to Kevin
Twining, Locke Lord LLP, 2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 2800, Dallas, TX 75201 (telephone: 214-740-8688). Any
interested persons unable to attend or participate in the joint public hearing may submit their views in writing to
Kevin Twining before the date scheduled for the joint public hearing. This notice is being posted and the joint public
hearing is to be held in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code regarding the public approval
prerequisite to the exemption from federal income taxation of the interest on the Note. 11/8/21

https://marketplaceadsonline.com/marketplace/txaus/advert/-NOTICE-OF-JOINT-PUBLIC-HEARING---GREATER-TEXAS-Notices_311394# 1/2



Schedule 3

NAMES AND COMMENTS OF PERSONS ATTENDING PUBLIC HEARING

NONE

Name of Attendee Comment

1.




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Termination Notice - Stanard & Associates, Inc.

Submitted For:  Mike Gleason Submitted By: Julie Kraft, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding termination of Professional Service
Agreement for Physical Fitness Testing for the Williamson County Sheriff's Office with Stanard
& Associates, Inc. and authorize county judge to sign the letter proving 30-day notice of
termination.

Background

The contract with Stanard & Associates, Inc. to provide Physical Fitness Testing for the
Williamson County Sheriff's Office is recommended for non-renewal/ termination by the Sheriff's
Office for Convenience.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
Contract Termination - Stanard & Associates, Inc.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/09/2021 08:40 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kraft Started On: 11/09/2021 07:52 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/09/2021



OFFICE OF WILLIAMSON

COUNTY JUDGE
710 MAIN STREET, SUITE 200
GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626
(512) 943-1550 PHONE# (512) 943-1662 FAX

November 16, 2021

Stanard & Associates, Inc.
309 W. Washington St., Ste. 1000
Chicago, IL 60606

In re: Notice of New Sheriff’s Office Administration and Contract Non-
Renewal/Termination with Williamson County, Texas
(Your Invoice #SA000048719)

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be aware that a new sheriff was elected in Williamson County, Texas
and the new administration began on January 1, 2021. The prior administration had
a contract with your company for Physical Fitness Testing.

The new sheriff has not renewed this agreement and does not intend to do so.
Pursuant to Paragraph XI, the agreement may be terminated for convenience at any
time and states as follows:

This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of
either party, without future or prospective liability for
performance upon giving thirty (30) days written notice thereof.
In the event of termination, The County will only be liable for its
pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received.

Please note that Texas law mandates proper approvals where tax funds are
involved. It should also be noted that vendor agreements may be revisited as a matter
of public policy by future administrations regardless of what was agreed to in the
past. In other words, public policy prohibits “long term” contracts without an out
clause in that such agreements unconstitutionally “bind future administrations”—
Op. Tex. Att’y Gen. JM-908 (1988) (stating in relevant part that “[i]n the exercise

1



of its governmental or legislative powers, a board or governing body ... cannot enter
into a contract extending beyond its own term”).

Therefore, the purpose of this letter is to give you official notice that
Williamson County will not renew this agreement, and this contract will expire
effective at the end of business on December 15, 2021. Please update your records
accordingly.

Thank you for your prompt attention and assistance in this regard.

Sincerely,

Hon. Bill Gravell
Williamson County Judge

cc: Williamson County Auditor’s Office
Williamson County Sheriff’s Office

BG/me



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

Data Cabling by Links Communications for the Liberty Hill Community Supervision &
Corrections Division Modular Building

Submitted For:  Joy Simonton Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying an Agreement between Williamson County and Links
Communications, Inc. for the Installation of new data outlets and cables in the Liberty Hill Community
Supervision & Corrections Division Modular Building, in the amount of $11,879.00; exempting the
procurement of such services from the competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Texas Local Government
Code Discretionary Exemption 262.024(a)(2) - an item necessary to preserve the health and safety of the residents
of Williamson County, and authorize the County Judge to execute all associated documents.

Background

As a direct result of the COVID-19 Pandemic hardships on social structures and public services
in our community, an increased and immediate need has arisen to create capacity for the Adult
Probation program of Williamson County on the west side of the County. This agreement was
executed ahead of court approval due to being time critical.

To address this capacity need, the Liberty Hill Adult Probation modular building will be installed
to accommodate those individuals that have been assigned probation. This Agreement is for the
installation of necessary data outlets and cables in the modular building.

CARES Act funds shall be used for this project. The department point of contact is Chris Ball.
The budgeted, not-to-exceed amount is $ $11,879.00.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
Addendum and quote

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 11/04/2021 08:54 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/04/2021 08:57 AM

Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 11/01/2021 11:32 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/04/2021



THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR DATA OUTLETS AND CABLE
INSTALLATION AND RELATED WORK
(Modular Building Liberty Hill)
(Links Communications, Inc.)

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

THIS SERVICES CONTRACT (hereinafter “Contract™) is made and entered into by and
between Williamson County, Texas (hereinafter “The County™), a political subdivision of the
State of Texas, acting herein by and through its governing body. and Links Communications,
Inc.. (hereinafter “Service Provider™). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an
independent contractor, to assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the following
terms, conditions, and restrictions:

I

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor pursuant
to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service Provider expressly
acknowledges that he. she or it is not an employee of The County. The services include, but are
not limited to the following items in order to complete the project:

A. As described in the attached Statement of Work, dated October 19, 2021, which is
incorporated herein as if copied in full.

Should The County choose to add services in addition to those described in Exhibit “A”,
such additional services shall be described in a separate written amendment to this Contract wherein
the additional services shall be described and the parties shall set forth the amount of compensation
to be paid by The County for the additional services. Service Provider shall not begin any additional
services and The County shall not be obligated to pay for any additional services unless a written
amendment to this Contract has been signed by both parties.

I1.
Effective Date and Term: This contract shall be in full force and effect when signed by

all parties and will expire upon the completion of the services or when terminated pursuant to
paragraph X. below.




III.

: Service Provider will be compensated based on a
fixed sum for the specific project herein. The not-to-exceed amount under this agreement is
$11,879.00 for related goods and services. The not-to-exceed amount may only be revised by
an addendum or change order and must be approved by the Williamson County
Commissioners Court. Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the
Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1)
the date The County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the
service under the contract is completed: or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an
invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The
County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate
of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The County’s
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September | shall be
equal to the sum of one percent (1%): and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal
on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

IV

Insurance: Service Provider shall provide and maintain. until the services covered in this
Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum insurance coverage in the
minimum amounts as described below. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis by
companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Texas and rated A- or better by
A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable to The County and name The County as an additional
insured.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability
a. Worker's Compensation Statutory

b. Employer's Liability

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500.000 Policy Limit

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and contractual liability
insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following amounts:

COVERAGE PER PERSONPER OCCURRENCE

Comprehensive

General Liability $1.000,000 $1,000,000
(including premises,

completed operations

and contractual)

Aggregate policy limits: $2.,000,000



d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering owned, hired, leased
and non-owned vehicles):

COVERAGE PER PERSONPER OCCURRENCE

Bodily injury $1.000.000 $1.000,000

(including death)

Property damage $1,000.000 $1.000,000
Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with insurance
certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract.

V.

This Contract constitutes the entire
Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a written
instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated (as if' copied in full) into
this Contract include the following:

A. As described in the attached Statement of Work, dated October 19, 2021, which is
incorporated herein as if copied in full; and

B. Any required insurance certificates.

The County reserves the right and discretion (pursuant to public policy and Texas
Constitutional principles) to determine applicable provisions where there is any conflict between this
Contract and any of the above-referenced contract documents/exhibits or incorporated documents.

VL

It is understood and agreed that Service Provider shall not in
any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The County, nor shall Service Provider
hold himself out as an agent or official representative of The County unless expressly authorized
to do so by a majority of the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

VIIL.

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE
COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY'S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY. THE “INDEMNITEES™) AND
SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’
GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY,
OR DEATH, OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY
OTHER ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO HAVE
OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. SERVICE
PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY

3




WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT
NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT
BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, COMPENSATION. OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES,
WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE
COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES. AGENTS,
REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES"") FROM
AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’
FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR
THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR
OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE
FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS
OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

VIIIL.

¢ Nothing in this Contract will be deemed
to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the Williamson County
Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

IX.

Compliance with All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any and all

local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.
X.

Lermination: This Contract may be terminated at any time at the option of either party,
without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days written notice
thereof. In the event of termination, The County will only be liable for its pro rata share of services
rendered and goods actually received.

XL

¢ Venue of this Contract shall be Williamson County, Texas,
and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

XIIL

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality,
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this Contract and this Contract shall be
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.



XIII.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Contract.
have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and
records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this
Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Service
Provider agrees that The County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary
Service Provider facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in order to
conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall give Service
Provider reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XIV.

Confidentialityv: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a governmental setting
for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter any unauthorized areas or access
confidential information and he or she will not disclose any information to unauthorized third
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

XV,

Good Faith: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the performance of this
Contract.

XVIL.
No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this Contract.
XVIIL
: The presiding officer
of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this instrument by order duly

recorded may execute this Contract on behalf of The County.

WITNESS that this Contract shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution
below.

WILLIAMSON COUNTY: SERVICE PROVIDER:
Authorized Signature Authorized Si gnature

50@// Z:GM/F'V VP
Printed Name Printed Name

Date: , 20 Date: _ //-2- J2>) . 20&




Exhibit:

Statement of Work, dated October 19, 2021
and incorporated herein as if copied in full



COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

40225 Industrial Park Circle, Suite 104
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Phone: 512-930-5580
rlomax@linkscommunications.com

10-19-2021

Williamson county ITS
Inner loop
Georgetown TX

Modular Building Liberty Hill

Install 39 new data outlets with 2 cat6 plenum cables each per plan
Install 2 cat6 plenum cables for Wi-Fi
Install new rack and patch panels
Cables will be installed above ceiling and in existing conduits
Label and test cables

$11879.00



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 1.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021

CAPCOG ILA for GIS Data 2021

Submitted By: Richard Semple, Information Technology

Department: Information Technology

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the Interlocal Agreement for 9-1-1

Geographic Information System Database Management with the Capital Area Council of
Governments.

Background

This is the annual contract between Williamson County and CAPCOG (CAECD) for the delivery
of 9-1-1 Geographic Information Systems Data. It is the County's funding for 9-1-1 Database
and Addressing Programs in the Technology Services Department.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount

Attachments
GIS Contract FY22
Attachment A
Attachment B

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/09/2021 04:23 PM
Form Started By: Richard Semple Started On: 11/09/2021 03:31 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/09/2021



Capital Area Council of Governments Interlocal

Agreement for 9-1-1 Geographic Information

System Database Management

1. Parties and Purpose

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

The Capital Area Council of Governments ("CAPCOG”) is a regional planning commission and
political subdivision of the State of Texas organized and operating under the Texas Regional
Planning Act of 1965, as amended, chapter 391 of the Local Government Code. One of
CAPCOG’s functions includes the operation of the Capital Area Emergency Communications
District (“CAECD” or “the District”)a regional emergency communications district of the State
of Texas organized and operating under Chapter 772, Subchapter G of the Health and Safety
Code, as amended. On behalf of the District, CAPCOG desires to ensure the highest quality in
its 9-1-1 Geographic Information System (GIS) data in order to ensure the success of the
region’s transition to Next Generation 9-1-1 emergency communications service within the
District.

Williamson County (“PUBLIC AGENCY”) is a Texas County that has agreed to participate in
maintaining and updating the district’s 9-1-1 GIS database and exercises its authority under
Section 251.013 of the Texas Transportation Code to name public roads and assigning address
numbers to property located in unincorporated areas of the county.

This Interlocal Agreement (ILA) is entered into between CAPCOG and PUBLIC AGENCY under
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code in order to compensate the PUBLIC AGENCY for
the work required to maintain and update the district’s 9-1-1 GIS database.

For the purpose of carrying out CAPCOG’s duties and obligations under this agreement, the
parties understand and agree that references to CAPCOG includes its employees, officers,
directors, volunteers, agents (including the Capital Area Council of Governments — CAPCOG),
and their representatives, individually, officially, and collectively.

2. Goods and Services

2.1.

PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to carry out the scope of work in Attachment A in accordance with the
data requirements in Attachment B.

3. Cooperative Purchasing

3.1

3.2

CAPCOG may periodically identify opportunities to cooperatively purchase goods or services
for the 9-1-1 GIS data for participating organizations.

If PUBLIC AGENCY chooses to participate in a cooperative purchase of 9-1-1 GIS goods or
services organized by CAPCOG, PUBLIC AGENCY agrees that CAPCOG may deduct the cost of
PUBLIC AGENCY’s share of those goods or services from the contract price otherwise payable
to the PUBLIC AGENCY.

Page 1 of 6



4.

Effective Date and Term of Contract

4.1. This contract takes effect January 1, 2022, and terminates on September 30, 2022, unless
terminated earlier under Section 10.

Contract Price and Payment Terms

5.1. For work performed under this agreement, CAPCOG agrees to compensate PUBLIC AGENCY an
amount not to exceed $419,672.60.

5.2. PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to invoice CAPCOG as follows for work performed during these
quarters:

January 1, 2022 — March 31, 2022: $139,890.87, invoice due by close of business,
Wednesday, April 7, 2022;

April 1, 2022 — June 30, 2022: $139,890.87, invoice due by close of business, Thursday, July
8, 2021; and

July 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022: $139,890.86, invoice due by close of business,
Thursday, October 7, 2021.

Timely submission of invoices will be considered in CAPCOG’s evaluation of PUBLIC AGENCY’s
performance of this ILA, and CAPCOG reserves the right to reject any invoice submitted more
than 90 days after the end of each quarter.

5.3. PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to submit a performance report along with each invoice in accordance
with the scope of work in Attachment A. If CAPCOG determines that PUBLIC AGENCY has not
meet performance expectations described in Attachment A, CAPCOG will provide a written
explanation to PUBLIC AGENCY, and PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to provide, within five business
days, a comprehensive explanation of the performance deficiency and a plan for achieving
performance targets during the next quarter.

5.4. CAPCOG agrees to pay invoices within 30 days after receiving a correct invoice, after CAPCOG
determines that the PUBLIC AGENCY has fulfilled its obligations for the quarter.

5.5. CAPCOG reserves the right to reject in whole or part a quarterly invoice in part or in whole if
PUBLIC AGENCY has not adequately fulfilled its obligations under this ILA.

Compliance with Applicable Law and Policy
6.1. PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to comply with all applicable law and policy in carrying out this ILA.
Independent Contractor, Assignment, and Subcontracting

7.1. PUBLIC AGENCY is not an employee or agent of CAPCOG, but furnishes goods and services
under this ILA solely as an independent contractor.

7.2. PUBLIC AGENCY may not assign its rights or subcontract its duties without the written consent
of CAPCOG. An attempted assignment or subcontract in violation of this section is void.

Page 2 of 6



7.3.

7.4.

If CAPCOG consents to PUBLIC AGENCY’s subcontracting of duties, each subcontract is subject
to all of the terms and conditions of this ILA, and PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to furnish a copy of
this ILA to each subcontractor and furnish, upon request, a copy of PUBLIC AGENCY’s contract
with any subcontractor to CAPCOG.

If PUBLIC AGENCY wishes to assign the role of project representative to anyone other than a
PUBLIC AGENCY employee to serve as its project representative for this ILA, it shall provide
documentation to CAPCOG that the subcontractor consents to serve in this capacity.

Records and Monitoring

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to maintain records adequate to document its performance and costs
of carrying out this ILA at PUBLIC AGENCY’s offices.

Subject to additional requirements of section 8.3, PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to preserve the
records for three fiscal years after receiving final payment under this ILA.

If an audit or information in the records is disputed or the subject of litigation, PUBLIC AGENCY
agrees to preserve the records until the dispute or litigation is finally concluded, regardless of
the ending or early termination of this contract.

Upon advance and reasonable notice to the PUBLIC AGENCY, CAPCOG is entitled to inspect
and copy, during normal business hours at PUBLIC AGENCY’s offices where they are
maintained, the records maintained under this contract for as long as they are preserved.
CAPCOG is also entitled to visit PUBLIC AGENCY’s offices, talk to its personnel, and audit its
records, all during normal business hours, to assist in monitoring its performance under this
contract.

CAPCOG reserves the right to visit PUBLIC AGENCY’s offices to monitor performance of this
contract at least during the performance period to ensure compliance with applicable law and
policy. If CAPCOG exercises this option, it will provide PUBLIC AGENCY with a written
monitoring report within 30 calendar days of the visit. The report will describe any compliance
issues and schedule a follow-up visit if necessary.

CAPCOG agrees to notify PUBLIC AGENCY at least 24 hours in advance of any intended visit
under this Section other than as described in Section 8.5. Upon receipt of CAPCOG’s notice,
PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to notify the appropriate department(s) specified in the notice of
CAPCOG’s intended visit.

Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity

9.1.

PUBLIC AGENCY shall not exclude anyone or entity from participating in PUBLIC AGENCY’s
duties under this ILA, deny benefits under this ILA, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in
carrying out this contract because of any protected category under CAPCOG’s personnel
policies, which include race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, handicap, veteran status,
national origin, sexual orientation, or gender identity.

Page 3 of 6



10.

11.

9.2.

If PUBLIC AGENCY procures goods or services with funds made available under this ILA, PUBLIC
AGENCY agrees to comply with CAPCOG’s affirmative action procurement policy, which is set
out in CAECD’s 9-1-1 Policies and Procedures Manual.

Early Termination of Contract

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

If CAPCOG or PUBLIC AGENCY breaches a material provision of this ILA, the other may notify
the breaching party describing the breach and demanding corrective action. The breaching
party has five business days from its receipt of notice to correct the breach, or to begin and
continue with reasonable diligence and in good faith to correct the breach. If the breach
cannot be corrected within a reasonable time as agreed by the parties, despite the breaching
party’s reasonable diligence and good faith effort to do so, the non-breaching party may
terminate the contract or may invoke the dispute resolution process of section 11.

If this ILA is terminated under this section, CAPCOG and PUBLIC AGENCY are entitled to
compensation for goods and services provided the other before receiving notice of the
suspension or termination. However, neither CAPCOG nor PUBLIC AGENCY is liable to the
other for costs it paid or incurred under this contract made after or in anticipate of its receipt
of notice of suspension or termination. The fraction of the maximum amount owed for each
period described in sections 5.1 and 5.2 will be calculated based on the quarterly amount and
fraction of CAPCOG business days during that quarter when the PUBLIC AGENCY carried out
work pursuant to this ILA.

Termination for breach under Section 10.1 does not waive either party’s claim for direct
damages resulting from the breach, and both CAPCOG and PUBLIC AGENCY among other
remedies may withhold from compensation owed the other an amount necessary to satisfy its
claim against the other.

The termination of this contract does not affect PUBLIC AGENCY’s duty to preserve its records
and permit inspection, copying, and auditing of its records and visitation of its premises and
personnel under section 8.

Dispute Resolution

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

The parties desire to resolve disputes arising under this ILA without litigation. Accordingly, if a
dispute arises, the parties agree to attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute between
themselves. To this end, the parties agree not to sue one another, except to enforce
compliance with this section 11, toll the statute of limitations, or seek an injunction until they
have exhausted the procedures set out in this Section 11.

At the written request of either party, each party shall promptly appoint one non-lawyer
representative to negotiate informally and in good faith to resolve any dispute arising under
this ILA. The representatives appointed shall promptly determine the location, format,
frequency, and duration of the negotiations.

If the representatives cannot resolve the dispute within 30 calendar days after the first
negotiation meeting, the parties agree to refer the dispute to the Dispute Resolution Center of
Austin for mediation in accordance with the Center’s mediation procedures by a single

Page 4 of 6



mediator assigned by the Center. Each party agrees to pay half the cost of the Center’s
mediation services.

11.4. The parties agree to continue performing their duties under this contract, which are
unaffected by the dispute, during the negotiation and mediation process.

11.5. If mediation does not resolve the parties’ dispute, the parties may pursue their legal and
equitable remedies.

11.6. A party’s participation in or the results of any mediation or other non-binding dispute
resolution process under this section or the provisions of this section shall not be construed as
a waiver by party of: (1) any rights, privileges, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to a
party; (2) a party’s termination rights; or (3) other termination provisions or expiration dates
of this ILA.

11.7. Nothing shall prevent either party from resorting to judicial proceedings if (a) good faith
efforts to resolve a dispute under these procedures have been unsuccessful, or (b) interim
resort to a court is necessary to prevent serious and irreparable injury to a party or to others.

. Notice to Parties and Project Representatives

12.1. Notice to be effective under this ILA must be in writing and received by the party against
whom it is to operate. Notice is received by a party: A) when it is delivered to the party
personally; B) on the date shown on the return receipt if mailed or registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, to the party’s address specified in 12.2 or 12.3 and signed for on
behalf of the party; or C) three business days after its deposit in the United States mail, with
first-class postage affixed, addressed to the party’s address specified in Section 12.2 or 12.3.

12.2. CAPCOG's address is 6800 Burleson Road, Building 310, Suite 165, Austin, TX 78744, Attn:
Executive Director

12.3. PUBLIC AGENCY’s address is: 301 SE Inner Loop, Suite 107, Georgetown TX 78526.

12.4. A party may change its address by providing notice of the change in accordance with Section
12.1

12.5. Susan Cooper, CAPCOG GIS Program Manager, is CAPCOG’s Project Representative, who is
authorized to give and receive communications and directions on behalf of CAPCOG. All
communications including all payment requests must be addressed to the CAPCOG’s Project
Representative or his designee. CAPCOG's Project Representative may indicate a designee
through an e-mail to PUBLIC AGENCY’s project representative. CAPCOG's Project
Representative’s phone number is (512) 916-6034, and her e-mail is scooper@capcog.org.

12.6. George Strebel is PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project Representative, who is authorized to give and
receive communications and directions on behalf of PUBLIC AGENCY. All communications
including all payment requests must be addressed to the PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project
Representative or his designee. The PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project Representative may indicate a
designee through an e-mail to CAPCOG’s project representative. PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project
Representative’s phone number is (512) 943-1474, and his e-mail is gstrebel@wilco.org.

Page 5 of 6


mailto:scooper@capcog.org

13. Miscellaneous

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

13.5.

Each individual signing this contract on behalf of a party warrants that he or she is legally
authorized to do so and that the party is legally authorized to perform the obligations
undertaken. The undersigned warrants that he or she: A) has actual authority to execute this
contract on behalf of the governing body identified in this agreement; and verifies the
governing body, by either minute order, resolution, or ordinance approved this agreement as
required by Texas Government Code Section 791, as amended

This ILA shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.
Venue for all disputes hereafter shall be solely in Travis County.

This ILA states the entire agreement of the parties, and may be amended only by a written
amendment executed by both parties, except that any alterations, additions, or deletions to
the terms of this ILA which are required by changes in Federal or State law or regulation are
automatically incorporated into this contract without written amendment hereto and shall
become effective on the date designated by such law or regulation.

The following Attachments are part of this ILA: A) Scope of Work; and B) Data Requirements.

This contract is executed in duplicate originals.

Williamson County CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
By: By:

Name: Betty Voights

Title Executive Director

Date: Date:

Date of County Governing Body Approval:

Page 6 of 6



Attachment A: Scope of Work

Overview

The goal of this scope of work is to facilitate the exchange of geospatial information between PUBLIC
AGENCY and CAPCOG to help ensure that efficient and accurate response to emergency calls and text
messages in all areas of the Capital Area Emergency Communications District (CAECD). In order to
accomplish this:

1. Calls and texts must be routed to the correct public safety answering point (PSAP);
2. The correct emergency service provider must be dispatched to the appropriate location; and
3. The emergency responders must be able to know the most efficient route to reach that location.

Definitions
Core 9-1-1 GIS data terminology:

1. 9-1-1 GIS Database: The geospatial database maintained and updated by the PUBLIC AGENCY
that includes, at a minimum, all address points (SSAPs), road centerlines (RCLs), PSAP
boundaries, Emergency Service Boundaries (ESBs), Emergency Service Zone (ESZ) boundaries,
and city limit (municipal) boundaries for the PUBLIC AGENCY’s provisioning boundary

2. Data Layer: Also known as a Feature Class, is a group of geographic features that reside in a
table of information with corresponding locations on the earth (map) represented as either
points, lines, or polygons.

3. Address Points (SSAPs): A data layer of points identifying sites or structures associated with a
street address, or the location of access to a site or structure, but may also represent landmarks.

4. Road (Street) Centerlines (RCLs): A data layer of lines estimating the centerline of a roadway
that contains information such as road name, road classification, and address range

5. City Limit (Municipal) Boundary: A polygon data layer representing the geographic extent of a
city’s administrative boundary, not including any extra-territorial jurisdiction. Updates to City
Limit boundaries are used to update PSAP, ESB, and ESZ boundaries.

6. Automatic Location Information (ALl) Database: A tabular database of landline telephone
numbers with associated location information used to route 9-1-1 calls to a PSAP.

7. Legacy Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) Database: A tabular database of street names and
house number ranges within their associated communities defining ESZs and their associated
Emergency Service Numbers (ESNs) to enable proper routing of 9-1-1 calls.

Specialized NG9-1-1 GIS terminology:

1. Provisioning Boundary: The authoritative polygon data layer that defines the PUBLIC AGENCY’s
geographic area of 9-1-1 GIS responsibility. This should be the entire extent of the PUBLIC
AGENCY’s administrative boundary, plus any other adjacent areas or minus areas within its
administrative boundaries as agreed to between the PUBLIC AGENCY and another city or county.
Provisioning boundaries may only be modified with express written concurrence between the
PUBLIC AGENCY, adjacent PUBLIC AGENCIES, and CAPCOG.

Page 1 of 7



The provisioning boundary should include the area that the PUBLIC AGENCY assigns address
points and road names under its own authority, plus any other areas that the PUBLIC AGENCY
does not have such authority, but with which it has entered into an exclusive agreement to
obtain this information for the 9-1-1 GIS database. Situations that may warrant a change to a
provisioning boundary include (but are not limited to): municipal annexations, disannexations,
consolidation of two or more municipalities, formation of new municipalities, changes in PSAP
service areas, and changes in emergency responder service areas.

PSAP boundary: The authoritative polygon data layer representing the geographic area within a
provisioning boundary served by a single 9-1-1 call center (a PSAP), to which all emergency
requests are initially routed.

Emergency Service Boundary (ESB): A polygon data layer that represents the geographic area of
responsibility for emergency response providers within the geographic extent of the
provisioning boundary. Each 9-1-1 GIS database includes, at a minimum, a law ESB layer, a fire
ESB layer, and an Emergency Medical Services (EMS) ESB layer.

Emergency Service Zone (ESZ): A polygon data layer representing the area within a provisioning
boundary served by a unique combination of law, fire, and EMS responders. ESZs are optional
for inclusion in the NG9-1-1 GIS database.

Database Schema: Also known as Data Model, is the database structure with regard to field
properties, including data type, field value constraints, etc. Converting one database schema to
another involves field-matching (field-mapping) and other compatibility considerations.
Geo-MSAG: A geospatially-based database that replaces the MSAG and is created and managed
using a road centerline GIS dataset. A city or county must first transition from a traditional
tabular MSAG to a Geo-MSAG before it can transition to NG9-1-1. In order to qualify to initiate
the transition to a Geo-MSAG, a county must achieve at least 98% match between ALI to RCL
records as described later in this document.

Globally Unique IDs (GUIDs): A unique identifier that is assigned to each record (feature) in an
PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database; a GUID uniquely identifies a feature both within the
PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database provisioning boundary and across all 9-1-1 GIS databases.

Quality Control terminology:

1.

4.

Enterprise Geospatial Data Management System (EGDMS): A cloud-based quality control
platform provided by AT&T/Intrado used for identifying critical errors that affect call and
dispatch routing that will be used by the PUBLIC AGENCY to provision (determines acceptable)
data to CAPCOG’s NG9-1-1 system for call routing. EGDMS does not assess “significant” errors
that affect dispatch.

DataHub: a cloud-based quality control platform provided by GeoComm that, in addition to
being able to identify critical errors, can also identify “significant” and “other” errors in a PUBLIC
AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database. DataHub is the system that will provide data to a call taker’s map
display in the near future.

New Error: Any error present in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database update for the first
time.

Legacy Error: Any error in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database update that was also present
in a preceding update.

Page 2 of 7



Accuracy Rate: The percentage of features that have been assessed by EGDMS, DataHub, or
both, as being free of errors or matching a related database.

Error Rate: The percentage of features that have been assessed as having a critical error,
significant error, or as not matching a related database.

Critical Error: Any error in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database assessed by EGDMS or
DataHub that cause, or have a potential of causing, a critical fault in the routing of a 9-1-1
emergency service request call or text to the correct PSAP; the EGDMS system prevents data
with critical errors from being uploaded to the NG9-1-1 system. Examples include (but are not
limited to) gaps and overlaps between several of the data layers described above.
Significant Error: Any error in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database update found by
GeoComm’s Data Hub quality control software that cause, or have a potential of causing, a
critical fault in Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) mapping platforms or other related systems.
Other Error: Any error in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s 9-1-1 GIS database identified by GeoComm’s
Data Hub quality control software other than a “critical” or “significant” error.

Task 1: Basic Work

Task 1 involves information gathering and data preparation needed for the 9-1-1 GIS database but does
NOT involve updating the 9-1-1 GIS database directly.

Task 1.A: PUBLIC AGENCY shall submit to CAPCOG, at least once a month, a comprehensive record of 9-
1-1 related information needed for complete and updated 9-1-1 GIS database records for all areas
within the PUBLIC AGENCY’s Provisioning Boundary consisting of:

PNV A WNRE

Street Addresses

Roads

City limit boundaries

Law ESB*

Fire ESB*

Emergency Medical Service ESB*
ESZs*

Other pertinent information

*Shall be submitted if changes are requested for CAPCOG approval, otherwise these data are not
required to be submitted as part of monthly dataset (see Task 1D).

Data submitted by PUBLIC AGENCY must adhere to requirements laid out in Attachment B.

Task 1B: PUBLIC AGENCY shall enter into and maintain agreements with all other local governments with
the authority to assign address points, assign road names and address ranges, alter municipal
boundaries, or change the geographic coverage of emergency service providers in order to ensure that
these entities provide such data to PUBLIC AGENCY in a timely manner. When such changes occur,
PUBLIC AGENCY shall provide CAPCOG with adequate advance notice of any substantive changes that
could or should affect PSAP boundaries, ESB boundaries, provisioning boundaries, or any sub-
contracting in order for an orderly transition as a result of any pending new agreement, amendment, or
agreement termination.

Page 3 of 7



Task 1C: PUBLIC AGENCY shall be responsible for conveying any relevant information from CAPCOG
regarding 9-1-1 GIS database integrity to other local governments and governmental entities partially or
wholly within its provisioning boundary.

Task 1D: PUBLIC AGENCY shall provide to CAPCOG information from any County Commissioners’ Court
meetings or City Council meetings that would affect PUBLIC AGENCY’s performance of this contract,
including (but not limited to) changes to PSAPs, ESBs/ESZs, annexation, or subcontracting. PUBLIC
AGENCY’s Project Representative is expected to keep track of County Commissioners Court and City
Council meeting agendas to determine if an item may affect the performance of this contract, and notify
CAPCOG’s project representative of any such issues as soon as possible, but no later than 2 days prior to
the Commissioners Court or City Council meeting. Such information includes, but is not limited to,
annexation notices, disannexation notices, and interlocal agreements related to emergency services and
coverage areas. To the extent possible, CAPCOG will use the ESB and ESZ data submitted by the PUBLIC
AGENCY in the 9-1-1 system. However, CAPCOG reserves the right to make adjustments to these data
and/or reinstate prior versions if the data submitted by PUBLIC AGENCY are found to have errors.
Regardless of any such changes made by local governments within their provisioning boundary, those
changes will not be made in the 9-1-1 system until this information is provided to CAPCOG, CAPCOG
accepts the information, and makes the corresponding changes in the 9-1-1 system. CAPCOG shall make
PUBLIC AGENCY aware of any required changes to these boundaries within three business days of being
provided with the polygon data. Note that changes to these data may be sent to CAPCOG at any point
during the month. PUBLIC AGENCY is responsible for downloading and using the latest authoritative
version of the ESZ/ESB files used in the 9-1-1 system from CAPCOG at the beginning of each month to
avoid repetition of errors if they have occurred.

Task 1.E: PUBLIC AGENCY shall send at least one representative to each scheduled 9-1-1 GIS User Group
meetings (GMUG) and at least one training workshop hosted by CAPCOG during the performance period
of this agreement.

Task 2: GIS Work for PSAP Map Updates

Task 2 involves GIS work needed for directly maintaining and updating the 9-1-1 GIS database for use in
monthly updates to PSAP mapping applications. This is work that CAPCOG would need to perform if the
PUBLIC AGENCY did not do so. CAPCOG’s expectation is that this work would be performed by a person,
either on staff or subcontracted by the PUBLIC AGENCY, with responsibilities, knowledge, skills,
education, and experience comparable to the state’s “Geographic Information Specialist 11" job
description.! . PUBLIC AGENCY must maintain at least one ESRI ArcGIS software license as specified in
Attachment B in order to carry out this work. Task 2 includes the following sub-tasks:

Task 2.A: PUBLIC AGENCY shall submit all information required under Task 1.A that corresponds to GIS
data layers in the 9-1-1 GIS database at least once a month. This will be provided in ESRI File
geodatabase format (.gdb) pursuant to Attachment B and any other CAPCOG guidance on the 1°
business day of each month or up to five business days prior to the 1% business day of the month.
PUBLIC AGENCY shall first submit road centerline, street address point, city limit boundary data and
their respective ALl extract for that month to DataHub in order to identify and address any mismatches
between the ALl database and PUBLIC AGENCY’s RCL and address point data, “critical” errors, and

1 Available online at: http://www.hr.sao.texas.gov/CompensationSystem/JobDescriptions/

Page 4 of 7


http://www.hr.sao.texas.gov/CompensationSystem/JobDescriptions/

“significant” errors. This quality control system requires the 9-1-1 GIS database to match the
standardized database schema (data model) for this system through field-matching (field-mapping)
procedures and other standards.

Task 2.B: PUBLIC AGENCY shall address any errors identified by DataHub validation checks (reports) or
CAPCOG Quality Control reports from those systems as soon as possible, but no later than the following
conventional monthly submission to CAPCOG. This includes coordination with adjacent PUBLIC
AGENCIES and CAPCOG where necessary.

Task 2.C: PUBLIC AGENCY shall address any other discrepancies identified by authorized stakeholders
including, but not limited to, PSAP 9-1-1 call-takers.

Task 2.D: At least once a month, PUBLIC AGENCY shall back up the 9-1-1 GIS database and store itin a
secure place. PUBLIC AGENCY shall include a record of the dates the database was backed up in the
activity reports that are required to be submitted with quarterly invoices.

Task 2.E: In addition, PUBLIC AGENCY shall maintain the ALI database within the PUBLIC AGENCY’s
provisioning boundary. This includes, but is not limited to, correcting telephone number database
errors, maintenance and quality-control of an accurate 9-1-1 call location map.

Task 3: Updates for Call-Routing

In a NG9-1-1 environment, the GIS database is used not only for PSAP mapping applications, but also to
route both cell and landline phone calls to the proper PSAP. Whereas for the monthly PSAP map update,
CAPCOG aggregates data submitted from PUBLIC AGENCY with all of the other local governments under
contract with CAPCOG and the pushes these data out to the PSAPs, for call routing updates, PUBLIC
AGENCY will submit data directly to EGDMS.

Task 3.A: PUBLIC AGENCY shall submit the most recent 9-1-1 road centerline and street address GIS data
from Task 2 to EGDMS at least once a month on the first business day of the month or up to five
business days prior to that date. While PUBLIC AGENCY may submit updates to EGDMS more frequently
than once a month, it will be expected to make at least one submission within this window each month
and CAPCOG will only be assessing performance based on PUBLIC AGENCY’s submission during this
window. RCL updates submitted by PUBLIC AGENCY to EGDMS will automatically update PUBLIC
AGENCY’s GeoMSAG.

Task 3.B: To the extent EGDMS identifies any critical errors in the 9-1-1 databases submitted by PUBLIC
AGENCY, PUBLIC AGENCY must work on correcting any such errors prior to the next monthly submission.
Failure to make progress in correcting critical errors identified in the prior month’s submission will be
noted in CAPCOG’s comprehensive performance reports and should be noted and explained in quarterly
reports submitted by PUBLIC AGENCY when submitting an invoice to CAPCOG.

Content of Quarterly Reports
Along with each quarterly invoice, PUBLIC AGENCY will submit an activity report that contains all of the
following information related to activities that occurred in the quarter:

e For each applicable governmental entity with administrative boundaries within PUBLIC
AGENCY’s provisioning boundary, PUBLIC AGENCY shall provide a summary of actions taken

Page 5 of 7



each month relevant to the 9-1-1 GIS database, including any new records added since the last
update and errors corrected.
e The date and time of the PUBLIC AGENCY’s last backup of its 9-1-1 GIS database each month of
the quarter.
e Dates and basic summaries (such as total number of features) of data submissions to CAPCOG.
e A summary of any work that involved resolution of boundary issues with other entities,
correction of errors and resolution of any other issues related to this contract
e An explanation for any performance issues during the quarter and corrective action that will be
taken to address and prevent such issues in the future, including:
o Late orincomplete data submissions;
o Failure to meet performance expectations for ALI to RCL match accuracy rates, critical
error accuracy rates, or significant error rates; and
o Any other issue identified by CAPCOG in a performance report.

CAPCOG will provide PUBLIC AGENCY the template to use for activity reports.

Timeline
The following timeline should be used by PUBLIC AGENCY in planning its submission of data to DataHub
and CAPCOG for PSAP map updates (Task 2) and to EGDMS for and call-routing updates (Task 3):

e January 2022:
o Submission window: December 22, 2021 — January 3, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: January 4, 2022 — January 7, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: January 11, 2022
e February 2022:
o Submission window: January 25, 2022 — February 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: February 2, 2022 — February 7, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: February 9, 2022
e March 2022:
o Submission window: February 22, 2022 — March 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: March 2, 2022 — March 7, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: March 9, 2022
e April 2022:
o Submission window: March 25, 2022 — April 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: April 2, 2022 — April 7, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: April 11, 2022
e May 2022:
o Submission window: April 25, 2022 — May 2, 2022

Page 6 of 7



o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: May 3, 2022 — May 6, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: May 10, 2022

e June 2022:
o Submission window: May 24, 2022 — June 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: June 2, 2022 — June 7, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: June 9, 2022

e July 2022:
o Submission window: June 24, 2022 — July 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: July 2, 2022 — July 8, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: July 12, 2022

e August 2022:
o Submission window: July 25, 2022 — August 1, 2022
o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: August 2, 2022 — August 5, 2022
o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: August 9, 2022

e September 2022:
o Submission window: August 25, 2022 — September 1, 2022

o Error correction window for PSAP map updates: September 2, 2022 — September 8,
2022

o CAPCOG pushes out PSAP map update: September 12, 2022

CAPCOG Guidance and Direction

In addition to the Performance Reports identified in Task 2.B, CAPCOG may issue technical guidance or
direction to PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project Representative that provides further clarification, interpretation,
and details. Failure to follow any such guidance would constitute a performance deficiency for this
agreement.

Page 7 of 7



Attachment B: CAPCOG
Next Generation 9-1-1 GIS
Data Requirements
Version 1 (October 2021)

1 Summary

The following geospatial data and corresponding attribute specifications are required to be regularly
maintained by each county for Mapped Automated Location Information (ALl) and use in a Next
Generation 9-1-1 system which relies on GIS for call and dispatch routing through the Location
Validation Function (LVF) and Emergency Call Routing Function (ECRF).

This document is referenced in the Capital Area Council of Governments Interlocal Agreement for 9-1-1
Geographic Information System Database Management and is commonly called “Attachment B
Requirements”.

The GIS Data requirements in this document are a condensed version of, and based upon, data
standards created by NENA (National Emergency Number Association) as they are developed and evolve
over time. These data model standards should be more thoroughly reviewed in the “NENA Standard for
NG9-1-1 GIS Data Model” document. Specifics regarding address point placement methodologies should
be reviewed in the “NENA Information Document for Development of Site/Structure Address Point GIS
Data for 9-1-1” document. There are other useful resources and training, as well, that CAPCOG has
created and can provide.

As per “Task 1.A and Task 2.A” in “Attachment A: Scope of Work”, please provide monthly updates of
the 9-1-1 datasets referenced in this document in ESRI file geodatabase format to the GeoComm GIS
Data Hub, Intrado EGDMS, and CAPCOG FTP location by close of business the 1st business day of each
month. This ensures that data is available for the PSAPs by close of the 7th business day of that month.
Submissions may be sent up to five business days before the 1st business day of the next month, but
ideally would be sent on the 1st business day as CAPCOG wants to capture as many edits as possible that
happen over the course of a given month. Incomplete datasets or other data abnormalities related to
requirements may be returned to the county for correction, and must be returned by close of business
on the 5th business day, however, this does not guarantee that the submission will be included in the
dataset provided to the PSAPs. If there is a situation in which a submission is not possible by the end of
the 1st business day of the month, CAPCOG must be made aware and will work with PUBLIC AGENCY to
obtain that month’s data.

CAPCOG will update, create, and otherwise manage the PSAP and Provisioning Boundaries for each local
jurisdiction and provide these data layers to jurisdiction for Task 2: GIS Work. CAPCOG will also
provision these datasets to both quality-control systems for their use in call and dispatch routing as well
as map display and reference. As described in Task 1B, PUBLIC AGENCY shall enter into and maintain
agreements with all other local governments with the authority to assign address points, assign road
names and address ranges, alter municipal boundaries, or change the geographic coverage of
emergency service providers in order to ensure that these entities provide such data to county in a
timely manner. When such changes occur, local jurisdiction shall provide CAPCOG with adequate

Page 10f12



advance notice of any substantive changes that could or should affect PSAP boundaries, ESB/ESZ
boundaries, provisioning boundaries, or any sub-contracting in order for an orderly transition as a result
of any pending new agreement, amendment, or agreement termination.

PUBLIC AGENCY responsible for the creation and maintenance of the ESZ and ESB data within its
provisioning boundary. To the extent possible, CAPCOG will use the ESB and ESZ data submitted by the
local jurisdiction in the 9-1-1 system. However, CAPCOG reserves the right to make adjustments to these
data and/or reinstate prior versions if the data submitted are found to have errors.. Regardless of any
such changes made by local governments within their provisioning boundary, those changes will not be
made in the 9-1-1 system until this information is provided to CAPCOG, CAPCOG accepts the
information, and makes the corresponding changes in the 9-1-1 system. CAPCOG shall make PUBLIC
AGENCY aware of any required changes to these boundaries within three business days of being
provided with the polygon data. Note that changes to these data may be sent to CAPCOG at any point
during the month. The local jurisdiction is responsible for downloading and using the latest authoritative
version of the ESZ/ESB files used in the 9-1-1 system from CAPCOG at the beginning of each month to
avoid repetition of errors if they have occurred.

Regarding database fields and data types, each is very specific and must follow the exact guidelines
outlined below. Remember to keep the field names in your database the same as those listed, and in the
same order, and that all entries for every field must be in UPPER CASE. The complete attribute
definitions shown in the GIS data tables are described and defined in the “Database Format” sections for
each dataset. The data fields shown as Mandatory and Conditional must be present in the data. In the
tables below, the column M/C/O is to indicate whether the attribute values is Mandatory (M),
Conditional (C), or Optional (O).

e Mandatory (M) signifies an attribute value must exist

e Conditional (C) signifies that if the attribute information exists in the real world, it must be included.
If no value exists for the feature, the individual value is left blank without an empty space (if text), or
0 (if numeric)

e Optional (O) signifies an attribute value may or may not be included in the data field

In the GIS data tables below, the TYPE column indicates the data type used for the data field.

e TEXT - string of alphanumeric characters including any combination of alphabetical letters A-Z and
numbers 0-9

e DATE — Date and time using ISO 8601 compliant formats which are in the format of YYYY-MM- DD
HH:MM:SS

e DOUBLE - double precision floating point numeric values with decimals

e LONG — whole numeric values ranging from -2,147,483,648 to +2,147,483,647 without decimals in
the GIS data tables below, the WIDTH column indicates the number of allowable characters within
each field.

2 Road Centerlines (RCL)

This line data represents road networks in the CAPCOG region. This layer includes the street names and
address ranges used to assign an address.

The performance standard for the Road Centerlines feature class is 98% accuracy. This means that 98%
of the database records should be free of critical and significant errors.

Page 2 of 12



2.1 Graphic (Spatial) Edits

Each named street needs to be represented in the GIS graphically and include attribution for all database
fields listed below. All unnamed streets included in the street centerline layer are required to have the
designation “DRVW” entered in the ‘street name (ST_NAME)’ field and have any other relevant attribute
information completed, including the ‘CLASS’ field. When a street centerline is created or edited, several
sources and methods can be used, including current aerial imagery, georeferenced survey plats,
computer-aided design (CAD) files, parcels, mapping-grade GPS units in the field, or other authoritative
sources or methods. The positional accuracy of addressed structures should be within +/- 5 feet of the
center of the roadbed (the part on which vehicles travel) noting that when roadways are divided (i.e by a
median) the roadbeds on each side should have a centerline drawn. In all cases each new street
centerline will need to be split, or checked for gaps, at each jurisdiction and ESN line/boundary
intersection. Street segment direction must be correct as well. These items and other geometric
relationships are referred to as “topology”, and especially important for NG9-1-1 purposes.

2.2 Database Format
The following table details the data format requirements for the RCL database.

Table 2-1. RCL Database Format

FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

SOURCE M TEXT 75 Agency that last updated the record, i.e. FAYETTE,
TRAVIS

PROVIDER M TEXT 75 The name of the regional 911 authority CAPCOG
will populate

LAST_MOD M DATE 26 Date of last update using ISO 8601 format

EFF_DATE 0] DATE 26 Date the new record information goes into effect
in 1ISO 8601 format

SEGMENTID 0] LONG DEFAULT | Unique segment ID CAPCOG will populate prior to
uploading to PSAP.
May also serve as a placeholder field to populate
SITEUNGID field

RCL_UNIQID M TEXT 100 Globally Unique ID for each road segment. Ex.
894RCL@co.blanco.tx.us

COUNTRY M TEXT 2 Country name represented by two capital letters

L_STATE M TEXT 2 Left state name by two letters defined by USPS
publication 28

R_STATE M TEXT 2 Right state name by two letters defined by USPS
publication 28

L_COUNTY M TEXT 40 Fully spelled county name on the left side of the
road

R_COUNTY M TEXT 40 Fully spelled county name on the right side of the
road

L_MUNI M TEXT 100 Name of municipality on Left, if none populate
with “UNINCORPORATED”

R_MUNI M TEXT 100 Name of municipality on Right, if none populate
with “UNINCORPORATED”

L_MUNI_DIV C TEXT 100 Name of municipality division on Left, i.e. “WARD

5 FRIENDSHIP DISTRICT”

Page 3 of 12



FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

R_MUNI_DIV C TEXT 100 Name of municipality division on Right i.e. “WARD
5 FRIENDSHIP DISTRICT”

L_NBRHOOD 0] TEXT 100 Name of neighborhood or subdivision on Left

R_NBRHOOD 0] TEXT 100 Name of neighborhood or subdivision on Right

L_RNG_PRE C TEXT 15 Part of an address preceding the numeric address
on Left

R_RNG_PRE C TEXT 15 Part of an address preceding the numeric address
on Right

LF_ADDR M LONG DEFAULT | Left address number at the FROM node

LT_ADDR M LONG DEFAULT | Left address number at the TO node

RF_ADDR M LONG DEFAULT | Right address number at the FROM node

RT_ADDR M LONG DEFAULT | Right address number at the TO node

L_PARITY M TEXT 1 E, O, B, Z for Even, Odd, Both, or Zero (if the range
is0to0)

R_PARITY M TEXT 1 E, O, B, Z for Even, Odd, Both, or Zero (if the range
is0to0)

L_POST_COM C TEXT 40 City name for the ZIP of an address, as given in the
USPS on Left

R_POST_COM | C TEXT 40 City name for the ZIP of an address, as given in the
USPS on Right

L_ZIP C TEXT 5 5-digit numeric postal code area on Left

R_ZIP C TEXT 5 5-digit numeric postal code area on Right

L_ESN M TEXT 5 5-digit Emergency Service Number as identified by
ESN on Left. If theESN number only has 2-3 digits,
it must be preceded by zeros

R_ESN M TEXT 5 Emergency Service Number as identified by ESN
on Right. Must bePreceded by zeros if less than 5
digits, i.e. “00088"” for ESN 88

L_MSAG M TEXT 30 Valid service community as identified by MSAG on
Left

R_MSAG M TEXT 30 Valid service community as identified by MSAG on
Right

PRE_MOD 0] TEXT 15 Word or phrase separate from type and direction
that precedes PRE_DIR i.e.Access, Alternate,
Business, Connector, Extension, Scenic, Spur,
Ramp Underpass, Overpass

PRE_DIR C TEXT 2 Leading directional prefix N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE,
Sw

PRE_TYPE C TEXT 20 Spelled out word or phrase that precedes and
identifies a type of thoroughfare

ST_NAME M TEXT 60 Legal street name as assigned by local addressing
authority

ST _TYPE C TEXT 4 Type of street following the street name, valid

entries on USPS Pub 28

Page 4 of 12



FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

POST_DIR C TEXT 2 Trailing directional suffix N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE,
Sw

POST_MOD C TEXT 12 Word or phrase separate from type and direction
that follows ST_NAME

FULL_NAME M TEXT 125 Full street name, should be a concatenation of 4
fields: PRE_DIR, ST_NAME, ST_TYPE and
POST_DIR with no trailing or leading spaces

ST_ALIAS C TEXT 125 Entire alias street name assigned to street
segment

ONE_WAY 0] TEXT 2 B, FT, TF for Both, FROM node to TO node, TO
node to FROM node

SP_LIMIT 0] LONG DEFAULT | Posted speed limit in MPH

CLASS M TEXT 4 Street type designation code (See Road Class
Codes below)

RDCLS_TYP 0] TEXT 15 See valid Road Class Types below

NOTES 0] TEXT 75 Additional information

2.3 Road Class Codes (‘Street Type’) Designation

The following list of codes are used in the “Class” field in the RCL Database:

IH — Interstate

US — US highways SH — State highways
FM — Farm to Market, Ranch Road, Ranch to Market
LS — City Street, County Road, Park Road, Recreational, Frontage RoadAC — Access Road, Crossover

PVT- Private RoadTR — Toll Road

RAMP- On-ramp, Off-ramp
DW — Driveways

2.4 Road Class I Types
The following list of codes are used in the “RDCLS_TYP” field in the RCL Database:

Primary Secondary

Local (City, Neighborhood, or Rural Road)Ramp

Service (usually along a limited access highway)Vehicular Trail (4WD, snowmobiles)

Walkway (Pedestrian Trail, Boardwalk)Alley
Private (service vehicles, logging, oil fields, ranches, etc.)Parking Lot

Trail (Ski, Bike, Walking / Hiking Trail)

3 Site / Structure Address Points (SSAP)

This point data represents addressable sites, structures, or property entrances that exist within the

CAPCOG region.
3.1 Graphic (Spatial) Edits

All addressed site/structures must be represented in the address point layer. When a site/structure
point is created or edited, several sources and methods can be used, including aerial imagery,

Page 5 of 12



georeferencedsurvey plats, computer-aided design (CAD) files, parcels, mapping-grade GPS units in the
field, or otherauthoritative sources and methods. When the actual structure location is known, the
symbol should represent the general center of the structure. In other cases, please refer to the “NENA
Information Document for Development of Site/Structure Address Point GIS Data for 9-1-1” document.
In any case, the positional accuracy of structures or designated site locations should be within +/- 25 feet
of their truelocation or intended designation.

The performance standard for the Site Structure Address Point feature class is 98% accuracy. This means
that 98% of the database records should be free of critical and significant errors.

3.2 Database Format
The following table details the data format requirements for the SSAP database.

Table 3-1. SSAP Database Format

FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

SOURCE M TEXT 75 Agency that last updated the record, i.e. HAYS,
WILLIAMSON

PROVIDER M TEXT 75 The name of the regional 911 authority CAPCOG
will populate

LAST_MOD M DATE 26 Date of last update using 1ISO 8601 format

EFF_DATE 0] DATE 26 Date the new record information goes into effect in
ISO 8601 format

SITE_ID 0] LONG DEFAULT | Unique site ID CAPCOG will populate prior to

uploading to PSAP. May also serve as a placeholder
field to populate SITEUNGID field

SITEUNQID M TEXT 100 Globally unique ID for each address site or
structure. Ex. 2545AP@co.lee.tx.us

COUNTRY M TEXT 2 Country name represented by two capital letters

STATE M TEXT 2 State name by two letters defined by USPS
publication 28

COUNTY M TEXT 40 County name or equivalent fully spelled out

MUNICIPAL M TEXT 100 Name of municipality, if none populate with
“UNINCORPORATED”

MUNI_DIV C TEXT 100 Name of municipality division i.e. “WARD 5
FRIENDSHIP DISTRICT”

NBRHOOD C TEXT 100 Name of neighborhood or subdivision where the
address is located

ADDNUM PR | O TEXT 15 Part of an address leading the numeric address

E

ADDR_NUM M LONG DEFAULT | Numeric identifier of a location along a
thoroughfare

ADDNUM SU | C TEXT 15 Part of an address following the address number

F i.e.”, B

PRE_MOD 0] TEXT 15 Word or phrase separate from type and direction

that precedes PRE_DIR i.e.Access, Alternate,
Business, Connector, Extension, Scenic, Spur, Ramp
Underpass, Overpass

Page 6 of 12



FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

PRE_DIR C TEXT 2 Leading directional prefix N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE,
SwW

PRE_TYPE 0] TEXT 20 Spelled out word or phrase that precedes and
identifies a type of thoroughfare

ST_NAME M TEXT 60 Legal street name as assigned by local addressing
authority

ST TYPE C TEXT 4 Type of street following the street name, valid
entries on USPS Pub 28

POST_DIR C TEXT 2 Trailing directional suffix N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE, SW

POST_MOD 0] TEXT 12 Word or phrase separate from type and direction
that follows ST_NAME

FULL_NAME M TEXT 125 Full street name, must be identical to the site’s
related road FULL_NAME

ST_ALIAS C TEXT 125 Entire alias street name assigned to related street
segment

FULL_ADDR M TEXT 170 Full address, should be a concatenation of
ADDNUM_PRE + ADDR_NUM + ADDNUM_SUF +
FULL_NAME with no extra, leading and trailing
spaces

ESN M TEXT 5 Emergency Service Number associated with the
address and community namePreceded by ‘0’ if
digits are less than 5

MSAG_COM M TEXT 30 Valid service community associated with the
location of the address

POSTAL COM | M TEXT 40 City name for the ZIP of an address, as given in the
USPS

ZIP C TEXT 5 5-digit numeric postal code area

ZIP4 0] TEXT 4 ZIP plus 4 code without the dash

BLDG 0 TEXT 75 One among a group of buildings that have the same
address

FLOOR 0] TEXT 75 A floor, story or level within a building

UNIT 0 TEXT 75 A suite or group of rooms within a building that
share the same entrance

ROOM 0] TEXT 75 A single room within a building

SEAT 0 TEXT 75 A place where a person sits within a building i.e.
cubicle

LANDMARK 0] TEXT 150 The name by which a prominent feature is publicly

known or Vanity address

Page 7 of 12



FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

MILEPOST C LONG DEFAULT | A posted numeric measurement from a given
beginning point

SITE_TYPE C TEXT 50 Type of feature identified by the address i.e.
residential, office, store, school

POINT_X 0 DOUBLE | DEFAULT | Longitude of point in decimal degrees using EPSG:
4326

POINT_Y 0] DOUBLE | DEFAULT | Latitude of point in decimal degrees using EPSG:
4326

NOTES 0] TEXT 254 Additional location information, which is not a
building, floor, unit, room or seat

ELEVATION 0] DOUBLE | DEFAULT | Height above Mean Sea Level in meters

4 Emergency Service Zones (ESZ)

This polygon data consists of the intersection of law enforcement, fire district, and emergency medical
service and telephone exchange boundaries in the CAPCOG region.

The performance standard for the Site Emergency Service Zones feature class is 100% accuracy. This
means all database records should be free of critical errors.

4.1 Graphic (Spatial) Edits

These areas need to accurately reflect the boundaries of each geographically unique combination of fire,
law and EMS responder zones. This layer is created and maintained by overlaying with some
combination of street centerlines, municipal (i.e. city limit) boundaries, parcels boundaries, or other
data to determine each jurisdiction’s emergency response service areas. As new emergency response
services are added to, or change in an area, this boundary file will need to be modified accordingly.

Communications must be regularly preserved with all fire, law, and emergency medical responders to
obtain the information required to maintain updated ESZ boundaries. These ESZ boundaries should
adhere to the specifications of CAPCOG’s QC systems and have no gaps or overlaps within a topology
tolerance of +/- 3 feet. Topology and other geometric relationships between feature classes are
especially important for NG9-1-1 purposes. In addition, it is very important that all features with
identical attribute information are merged into one multipartpolygon.

4.2 Database Format
The following table details the data format requirements for the ESZ database.

Table 4-1. ESZ Database Format

FIELD NAME @ M/C/O | TYPE | WIDTH | DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

SOURCE M TEXT | 75 Agency that last updated the record, i.e. BASTROP,
BURNET

PROVIDER M TEXT | 75 The name of the regional 911 authority CAPCOG will
populate

LAST_MOD M DATE | 26 Date of last update using 1ISO 8601 format

Page 8 of 12


Hoekzema, Andrew
Issue


FIELD NAME | M/C/O | TYPE | WIDTH | DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

EFF_DATE 0 DATE | 26 Date the new record information goes into effect in ISO
8601 format

ES_UNQID M TEXT | 100 ID for each emergency service polygon - CAPCOG will
populate

LAW M TEXT | 60 Name of law service provider

FIRE M TEXT | 60 Name of fire service provider

MEDICAL M TEXT | 60 Name of medical service provider

COUNTRY M TEXT |2 Country name represented by two capital letters

STATE M TEXT | 2 State name by two letters defined by USPS publication 28

COUNTY M TEXT | 40 County name fully spelled out

URI M TEXT | 254 URN/URL for routing. Example:
sip:sos@ausxtxeml.travis.tx.us

URN M TEXT | 50 The URN for the Emergency Service or other Well-Known

Service (Example: “urn:service:sos” for a PSAP or
“urn:service:sos.ambulance” for an ambulance service)

ESN M TEXT |5 ESN of the responding agency preceded by ‘0’ if number
of digits < 5

TANDEM M TEXT 3 911 Selected Router Code

TANDEM2 C TEXT 3 911 Selected Router Code

ESSID M TEXT | 2 Unique tandem routing code CAPCOG will populate

ESNGUID M TEXT | 8 Concatenation of ESN and ESSID separated by a single
forwardslash “/” CAPCOG will concatenate

AVCARDURI | C TEXT 254 URI for the vCARD of contact information

5 Emergency Service Boundaries (ESB)

This polygon data consists of Emergency Service Boundary layers that define the geographic area for the
primary providers of response services in the CAPCOG region.

5.1 The performance standard for the Site Emergency Service Boundaries
feature class is 100% accuracy. This means all database records should

be free of critical errors.Graphic (Spatial) Edits
Each of these layers is used by the ECRF to perform a geographic query to determine which Emergency
Service Providers are responsible for providing service to a location in the event a selective transfer is
desired, to direct an Emergency Incident Data Document to a secondary PSAP for dispatch, or to display
the responsible agencies at the PSAP. In addition, Emergency Service Boundaries are used by PSAPs to
identify the appropriate entities/first responders to be dispatched. Each Emergency Service Boundary
layer may contain one or more polygon boundaries that define the primary emergency services for that
geographic area. As new emergency response services are added to, or change in an area, this boundary
file will need to be modified accordingly. Communications must be regularly preserved with all fire, law,
and emergency medical responders to obtain the information required to maintain updated boundaries.
These Emergency Service Boundaries should adhere to the specifications of CAPCOG’s QC systems and
have no gaps or overlaps within a topology tolerance of +/- 3 feet. The ESBs can be created by dissolving
the Emergency Service Zones polygon data. These items and other geometric relationships are referred

Page 9 of 12


Hoekzema, Andrew
Issue


to as “topology”, and especially important for NG9-1-1 purposes. In addition, it is very important that all
features with identical attribute information are merged into one multipart polygon

There MUST be a separate Emergency Service Boundary layer for each type of service. The set of
Emergency Service Boundaries MUST include, at a minimum, the following:

e Law Enforcement;
e Fire; and
e Emergency Medical Services (EMS).

Other Emergency Service Boundaries MAY include, but are not limited to:

e Poison Control;
e Forest Service; and
e Animal Control.

5.2 Database Format
The following table details the data format requirements for the ESB database.

Table 5-1. ESB Database Format

FIELD NAME M/C/O | TYPE WIDTH | DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

DISCRPAGID M TEXT 75 Agency that last updated the record, i.e. BASTROP,
BURNET

DATEUPDATE M DATE 26 Date of last update using 1ISO 8601 format

EXPIRE 0] TEXT 26 Unique tandem routing code CAPCOG will populate

EFFECTIVE 0] TEXT 26 The date and time when the information in the record is
no longer considered valid.

ES_NGUID M TEXT 254 Globally unique ID for each emergency service
boundary polygon — Ex. 210EMS@blanco.co.tx.us

STATE M TEXT 2 State name by two letters defined by USPS publication
28

AGENCYID M TEXT 100 A Domain Name System (DNS) domain name which is
used to uniquely identify an agency. Ex. austintexas.gov

SERVICEURI M TEXT 254 URN/URL for routing. Example:
sip:sos@ausxtxem1.travis.tx.us

SERVICEURN M TEXT 50 The URN for the Emergency Service or other Well-
Known Service*

SERVICENUM M TEXT 15 The numbers that would be dialed on a 12-digit keypad
to reach
the emergency service appropriate for the location. Ex:
911

AVCARDURI C TEXT 254 URI for the vCARD of contact information

DISPLAYNAME | M TEXT 60 Name of the service provider that offers services within

the area of an Emergency Service Boundary

6 Municipal Boundary

This polygon data represents municipal boundaries in the CAPCOG region.

Page 10 of 12



The performance standard for the Municipal Boundaries feature class is 100% accuracy. This means all
database records should be free of critical errors.

6.1 Graphic (Spatial) Edits

When city limits change due to annexations, metes and bounds surveys or other related information
must be acquired to update the city limit boundaries. Coordinate geometry (COGO) — is one of the
preferred methods for calculating coordinate points from surveys and can be used to update the city
limit boundaries. These boundaries should adhere to the specifications of CAPCOG’s QC systems and
have no gaps or overlaps within a topology tolerance of +/- 3 feet.

6.2 Database Format
The following table details the data format requirements for the Municipal Boundary database.

Table 6-1. Municipal Boundary Database Format

FIELD NAME | M/C/O TYPE WIDTH DESCRIPTION/ VALID ENTRIES

SOURCE M TEXT 75 Agency that last updated the record, i.e.
CALDWELL, LLANO

PROVIDER M TEXT 75 The name of the regional 911 authority CAPCOG
will populate

LAST_MOD M DATE 26 Date of last update using 1ISO 8601 format

EFF_DATE 0] DATE 26 Date the new record information goes into
effect in ISO 8601format

POLY_ID 0] LONG DEFAULT | Numeric Polygon ID CAPCOG will populate prior

to uploading to PSAP. May also serve as a
placeholder field to populate MUNIUNQID field

MUNIUNQID | M TEXT 100 Globally Unique ID for each municipality -. Ex.
9847INCM@austintexas.gov

COUNTRY M TEXT 2 Country name represented by two capital letters

STATE M TEXT 2 State Name (eg: TX)

COUNTY M TEXT 40 County name fully spelled out

MUNI_NM M TEXT 100 Name of municipality i.e. “AUSTIN”

7 Automatic Location Identification (ALI)

The ALl database consists of landline telephone numbers that have associated location information
attributed to them. In order to have these call types route to the proper PSAP and plot to the correct
location on a call taker’s map display, the attributes of the data must be correct and must match the
road centerline (RCL) and address point feature classes (SSAP).

The performance standard for the ALl database is a 98% match rate between the ALl database and both
the RCL and SSAP datasets. This means that 98% of a local jurisdiction’s ALl database should match to
both a road centerline feature and address point feature.

7.1 Edits

Match errors between these datasets that are returned by the quality control systems should be
reviewed and corrected accordingly. This could mean either by making corrections to the GIS data or by
providing suggested changes to the ALl database. The ALl data are not owned by CAPCOG or PUBLIC

Page 11 of 12


Hoekzema, Andrew
Issue


AGENCY, but instead by telephone service providers. Suggested edits to the ALl databases should be
made by providing Change Requests (CR) via the Intrado 911Net or GIS Director applications

7.2 Database Format
The following fields in the ALl database are used by the Data Hub and EGDMS quality control systems to
match the address point and road centerline feature classes to ensure a call routes and plots correctly.

Table 7-1. ALI Database Format

FIELD NAME CORRESPONDING RCL OR AP FIELD

HOUSE_NUMBER LT_ADDR, LF_ADDR, RT_ADDR, RF_ADDR, ADDR_NUM
HOUSE_NUMBER_SUFFIX | ADDRNUM_SUF

PREFIX_DIRECTIONAL PRE_DIR

STREET_NAME ST_NAME

COMMUNITY L_MSAG_COM, R_MSAG_COM, MSAG_COM

ESN ESN

STATE STATE

Page 12 of 12



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021
Copier Lease Agreement through Sharp Electronics Corps for Emergency Services

Submitted For:  Joy Simonton Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,
Purchasing

Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a lease with Sharp Electronics
Corps for one (1) copier for Williamson County Emergency Services, in the amount of $189.37
per month for 48-months pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR-CP0O-4433 lease and execution of the
agreement.

Background

Approval of these leases will support the operations of Williamson County Emergency Services
Department. New lease term is 48-month effective 1/1/2022 which includes 4,000 copies/prints
per month overages @ $0.0070 each and all color copies @$0.050. Department point of
contract is Damaris Morales. The expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0451.004621.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount
Attachments

DIR Contract

quote
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 11/10/2021 09:41 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 11/10/2021 10:33 AM

Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 11/08/2021 11:49 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/10/2021



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

STATE OF TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES

CONTRACT FOR PRODUCTS AND RELATED SERVICES
Sharp Electronics Corporation
1. Introduction

A. Parties

This Contract for products and related services is entered into between the State of Texas, acting
by and through the Department of Information Resources (hereinafter “DIR") with its principal
place of business at 300 West 15 Street, Suite 1300, Austin, Texas 78701, and Sharp Electronics
Corporation (hereinafter “Vendor”), with its principal place of business at 100 Paragon Drive,
Montvale, NJ 07645.

B. Compliance with Procurement Laws

This Contract is the result of compliance with applicable procurement laws of the State of Texas.
DIR issued a solicitation on the Comptroller of Public Accounts’ Electronic State Business Daily,
Request for Offer (RFO) DIR-TSO-TMP-419, on 12/12/2018, for Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document
Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services.
Upon execution of this Contract, a notice of award for RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419 shall be posted by
DIR on the Electronic State Business Daily.

C. Order of Precedence

For purchase transactions under this Contract, the order of precedence shall be as follows: this
Contract; Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions For Products and Related Services
Contracts; Appendix B, Vendor’s Historically Underutilized Businesses Subcontracting Plan;
Appendix C, Pricing Index; Appendix D, Customer Service Agreement; Appendix E, Master
Operating Lease Agreement; Appendix F, Master Lease Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response
to RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including
all addenda; are incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between DIR and
Vendor governing purchase transactions. For Lease transactions under this Contract the order of
precedence shall be as follows: this Contract; Appendix E, Master Operating Lease Agreement;
Appendix F, Master Lease Agreement, as applicable depending on the type of lease; Appendix A,
Standard Terms and Conditions For Products and Related Services Contracts; Appendix B,
Vendor’s Historically Underutilized Businesses Subcontracting Plan; Appendix C, Pricing Index;
Appendix D, Customer Service Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response to RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-
419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all addenda; are
incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between DIR and Vendor
governing lease transactions. In the event of a conflict between the documents listed in this
paragraph related to purchases, the controlling document shall be this Contract, then Appendix
A, then Appendix B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D, then Appendix E, then Appendix F, then
Exhibit 1, and finally Exhibit 2. In the event of a conflict between the documents listed in this

Department of Information Resources Page 1 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

paragraph related to lease transactions, the controlling document shall be this Contract, then
Appendix E or Appendix F, depending on the type of lease transaction, then Appendix A, then
Appendix B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D, then Exhibit 1, and finally Exhibit 2. In the event
and to the extent any provisions contained in multiple documents address the same or
substantially the same subject matter but do not actually conflict, the more recent provisions shall
be deemed to have superseded earlier provisions.

2. Term of Contract
The initial term of this Contract shall be two (2) years commencing on the last date of approval by
DIR and Vendor, with one (1) optional two-year renewal and one (1) optional one-year renewal.
Prior to expiration of each term, the contract will renew automatically under the same terms and
conditions unless either party provides notice to the other party 60 days in advance of the renewal
date stating that the party wishes to discuss modification of terms or not renew. Additionally, the
parties by mutual agreement may extend the term for up to ninety (90) additional calendar days.

3. Product and Service Offerings

A. Products

Products available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services;
Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software
and Services as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may incorporate changes to
their product offering; however, any changes must be within the scope of products awarded
based on the posting described in Section 1.B above. Vendor may not add a manufacturer’s
product line which was not included in the Vendor’s response to the solicitation described in
Section 1.B above.

B. Services
Services available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers,
3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document
Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services
as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may incorporate changes to their service
offering; however, any changes must be within the scope of services awarded based on the
posting described in Section 1.B above.

4, Pricing
Pricing to the DIR Customer shall be as set forth in Appendix A, Section 8, Pricing, Purchase Orders,
Invoices and Payment, and as set forth in Appendix C, Pricing Index, and shall include the DIR
Administrative Fee.

5. DIR Administrative Fee
A) The administrative fee to be paid by the Vendor to DIR based on the dollar value of all sales to
Customers pursuant to this Contract is three-quarters of one percent (.75%). Payment will be
calculated for all sales, net of returns and credits. For example, the administrative fee for sales
totaling $100,000 shall be $750.00.

Department of Information Resources Page 2 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

B) All prices quoted to Customers shall include the administrative fee. DIR reserves the right to
change this fee upwards or downwards during the term of this Contract, upon written notice to
Vendor without further requirement for a formal contract amendment. Any change in the
administrative fee shall be incorporated in the price to the Customer.

6. Notification
All notices under this Contract shall be sent to a party at the respective address indicated below.

If sent to the State:

Kelly A Parker, CTPM, CTCM

Director, Cooperative Contracts
Department of Information Resources
300 W. 15%™ St., Suite 1300

Austin, Texas 78701

Phone: (512) 475-1647

Facsimile: (512) 475-4759

Email: kelly.parker@dir.texas.gov

If sent to the Vendor:

Brenda Siemer

Sharp Electronics Corporation

100 Paragon Drive Montvale, NJ 07645
Phone: (201) 529-0354

Facsimile: (201) 529-9454

Email: siemerb@sharpsec.com

7. Software License, Service and Leasing Agreements

A. Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement
Regardless of any other provision or other license terms which may be issued by Vendor after
the effective date of this Contract, and irrespective of whether any such provisions have been
proposed prior to or after the issuance of a Purchase Order for products licensed under this
Contract, or the fact that such other agreement may be affixed to or accompany software
upon delivery (shrink-wrap), the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract shall
supersede and govern the license terms between Customers and Vendor. It is the
Customer’s responsibility to read the Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement and determine
if the Customer accepts the license terms as amended by this Contract. If the Customer
does not agree with the license terms, Customer shall be responsible for negotiating with
the reseller to obtain additional changes in the Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement
language from the software publisher.

B. Service Agreement
Services provided under this Contract shall be in accordance with the Service Agreement as
set forth in Appendix D of this Contract. No changes to the Service Agreement terms and
conditions may be made unless previously agreed to by Vendor and DIR.

Department of Information Resources Page 3 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

C. Master Operating Lease Agreement
DIR and Vendor hereby agree that Vendor is authorized to utilize the Master Operating Lease
Agreement in Appendix E of this Contract for Lessees that are Texas State Agencies or
otherwise authorized to conduct lease transactions through DIR contracts.

D. Master Lease Agreement

DIR and Vendor hereby agree that Vendor is authorized to utilize the Master Lease Agreement
in Appendix F of this Contract for DIR authorized entities as Lessees that are not Texas State
Agencies or otherwise required by statute to utilize the Texas Public Finance Authority for
such leasing transactions. Texas State Agencies that have the requisite capital authority and
who are not required to utilize such authority via the Texas Public Finance Authority may or
may not be eligible to utilize the Master Lease Agreement; each such agency must confer with
its own counsel to make this determination.

E. Conflicting or Additional Terms
In the event that conflicting or additional terms in Vendor Software License Agreements,
Shrink/Click Wrap License Agreements, Service Agreements or linked or supplemental
documents amend or diminish the rights of DIR Customers or the State, such conflicting or
additional terms shall not take precedence over the terms of this Contract.

In the event of a conflict, any linked documents may not take precedence over the printed or
referenced documents comprising this contract; provided further that any update to such
linked documents shall only apply to purchases or leases of the associated Vendor product or
service offering after the effective date of the update; and, provided further, that, if Vendor
has responded to a solicitation or request for pricing, no update of such linked documents on
or after the initial date of Vendor’s initial response shall apply to that purchase unless Vendor
directly informs Customer of the update before the purchase is consummated.

In the event that different or additional terms or conditions would otherwise result from
accessing a linked document, agreement to said linked document shall not be effective until
reviewed and approved in writing by Customer’s authorized signatory.

Vendor shall not [without prior written agreement from Customer’s authorized signatory,]
require any document that: 1) diminishes the rights, benefits, or protections of the
Customer, or that alters the definitions, measurements, or method for determining any
authorized rights, benefits, or protections of the Customer; or 2) imposes additional costs,
burdens, or obligations upon Customer, or that alters the definitions, measurements, or
method for determining any authorized costs, burdens, or obligations upon Customer.

If Vendor attempts to do any of the foregoing, the prohibited documents will be void and
inapplicable to the contract between DIR and Vendor or Vendor and Customer, and Vendor
will nonetheless be obligated to perform the contract without regard to the prohibited
documents, unless Customer elects instead to terminate the contract, which in such case may
be identified as a termination for cause against Vendor.

Department of Information Resources Page 4 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

The foregoing requirements apply to all contracts, including, but not limited to, contracts
between Customer and a reseller who attempts to pass through documents and obligations
from its Manufacturer of Publisher.

8. Authorized Exceptions to Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions for Product and Related
Services Contracts.

No exceptions have been agreed to by DIR and Vendor.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)

Department of Information Resources Page 5 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

This Contract is executed to be effective as of the date of last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: _Signature on File

Name: _Mike Marusic

Title: _President

Date: _08/02/2019

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By:__Signature on File

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: Chief Procurement Officer

Date: _08/09/2019

Office of General Counsel: Signature on File: 08/07/2019

Department of Information Resources Page 6 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



Sharp Electronics Corporation

DIR-CPO-4433 Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 5)

Monochrome, B&W MFD

Volume Band M1 1 - 30 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band M2 31 - 49 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band M3 50 - 68 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band M4 69 - 89 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band M5 90 + Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Color and B&W MFD

Volume Band C1 1 - 30 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band C2 31 - 50 Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Volume Band C3 51 + Pages Per Minute (PPM)

Managed Print Services, k Devices, N k Devices
CATEGORY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION PRODUCTS/SERVICES SUB DESCRIPTION PRODUCT PART NUMBER/ SKU Discount % off MSRP
Volume Band M5 Sharp Black & White MFD 105-PPM High speed monochrome digital document system MX-M1055 74.31%
Volume Band M5 Sharp Black & White MFD 120-PPM High speed monochrome digital document system MX-M1205 73.84%
Volume Band M1 Sharp Black & White MFD 26 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M2651 68.79%
Volume Band M1 Sharp Black & White MFD 30 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M3051 73.21%
Volume Band M1 Sharp Black & White MFD 30 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M3071 73.29%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 35 PPM B&W Workgroup Document Systerm MX-M3551 74.77%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 35 PPM B&W Workgroup Document Systerm MX-M3571 73.92%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 40 PPM B&W Workgroup Document Systen MX-M4051 75.25%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 40 PPM B&W Workgroup Document Systen MX-M4071 76.19%
Volume Band M3 Sharp Black & White MFD 50 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M5051 74.09%
Volume Band M3 Sharp Black & White MFD 50 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M5071 74.51%
Volume Band M3 Sharp Black & White MFD 60 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M6051 72.76%
Volume Band M3 Sharp Black & White MFD 60 PPM B&W Workgroup Document System MX-M6071 76.23%
Volume Band M4 Sharp Black & White MFD 75 PPM Monochrome Workgroup Document System MX-M7570 78.25%
Volume Band M5 Sharp Black & White MFD 90-PPM High speed monochrome digital document system MX-M905 75.31%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 35 PPM B&W - Desktop B/W Document Systenr MX-B376W 68.47%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 45 PPM B&W - Desktop B/W Document Systen MX-B476W 69.30%
Volume Band C1 Sharp Color MFD 26 PPM B&W / 26 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systen MX-2651 69.80%
Volume Band C1 Sharp Color MFD 30 PPM B&W / 30 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systenr MX-3051 74.28%
Volume Band C1 Sharp Color MFD 30 PPM B&W / 30 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systen MX-3071 74.86%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 35 PPM B&W / 35 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systenr MX-3551 74.16%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 35 PPM B&W / 35 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systen MX-3571 74.65%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 40 PPM B&W / 40 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systerr MX-4051 76.80%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 40 PPM B&W / 40 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systerr MX-4071 77.03%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 50 PPM B&W / 50 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Syster MX-5051 74.98%
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD 50 PPM B&W / 50 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Syster MX-5071 78.23%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 60 PPM B&W / 60 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systen MX-6051 73.56%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 60 PPM B&W / 60 PPM Full-Color Workgroup Document Systenr MX-6071 74.44%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 75/70 PPM B&W / Color - High Speed Color Document Systen MX-7081 73.41%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 70 PPM B&W / Color - High Speed Color Document Systen MX-7090N 68.16%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 80 PPM B&W / Color - High Speed Color Document Systen MX-8081 73.82%
Volume Band C3 Sharp Color MFD 80 PPM B&W / Color - High Speed Color Document Systen MX-8090N 69.58%
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |35 PPM B&W - Desktop B/W Printet DX-B351PL 49.33%
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |35 PPM B&W - Desktop B/W Printet DX-B352P 53.75%
. 55 PPM Desktop Monochrome Multi-Function Document System DSPF
Volume Band M3 Sharp Black & White MFD . MX-B557F 71.00%
Copy/Print/Scan/Fax
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |55 PPM Desktop Monochrome Printer MX-B557P 70.08%
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |70 PPM Desktop Monochrome Printer MX-B707P 70.92%
35 PPM Desktop Color Multi-Function Document System DSPF
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD . MX-C357F 69.68%
Copy/Print/Scan/Fax
40 PPM Desktop Color Multi-Function Document System DSPF
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD . MX-C407F 70.05%
Copy/Print/Scan/Fax
Non- MFD Sharp Color Printer 40 PPM Desktop Color Printer MX-C407P 69.04%
50 PPM Desktop Color Multi-Function Document System DSPF
Volume Band C2 Sharp Color MFD . MX-C507F 70.87%
Copy/Print/Scan/Fax
Non- MFD Sharp Color Printer 50 PPM Desktop Color Printer MX-C507P 70.03%
Non- MFD Sharp Color Printer 60 PPM Desktop Color Printer MX-C607P 70.80%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 42 PPM Monochrome Multi-Function Ducument MX-B427W 66.91%
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |42 PPM Monochrome Printer MX-B427PW 65.80%
Volume Band M2 Sharp Black & White MFD 46 PPM Monochrome Multi-Function Document MX-B467F 68.43%
Non- MFD Sharp Black & White Printer |46 PPM Monochrome Printer MX-B467P 67.39%
Accessories
CATEGORY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU Discount % off MSRP
Power Filter 15 AMP Power Filter AR-D5133NT 26.55%
Power Filter 20 AMP Power Filter AR-D5143NT 30.80%
Other Stamp Unit AR-SU1 55.33%
Stand Deluxe Copier Cabinet MX-25ABD 54.24%
Stand Deluxe Copier Cabinet MX-60ABD 49.58%
Connectivity Sharp OSA Application Communication Module MX-AMX2L 47.52%
Connectivity Sharp OSA External Accounting Module MX-AMX3L 48.39%
Other Plockmatic Booklet Maker MX-BM50 53.15%
Other Business Card Feeder MX-BTX1 58.73%
Other Paper Cart MX-CA10 60.79%
Other 2 Tray Inserter Unit MX-CF11 58.99%
Other Plockmatic Cover Feeder MX-CF50 52.22%
Paper Drawer 500 Sheet Paper Feed Unit MX-CS11 63.79%
Paper Drawer 600 sheet paper feeder MX-CS14N 55.33%
Paper Drawer 1 x 550 Sheet Paper Feed Desk Unit MX-DE25N 66.69%
Paper Drawer 2 x 550 Sheet Paper Feed Desk Unit MX-DE26N 69.34%
Paper Drawer 3 x 550 Sheet Paper Feed Desk Unit MX-DE27N 67.44%




Paper Drawer 550+2100 Sheet Tandem Paper Drawer MX-DE28N 64.62%
Paper Drawer 1 x 550-sheet Paper Drawer MX-DE29N 66.69%
Stand Base Plate MX-DS13 54.09%
Stand Stackable Cabinet MX-DS14 51.79%
Stand Stand High MX-DS22N 53.95%
Stand Stand Low MX-DS23N 54.09%
Power Filter 208-240V/20A Next Gen PCS Power Filtel MX-E524ZNT 40.81%
Connectivity Compact PDF Kit MX-EB11 50.21%
Connectivity Mirroring Kit MX-EB15 60.41%
Connectivity Wireless LAN Adaptor MX-EB18 49.63%
Connectivity Compact PDF Compression Kit MX-EB19L 50.21%
Connectivity OCR Expansion Kit MX-EB20L 55.00%
Other Multi-folding Unit MX-FD10 59.85%
Other Plockmatic Square Folder MX-FD50 53.00%
Finisher Inner Finisher MX-FN12 61.20%
Finisher 50 Sheet Staple Finisher MX-FN19 53.79%
Finisher 50 Sheet Staple/15 Sheet Saddle Stitch Finisher MX-FN20 54.86%
Finisher 100-sheet Staple Finisher MX-FN21 59.81%
Finisher 100-sheet Staple/20-sheet Saddle Stitch Finisher MX-FN22 60.08%
Finisher 50-sheet Staple Finisher MX-FN24 59.64%
Finisher 50-sheet Staple/15-sheet Saddle Stitch Finisher MX-FN25 60.03%
Finisher Inner Finisher 50 Sheet Stapler 500 Sheet Capacity MX-FN27N 70.82%
Finisher 1K Stacking Finisher MX-FN28 58.69%
Finisher 1K Saddle Finisher MX-FN29 58.02%
Finisher 3K Stacking Finisher MX-FN30 56.30%
Finisher 3K Saddle Finisher MX-FN31 57.12%
Finisher Inner Finisher (30 sheet staple 300 sheet stack) MX-FN32 61.20%
Finisher Inner Finisher MX-FN33 71.78%
Finisher 3K Stacking 65-sheet Staple Finisher MX-FN34 56.30%
Finisher 3K Stacking 65-sheet Staple/20-sheet Saddle Stitch Finisher MX-FN35 57.12%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR53U 48.01%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR54U 48.01%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR55U 48.02%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR58U 48.02%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR60U 42.34%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR61U 42.17%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR62U 42.17%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR63U 42.17%
Security Data Security Kit MX-FR64U 42.34%
Fax Internet Fax Kit MX-FWX1L 62.91%
Fax Facsimile Expansion Kit MX-FX15 76.86%
Other 3-Hole Die Set MX-GBC03 51.84%
Other 11-Hole VeloBind Set MX-GBC11 52.17%
Other 19-Hole CombBind Die Set MX-GBC19 52.17%
Other 21-Hole WireBind Die Set MX-GBC21 52.17%
Other 32-Hole WireBind Die Set MX-GBC32 52.17%
Other 32-Hole ProClick Die Set MX-GBC32PRO 52.17%
Other 44-Hole Color Coil Die Set MX-GBC44 52.17%
GBC 19-Hole DuraGlide Heavy Duty Plastic Comb Die Set (rectangular /
Other MX-GBC51 52.80%
letter)
Other GBC 44-Hole DuraGlide Heavy Duty Die Set (round / letter) MX-GBC52 52.77%
Other GBC 3-Hole DuraGlide Heavy Duty Die Set (round / letter) MX-GBC53 52.26%
Other GBC SmartPunch ProTM MX-GBCX2 50.79%
Large Capacity Paper Drawer 3,500-sheet Large Capacity Cassette MX-LC12 57.20%
Large Capacity Paper Drawer 5,000-sheet Large Capacity 2-Drawer Air Feed Tray MX-LC13N 60.40%
Large Capacity Paper Drawer 3,000 Sheet Large Capacity Tray MX-LC17N 65.80%
Large Capacity Paper Drawer 3,500-sheet Large Capacity Cassette (Letter) MX-LC18 65.80%
. 3,000-sheet Large Capacity Cassette (Letter, Letter-R, Legal, Ledger or
Large Capacity Paper Drawer MX-LC19 56.98%
12" x 18")
Large Capacity Paper Drawer 3,000-sheet Large Capacity Cassette (Letter, Letter-R, Legal or Ledger) |MX-LCX3N 56.98%
Other Long Paper Tray (For use with Banner Paper) MX-LT10 60.30%
Other 100 Sheet Multi- Bypass Tray MX-MF10 82.11%
Other 500 Sheet Multi- Bypass Tray MX-MF11 58.61%
Other 100 Sheet Multi- Bypass Tray MX-MFX1 82.11%
Other Plockmatic Interface Kit MX-PCB50 53.35%
Other Fiery Print Server MX-PE11 56.09%
Other Fiery Print Server MX-PE12 56.14%
Other External Fiery Color Print Server MX-PE13 64.49%
Other Embedded Fiery Color Print Server MX-PE14 63.28%
Other EFl Auto Trapping MX-PEAT12 51.52%
Other Fiery Central MX-PECE1 53.18%
Other Fiery Central 1-year Software Maintenance and Support Agreement MX-PECEM 53.46%
Fiery Color Profiler Suite 1-year Software Maintenance and Support
Other MX-PECPM 53.49%
Agreement
Other Fiery Color Profiler Suite MX-PECPS1 52.73%
Other Fiery Color Profiler Suite + EFI ES-2000 Spectrophotometer MX-PECPSP 52.94%
Other Fiery Compose Software MX-PEFC 51.76%
Other Fiery Impose Software MX-PEFIS 52.75%
Other Fiery Graphic Arts Package, Premium Edition Software MX-PEGAP 53.22%
Other EFl Removable HDD Kit MX-PEHD11 52.51%
Other Fiery Removable Hard Disk Drive MX-PEHD13 52.08%
Other EFl Hot Folders MX-PEHF12 51.52%
Other Fiery Impose + Fiery Compose Software Bundle MX-PEIC 52.88%
Other Image Viewer (B/W) MX-PEIVB 52.75%
Other Fiery JobFlow Software MX-PEJF1 53.16%
Other Fiery JobFlow 1-year Software Maintenance and Support Agreement  [MX-PEJFM 53.46%
Other Fiery JobMaster + Fiery Impose Software Bundle MX-PEJI1 53.18%
Fiery JobMaster + Impose 1-year Software Maintenance and Support
Other MX-PEJIM 53.46%
Agreement
Other Fiery JobMaster Software (includes MX-PEJMM 1-year SMSA) MX-PEJM1 53.06%




Fiery JobMaster 1-year Software Maintenance and Support Agreement

Other MX-PEJMM 53.50%

(SMSA)

Centralized Workstation wiith 22" monitor, wireless keyboard and
Other MX-PENXGL 52.90%

mouse

Premium Centralized Workstation wiith 27" monitor, wireless keyboard
Other and mouse, Proximity Sensor, Auto adjusting stand (For use with MX-  |MX-PENXLS 53.07%

PE13)
Other EFI Productivity Package Software MX-PEPP12 53.11%
Other EFI Spot On MX-PESO12 51.52%
Other EFI ES-2000 Spectrophotometer MX-PESP 52.08%
Other Bar Code Font Kit MX-PF10 57.92%
Connectivity Post Script Expansion Kit MX-PK13L 78.24%
Hole Punch Punch Unit MX-PN12B 55.04%
Hole Punch 3-Hole Punch Unit MX-PN13B 56.83%
Hole Punch 3-Hole Punch Unit MX-PN14B 62.05%
Hole Punch 3-Hole Punch Unit MX-PN15B 62.05%
Hole Punch 3-Hole Punch Unit MX-PN16B 62.05%
Hole Punch 3-Hole Punch Unit MX-PNX4B 56.40%
Connectivity Direct Print Expansion Kit MX-PUT0L 55.63%
Connectivity XPS Expansion Kit MX-PUX1L 54.99%
Other Fiery Interface board MX-PX11 58.49%
Other Fiery Interface board MX-PX12 59.21%
Other Fiery Interface Kit MX-PX13 58.49%
Other Paper pass unit for machine MX-RB12N 52.54%
Other Relay Unit MX-RB13 60.21%
Other Relay Unit MX-RB14 60.21%
Other Curl Correction Unit MX-RB15 60.21%
Other LCT Mounting Kit MX-RB16 61.15%
Other LCT Tandem Connecting Kit MX-RB17 60.65%
Other Curl Correction Unit MX-RB18 60.21%
Other Paper Pass Unit MX-RB24 52.05%
Other Paper Pass Unit MX-RB25N 52.05%
Other Paper Pass Unit MX-RB26 52.05%
Other Curl Correction Unit MX-RB27 60.21%
Other Status Indicator MX-SL10N 60.74%
Other 5000-sheet High Capacity Stacker MX-ST10 61.05%
Other Trimmer Unit MX-TM10 59.72%
Other Plockmatic Trimmer MX-TM50 53.00%
Tray Right Side Exit Tray MX-TR14 61.34%
Tray Exit Tray Unit (right side) MX-TR19N 50.99%
Tray Job Separator MX-TR20 51.27%
Tray Right Side Exit Tray MX-TR21 50.99%
Tray Center Exit Tray MX-TU14 60.30%
Tray Center Exit Tray MX-TU15 47.89%
Tray Center Exit Tray Unit MX-TU16 47.89%
Other Utility Table MX-UT10 50.99%
Other Anti Tip Kit MX-XB19 53.35%
Other Plockmatic Rail Unit MX-XB50 53.35%
Paper Drawer 550 sheet paper feeder DX-CS11 53.80%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (C607P) MX-CS16 72.30%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray C407F, C507F, C507P MX-CS17 72.30%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (C357F, C407P MX-CS18 72.35%
Paper Drawer 2,200-Sheet Tray (C607P; MX-CS19 72.13%
Paper Drawer 650-Sheet Duo Tray (C357F, C407P MX-CS20 72.35%
Paper Drawer 250-Sheet Tray (B557P, B707P MX-CS21 72.50%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (B557F, MX-CS22 72.13%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (B557P, B707P MX-CS23 72.47%
Paper Drawer 2,100-Sheet Tray (B557F MX-CS24 72.21%
Paper Drawer 2,100-Sheet Tray (B557P, B707P MX-CS25 72.19%
Finisher Inline Staple Finisher (C607P) MX-FN37 72.41%
Finisher Staple Finisher (B557F, B557P, B707P) MX-FN38 72.61%
Finisher Staple, Hole Punch Finisher (B557F, B557P, B707P; MX-FN39 72.05%
Other 4-Bin Mailbox (B557F, B557P, B707P; MX-MS10 72.61%
Other Output Expander (B557P, B707P) MX-TR22 72.47%
Other High Capacity Output Expander (B557P, B707P) MX-TR23 72.40%
Other Fiery Automation 5 Year Subscription MX-PEAM5Y 53.47%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (B427W, B427PW MX-CS26 72.16%
Paper Drawer 250-Sheet Tray (B467F, B467P MX-CS27 73.05%
Paper Drawer 550-Sheet Tray (B467F, B467P MX-CS28 72.92%

MANAGED PRIN

T SERVICES, NETWORK DEVICES, NON-NETWORK DEVICES - MISCELLANEOUS / OTHER

SUBCATEGORY

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU

DIR CUSTOMER PRICE*

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White

CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all
consumable items except paper and staples

MX-2651 Cost per Copy Charge-
Black & White

$0.0091

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-2651 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0546
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3551 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3551 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-3571 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089

consumable items except paper and staples

Black & White




Cost per Copy Charge- Color

CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all
consumable items except paper and staples

MX-3571 Cost per Copy Charge-
Color

$0.0524

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-4051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-4051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-4071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-4071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-5051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-5051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-5071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-5071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6051 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0089
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6071 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0524
consumable Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6580N Cost per Copy Charge-  {$0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-6580N Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0471
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7580N Cost per Copy Charge-  |{$0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7580N Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0471
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7090N Cost per Copy Charge-  |{$0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7090N Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0428
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-8090N Cost per Copy Charge-  {$0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-8090N Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0428
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M2651 Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0080
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M3051 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M3071 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M3551 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable Black &

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M3571 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M4051 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M4071 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0075
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M5051 Cost per Copy Charge- {$0.0073
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M5071 Cost per Copy Charge- |{$0.0073
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M6051 Cost per Copy Charge- |{$0.0070
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M6071 Cost per Copy Charge- |{$0.0070
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M7570 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0058
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M905 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0045
consumable Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M1055 Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0045
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-M1205 Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0045
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B376W Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0092
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B476W Cost per Copy Charge- |$0.0092
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all DX-B351PL Cost per Copy Charge-  |$0.0246
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all DX-B352P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0161
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B557F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0107

consumable items except paper and staples

Black & White




Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White

CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all
consumable items except paper and staples

MX-B557P Cost per Copy Charge- -
Black & White

$0.0107

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B707P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0107
consumable Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C357F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0193
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C357F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0856
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C407F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0128
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C407F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0610
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C407P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0193
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C407P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0856
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C507F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0128
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C507F Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0610
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C507P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0193
consumable Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C507P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0856
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C607P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0161
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-C607P Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0856
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7081 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-7081 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0471
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-8081 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0076
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Color CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-8081 Cost per Copy Charge- $0.0471
consumable items except paper and staples Color

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B427W Cost per Copy Charge - |$0.0202
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B427PW Cost per Copy Charge - |$0.0202
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B467F Cost per Copy Charge - $0.0127
consumable items except paper and staples Black & White

Cost per Copy Charge- Black & White CPC charge includes all parts, photoconductors, labor and all MX-B467P Cost per Copy Charge - $0.0127

consumable items except paper and staples

Black & White

Service Level Agreement

(SLA) Projects/SOW may have no MSRP but must offer a % discount off of original quoted price

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES SUBCATEGORY PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU PRODUCT DESCRIPTION Discount % off MSRP

Managed Print Services and MPS PROJECT MANAGED NETWORK SERVICES 10.00%

Network Devices, Non-

Network Devices and Related

Service

Enterprise Content Management Products, Software, Services, and Related Services

CATEGORY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION PRODUCTS/SERVICES SUB DESCRIPTION PRODUCT PART NUMBER/ SKU Discount % off MSRP

Software Kayleigh Job Accounting (per |Track Print activities, set usuage limits, cost recovery MX-SW310 49.78%
MEP)

Software Kayleigh Pull Print Option (per |Print release; secure pull printing MX-SW311 58.66%
MEP)

Software Kayleigh Client Billing Option |cost recovery; track activities & cost; optimize printing resources for MX-SW312 56.43%
(per MFP) organization
Single Embedded License - Single Embedded License - Includes Remote Installation, Training +

Software Includes Remote Installation, |1yr Support PCMF-SINGLEMFP 35.48%
Training + 1yr Support
Additional MFP License - May

Software Add Up to 9 Units (Requires  |Additional MFP License - May Add Up to 9 Units (Requires PCMF-MFP) |PCMF-SINGLEMFP-ADD-ON 35.48%
PCME-MEP)

Software 2 Years of Additional Software |2 Years of Additional Software Support Per MFP PCMF-2YR-Support 35.57%
Support Per MFP

Software Proximity Card Reader Proximity Card Reader PCMF-CRDRDR 35.53%

Related Services
CATEGORY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION PRODUCTS/SERVICES SUB DESCRIPTION PRODUCT PART NUMBER/ SKU Price

Related Services

Equipment Relocation

Relocation Fees

RELOCATION FEE

$350.00 + $1 per mile
or actual freight charges

Related Services Additional Training Session Additional Hourly End-User Training TRAINING FEE $125.00 per hour
Fee

Related Services Network Services per hour Network Services n/a $201.50 per hout

Related Services Additonal Advanced / IT Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours n/a $125.94 per hour
Training Cost by hours

Related Services Professional Services per hour |Professional Services n/a $176.31 per hour
Additional End-User taining

Related Services on Device and/or software per |Additional End-User taining on Device and/or software n/a $125.94 per hour
hour

Related Services After hours technical phone  [After hours technical phone support n/a $125.94 per hour

support per hour




Sharp Electronics Corporation
DIR-CPO-4433 Appendix D Service Level Agreement

This Appendix D to Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433
(Contract) and this Service Level Agreement (SLA or Agreement) with Sharp Electronics Corporation
(Sharp) describes the support services provided by Sharp to eligible DIR Customers. In the event of a
conflict between DIR Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433 and this Agreement, the DIR Contract will govern.

I. Equipment Performance

Equipment Downtime shall be computed from the time Sharp is notified of Equipment failure until the time
in which the Equipment is fully operational.

Equipment Downtime due to lack of consumable Supplies is not acceptable.

Sharp will guarantee that the fleet of Devices for each DIR Customer will be operational at least 96% of
the time, during Normal Business Hours.

Sharp will provide daily communication to the DIR Customer regarding inoperable Equipment, including
updates regarding resolution timeframe, and any parts, accessories, or devices on backorder.

Il. Preventative Maintenance

Sharp will perform all Preventative Maintenance Services at the Manufacturer’s suggested intervals, or
as specified in an Order. Preventative Maintenance shall not be a requirement on desktop Devices.

lll. Repair Parts

Sharp will guarantee the availability of repair parts for a minimum of five (5) years after the DIR
Customer’s Acceptance of any Device.

All Device components, spare parts, application software, and ancillary Equipment that is supplied under
any resulting contract, will conform to Manufacturer specifications.

Sharp will be responsible for ensuring that any repair parts are operable and installed in accordance
with Manufacturer specifications.

Repair parts will be new. The replaced part is the property of the Customer and Sharp shall, first, offer
the replaced part to the Customer.

IV. Service Zones

Sharp will adhere to the following Service Call Response Times based on the distance Sharp’s
authorized service provider’'s Base Location is from the DIR Customer:

Service Zone Definition Response Time

Urban Within 60 miles 4 - 6 Hours

Rural 60 — 120 miles 1 - 2 Business Days
120+ miles, or only

Remote accessible by plane | 4 - 5 Business Days
or by boat

Repair or replacement of parts and/or Devices shall occur within four (4) Business Days of Sharp
arriving at the DIR Customer’s location, with the following exception:

Sharp may charge different rates according to each Service Zone, in accordance with Appendix C
Pricing Index.
V. Service Logs

Sharp will maintain a Service Log which describes the maintenance and repair Services provided for
each Device.

A no-cost copy of Service logs/reports will be provided to the DIR Customer, within three (3) Business
Days of a request by the Customer.



Sharp Electronics Corporation
DIR-CPO-4433 Appendix D Service Level Agreement

VI. Meter Read Invoicing

In order for Sharp to generate accurate invoices, DIR Customer shall provide meter reads within the
Awarded Vendor(s) agreed timeframe.

Proper meter read information is required by the 20" of the following month for accurate service
invoicing.

The Customer shall provide written notice of any such alleged invoicing issue and Sharp will be allowed
a thirty (30) day cure period to address any such issue. During the thirty (30) day cure period, the DIR
Customer will not be assessed any late fees for failure to submit payment by the invoice due date.

VIl. Equipment Relocation
Equipment relocation Services include dismantling, packing, transporting, and re-installing Equipment.
Sharp may charge for this Service based on the following table:
Service | Distance from original Charae
Zone placement of Device 9
1 Within the same building No Charge*
. - . | Flat Rate Fee, plus
2 Up_ to 50_ miles frqrn_ building in Per Mile or Hourly
which Device was originally placed Fee
More than 50 miles from building in Flat Rgte Fee, plus
3 : . I Per Mile or Hourly
which Device was originally placed Fee
*Sharp may charge DIR Customers a mutually agreed upon price for special rigging in the event a
DIR Customer’s demographics require such rigging for Zone 1 relocations. The price shall be
agreed upon in writing by Awarded Vendor and DIR Customer prior to any Equipment relocation in
Zone 1.
Sharp may charge for any fees incurred due to tolls.
Moves must be performed within thirty (30) calendar days of the DIR Customer’s request. Request may
be verbal or written, but Sharp must confirm the request in writing and provide a date that the move will
occur. Written confirmation must be sent to the DIR Customer within three (3) Business Days of request.
In the event that there will be a delay in these Services, Sharp shall communicate with the DIR
Customer and agree on a mutually beneficial timeframe.
VIII. Reporting

Sharp will provide periodic reporting to all DIR Customers upon request. The reports shall be provided
on a quarterly basis, or at the discretion of the DIR Customer.

The report shall include the following:

Up-time percentage (%) per fleet of Devices;

Number of Service Calls placed;

Response Time per Device;

Dates that Preventative Maintenance was performed, if applicable;
Hours of end-user training performed; and

Estimated end of Useful Life per Device, based on current usage.

The report may include, but not be limited to, the following:
e Location of Devices;
e Click usage per Device; and
e EPEAT certification level of each Device



Sharp Electronics Corporation
DIR-CPO-4433 Appendix D Service Level Agreement

IX. Escalation Procedure

A multi-tiered approach to account management enables Sharp to provide an excellent problem
resolution process and response time. Customer support starts at the Government Account Executive
level. Jack Coons is ultimately responsible for all problem resolution. As the “quarterback” for the
account, Jack will work closely with management and the Sharp Customer Support Team to ensure
that issues are resolved quickly and efficiently.

The problem resolution process for service and maintenance, including escalation is described below.

Service Call required:

e Local key operator should call the local servicing Sharp location, (this will be provided on the
label on the front of the copier).

e Local key operator will provide the service dispatcher the Sharp model number and equipment
Serial Number.

e The Service Dispatcher will confirm the address and location of the equipment.

o The Service Dispatcher will ask for the name of the caller and the phone number.

e The Service Dispatcher will ask for details, if possible, regarding the problem. At the same time,
the Dispatcher will try to solve any operational problems by phone.

If the problem cannot be solved, then a service call will be made. Local key operator will get a Service
ID number. The technician will then call the end user and notify that the call has been received and will
provide the estimated time of arrival. The technician will also discuss the problem with the end user
and obtain information as to the condition of the equipment (i.e., is the equipment operable or is it totally
down?). In many cases, the technician can walk the end user through the problem, such as a jam, and
get the equipment up and running quickly. The technician will then, upon arrival, make the necessary
adjustments to the equipment.

Once the necessary repairs have been completed, the technician will report back to the end user or
Local Key Operator that made call with the status of the copier.

X. Loaner Equipment

XI.

If any Device is inoperable for two (2) Business Days, due to Equipment malfunction, as reasonably
determined by Sharp, then Sharp will provide the DIR Customer with:

e A loaner Device of similar speed and capabilities until such time as the inoperable Device(s) are
now operable

End-User Training

An initial, no charge, on-site, one-hour training session for each Device, will be offered by Sharp for all
non-desktop Products placed at each DIR Customer’s location. For drop-shipped or desktop Products,
Sharp will offer an initial, one-hour, no charge, web-based, or on-line training session.

If DIR Customer elects to exercise the training option, then Sharp will provide the training within ten
(10) Business Days of DIR Customer’s request.

Sharp may offer additional on-site, one-hour training sessions for a flat rate fee. Additional charges for
travel and per diem shall be handled in accordance with DIR Contract Number DIR-CP0-4433 Section
8F. Travel Expense Reimbursement, if applicable, must be agreed to by the DIR Customer prior to
order placement.

Sharp will provide on-site or off-site operational training to designated DIR Customer personnel until
the personnel are able to operate the Equipment independently. Pricing for operational training shall
be based on a flat rate fee. Additional charges for travel and per diem shall be handled in accordance
with DIR Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433 Section 8F. Travel Expense Reimbursement, if applicable,
must be agreed to by the DIR Customer prior to Order placement.

Sharp will provide product literature, user-manuals, and access to on-line resources, at no charge to
DIR Customer.



DIR-CPO-4433 Appendix E
MASTER OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Appendix and not otherwise defined will have the
meanings set forth in the Contract.

(a) “Assets” refers to the Products as allowed within the Contract, including the Hardware, Software, and
related Services, which are specifically identified on the applicable Schedule. Assets includes any items
associated with the foregoing, including but not limited to all parts, replacements, additions, repairs, and
attachments incorporated therein and/or affixed thereto, and documentation (technical and/or user
manuals).

(b) “Contract” refers to DIR Contract number DIR-CPO-4433 into which this Appendix is incorporated.
(c) “Event of Default” is defined in Section 23, “Default.”

(d) “Event of Loss” means an event of loss, theft, destruction or damage of any kind to any item of the
Assets, including the loss, theft or taking by governmental action of any item of the Assets for a stated
period extending beyond the Term of any Schedule.

(e) “Hardware” refers to the computer machinery and equipment specifically identified on the applicable
Schedule.

(f) “Lease” means the financing transaction described in this MOLA.

(g) “Lessee” means any Texas state agency, unit of local government, institution of higher education as
defined in Section 2054.003 (8-a), Texas Government Code, and those state agencies purchasing from
a DIR contract through an Interagency Agreement, as authorized by Chapter 771, Texas Government
Code, any local government as authorized through the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas
Government Code, and the state agencies and political subdivisions of other states as authorized by
Section 2054.0565, Texas Government Code.

(h) “Lessor” means the Vendor identified in the Contract.

(1) “MOLA" means this Master Operating Lease Agreement (Appendix E). Any reference to “MOLA”
includes the Contract, the Opinion of Counsel, and any riders, amendments and addenda thereto, and
any other documents as may from time to time be made a part hereof upon mutual agreement in a writing
signed by authorized representatives of both parties.

(J) “Rent Payment” means the amount payable by Lessee for the Assets as specified in the applicable
Schedule.

(k) “Schedule” or “Supplementary Schedule” to this MOLA means the form or format entered into between
Lessor and Lessee which contains, at a minimum, a description of the Assets, the name of the Lessee,

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 1 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



applicable Rent Payment, and term of the Lease. To be effective, a Schedule must be executed by both
Lessor and Lessee.

(1) “Services” refers to the configuration, installation, implementation, support, training, and other
professional and consulting services specifically identified on the applicable Schedule.

(m)“Software” refers to the computer programs specifically identified on the applicable Schedule.

(n) “Stipulated Loss Value” is the value of each unit of Hardware at various times during the Lease as
specified in the applicable Schedule; however, in no event will the Stipulated Loss Value of a Hardware
unit exceed its fair market value.

2. Lease.

(a) Lessor and Lessee intend that this MOLA constitute an operating lease and a true lease as those terms
are defined in the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13 and as provided for under the
Uniform Commercial Code — Leases, Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code Article 2A. Under no circumstances
shall this MOLA or any Schedules entered into under it be construed as a "finance lease" as defined in
Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code § 2A.103 (7). In addition, Lessor acknowledges that Lessee is not a "merchant
lessee" for purposes of Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code § 2A.511.

(b) Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the Assets described on each
Schedule. Each such Schedule constitutes a separate agreement between Lessor and Lessee. In addition,
each Schedule is subject to the terms and conditions of this MOLA as if a separate MOLA were executed
for such Schedule by the parties.

(c) In the event of Lessee's rightful rejection of the Assets as specified in Section 10 (“Inspection and
Acceptance”) of this MOLA, Lessee shall have the right, at its sole option, to cancel this Lease as to the
rejected Assets or as to all of the Assets to be leased under the Schedule applicable to such Assets. Upon
cancellation, Lessee shall have no obligations under this MOLA with respect to the portion of this Lease
so cancelled.

(d) Each Lessee has made an independent legal and management determination to enter into each Schedule.
DIR has not offered or provided any legal or management advice to Lessor or to any Lessee under any
Schedule. Lessee may negotiate additional terms or more advantageous terms with Lessor to satisfy
individual procurements in which case such terms shall be set forth in a Rider to the MOLA or the
Schedule. To the extent that any of the provisions of the MOLA conflict with any of the terms contained
in any Schedule, the terms of this MOLA shall control.

(e) If more than one Lessee is named in a Schedule, the liability of each named Lessee shall be joint and
several. However, unless DIR leases Assets for its own use, DIR is not a party to any Schedule executed
under this MOLA and is not responsible for Rent Payments or any other obligations under such Lessee’s
Schedule. The invalidation, fulfillment, waiver, termination, or other disposition of any rights or
obligations of either a Lessee or Lessor (or both of them) arising from the use of this MOLA in
conjunction with any one Schedule shall not affect the status of the rights or obligations of either or both

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 2 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



of those parties arising from the use of this MOLA in conjunction with any other Schedule, except in
the Event of Default as provided in Section 23 (“Default”) of this MOLA.

3. Term of MOLA.

The term of this MOLA shall commence (a) upon commencement of the term of the Contract, if this MOLA
was agreed to under the Contract, or (b) on the Effective Date specified in Amendment Number (XX), if
this MOLA is added to the Contract under such Amendment. The term of this MOLA shall continue until
the last to occur of the following: (i) the Schedule Term of each Schedule entered into by the parties has
expired or been terminated, or (ii) the Contract has expired or been terminated. In the event of any
termination or expiration of the Contract or termination of this MOLA, any provisions of the Contract and
this MOLA as may be necessary to preserve the rights of Lessor or Lessee hereunder shall survive said
termination or expiration.

4. Term of Schedule.

The term for each Schedule agreed to by a Lessee and Lessor under this MOLA shall commence on the date
specified in the Lessee Certificate of Acceptance, as described in Section 10. Unless earlier terminated as
provided for herein, the Schedule shall continue for the number of whole months or other payment periods
set forth in it (the “Schedule Term”). Specifically with respect to Hardware, under no circumstances shall
the Schedule Term exceed seventy five percent (75%) of the economic life of the Hardware, nor shall the
present value of the Rent Payments for the Hardware on the Schedule Commencement equal or exceed
ninety percent (90%) of the value of the Hardware. Lessee shall provide confirmation that its lease of assets
satisfies the two foregoing percentage limitations. The Schedule Term may be earlier terminated upon: (i)
the non-appropriation of funds pursuant to Section 8 (“Appropriation of Funds”) of this MOLA, (ii) an
Event of Loss, (iii) an Event of Default by Lessee and Lessor’s election to cancel the Schedule pursuant to
Section 24 (“Remedies”™) of this MOLA, (iv) an event of default or other breach of this Agreement by Lessor
and Lessee's election to cancel the Schedule pursuant to Section 24 (“Remedies”) of this MOLA, or (v) as
otherwise set forth herein.

5. Administration of MOLA.

(a) When a prospective Lessee wishes to lease Assets under this MOLA, the prospect will submit its request
directly to Lessor. Lessor shall apply the applicable pricing discounts as stated in Section 4 of the
Contract or the price as agreed upon by Lessee and Lessor in the applicable Schedule, whichever is
lower and submit the lease proposal to the prospective Lessee. If the prospective Lessee wishes to
proceed to lease Assets based on the proposal, Lessor will negotiate the applicable Rent Payment,
availability of Assets, and term of the Lease directly with the prospective Lessee.

(b) With respect to Lessor’s obligations under Section 5 of the Contract to report the sale and make payment
of the DIR administrative fee as defined in that Section, all leasing activities in conjunction to this
MOLA shall be treated as a “purchase sale.” Notwithstanding treatment of this Lease as a "purchase
sale" as to the transaction between Lessor and DIR under the Contract, however, under no circumstances
shall this MOLA be construed as creating anything other than a true lease and operating lease as stated
in Section 2 (“Lease”) hereof for the transaction(s) between Lessor and Lessee.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 3 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



(c) Upon agreement by Lessor and Lessee on the applicable Rent Payment, availability, Lease term, and
the like, Lessee may issue a purchase order in the amount indicated on the applicable Schedule to Lessor
for the Assets and reference the Contract number on the purchase order. Any pre-printed terms and
conditions on the Schedule issued by Lessor (with respect to any item other than the specific Assets
which are the subject of the Lease, the Schedule Term, and the Rent Payments), Lessor’s order
acknowledgement form or the like shall not be effective with respect to the lease of Assets hereunder.
Rather, the terms and conditions of this MOLA shall control in all respects.

(d) Until a Schedule is entered into by Lessor and a Lessee per the process set forth in this MOLA, neither
DIR nor any Lessee is obligated under this MOLA to lease Assets from Lessor nor is Lessor obligated

under this MOLA to lease Assets to a Lessee.

6. Rent Payments.

(a) During the Schedule Term and any renewal terms agreed to by Lessee as specified herein, Lessee agrees
to pay Lessor the Rent Payments set forth in the relevant Schedule for each Asset. Rent Payments shall
be the amount equal to the Rent Payment amount specified in the Schedule multiplied by the amount of
the total number of Rent Payments specified therein. Lessee shall pay Rent Payments in the amount and
on the due dates specified by Lessor until all Rent Payments and all other amounts due under the
Schedule have been paid in full. If the Schedule Commencement Date is other than the first day of a
month, Lessee shall make an initial payment on the Schedule Commencement Date in an amount equal
to one-thirticth of the Rent Payment specified in the Schedule for each day from the Schedule
Commencement Date (including the Schedule Commencement Date) through the last day of such month
(including that day). For example, if a scheduled payment amount is $3,000 and the Scheduled
Commencement date is the 15" of the month, a payment of $1,500 will be made. Under no
circumstances shall the present value of the Rent Payments exceed ninety percent (90%) of the value of
the Assets.

(b) Any amounts received by Lessor from Lessee in excess of Rent Payments and any other sums required
to be paid by Lessee shall be refunded to Lessee within ninety (90) calendar days. All Rent Payments
shall be paid to Lessor at the address stated on the Schedule or any other such place as Lessor or its
assigns may hereafter direct to Lessee. Lessee shall abide by Appendix A, Section 8J of the Contract in
making payments to Lessor. Lessor's (including its assignees') remedy for late payments is as set forth
in Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code.

Lessee acknowledges and agrees, except as specifically provided for in Section 8 (“Appropriation of
Funds”) of this MOLA and excluding claims resulting from a breach of Lessor’s obligations as set forth in
this MOLA or any Schedule or of Lessee's rights under Section 16 (“Quiet Enjoyment”) hereof, that
Lessee’s obligation to pay Rent and other sums payable hereunder, shall not be abated, reduced or subject
to offset or diminished as a result of any past, present or future claims Lessee may have against Lessor under
this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section or any other provision of this MOLA
shall affect or preclude Lessee from enforcing any and all other rights it may have against Lessor and its
assignees under this MOLA or otherwise affect any right Lessee may have against the manufacturer or
licensor of the Assets or any party other than Lessor.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 4 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



7. Liens.

Lessee shall keep the Assets free and clear of all levies, liens and encumbrances, and shall give Lessor
immediate notice of any attachment or other judicial process affecting any item of the Assets.

8. Appropriation of Funds.

Lessee intends to continue each Schedule to which it is a party for the Schedule Term and to pay the Rent
and other amounts due hereunder. Lessee reasonably believes that legally available funds in an amount
sufficient to pay all Rent during the Schedule Term can be obtained. Lessee further intends to act in good
faith to do those things reasonably and lawfully within its power to obtain and maintain funds from which
the Rent may be paid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event sufficient funds are not appropriated to
continue the Schedule Term for any fiscal period (as set forth on the Schedule) of Lessee beyond the fiscal
period first in effect at the commencement of the Schedule Term, Lessee may terminate the Schedule with
regard to those of the Assets on the Schedule so affected. Lessee shall endeavor to provide Lessor with
written notice sixty (60) days prior to the end of its current Fiscal Period confirming which Assets on the
Schedule will be so affected by the termination. All obligations of Lessee to make Rent Payments due with
respect to those Assets after the end of the Fiscal Period for which such termination applies will cease, all
interests of Lessee in those Assets will terminate, Lessee shall surrender those Assets in accordance with
Section 15 (“Option to Extend; Surrender of Assets”) of this MOLA, and the applicable Schedule shall be
deemed amended. Lessee represents and warrants it has adequate funds to meet its obligations during the
first fiscal period of the Schedule Term. Lessor and Lessee intend that the obligation of Lessee to make Rent
Payments under this MOLA shall constitute a current expense of Lessee and shall not in any way be
construed to be a debt of Lessee in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or
requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained herein
constitute a pledge of the general revenues, funds or monies of Lessee or the State of Texas, as applicable,
beyond the fiscal period for which sufficient funds have been appropriated to make Rent Payments
hereunder.

9. Assignment of Warranties.

Each Schedule is intended to be a true lease and operating lease as defined in Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code
Article 2A. Lessor has acquired or will acquire the Assets in connection with this MOLA and hereby agrees
to assign to Lessee any warranties provided to Lessor with respect to the Assets during the Term of the
applicable Schedule, to the extent the warranties are assignable. Unless Lessor is the manufacturer or is
otherwise liable under the Contract, Lessor shall not be liable for damages for any reason for any act or
omission of the manufacturer of the Assets. Except as provided in Section 24 (“Remedies”) hereof, Lessee
acknowledges that none of the following shall relieve Lessee from the obligations under this MOLA during
the Schedule Term unless due to Lessor’s acts or omissions: (i) Lessee’s dissatisfaction with any unit of the
Assets, (ii) the failure of an Asset to remain in useful condition for the Schedule Term, or (iii) the loss or
right of possession of the Assets (or any part thereof) by Lessee. Lessee shall have no right, title or interest
in or to the Assets except the right to use the same upon the terms and conditions herein contained. The
Assets shall remain the sole and exclusive personal property of Lessor and not be deemed a fixture whether
or not it becomes attached to any real property of Lessee.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 5 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



10. Inspection and Acceptance.

Promptly upon delivery of the Assets, Lessee will inspect and test the Assets. No later than twenty (20)
business days following its date of delivery (or, if the Assets are part of a system, the date of last delivery
of the Assets comprising the system), Lessee will execute and deliver either (i) a Certificate of Acceptance,
or (ii) written notification of any defects in the Assets. If Lessee has not given notice within such time
period, the Assets shall be deemed accepted by Lessee as of the twentieth (20™) business day, as described
above. In the event Lessee does not accept the Assets, Vendor will promptly remove the Assets from
Lessee’s premises and deliver conforming Assets within ten (10) business days thereafter. If conforming
Assets are not delivered within that timeframe, Lessee may terminate the Schedule on written notice to
Lessor. Lessee's acceptance of any Assets shall not be deemed to waive any rights Lessee may have against
the manufacturer or licensor, as applicable. Lessor and its assigns, including either of their respective agents
shall have the right to inspect the Assets upon reasonable notice to Lessee and during normal business hours
provided that anyone who does so has first executed a non-disclosure agreement acceptable to Lessee.

11. Installation and Delivery: Use of Assets; Repair and Maintenance.

(a) Except as set forth in this MOLA, all transportation, delivery, installation, and de-installation costs
associated with the Assets shall be borne by Lessee. Lessee shall provide a place of installation for the
Assets, which conforms to the requirements of the manufacturer and Lessor.

(b) Subject to the terms hereof, Lessee shall be entitled to use the Assets for the conduct of its business in
compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations of the jurisdiction in which the Assets are located.
Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Assets for any purpose for which, according to the
specification of the manufacturer, the Assets are not designed.

(c) Lessee, at its expense, shall take good and proper care of the Hardware and make all repairs and
replacements necessary to maintain and preserve the Hardware and keep the Hardware in good order
and condition (reasonable wear and tear excepted). Unless Lessor shall otherwise consent in writing,
Lessee shall, at its own expense, enter into and maintain in force a maintenance agreement covering
each Hardware unit. Lessee shall furnish Lessor with a copy of such agreement, upon request. Lessee
shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements, or add attachments to the Hardware without
the prior written consent of Lessor, except for additions or attachments to the Hardware leased by Lessee
from Lessor or purchased by Lessee from the manufacturer of the Hardware (or an authorized distributor
of the manufacturer) or any other person approved by Lessor. Lessee shall affix on a prominent place
on each item of Hardware any tags, decals or labels supplied by Lessor to Lessee which describe the
ownership of the Hardware. Subject to the provisions of Section 15(b) under “Option to Extend;
Surrender of Hardware and Software Assets,” Lessee agrees to restore the Hardware to Return Condition
prior to its return to Lessor.

12. Relocation of Hardware and Software.

Except as set forth on the applicable Schedule, Lessee shall at all times keep the Hardware and Software
within its exclusive possession and control. Lessee may move the Hardware or Software to another location
of Lessee within the continental United States, provided Lessee is not in default on any Schedule and pays
all costs associated with such relocation. If such relocation requires Lessor’s prior written consent, Lessee

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 6 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



shall obtain such consent prior to relocating the Hardware or Software, as applicable, which consent Lessor
shall not unreasonably withhold. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in those situations where consent is
otherwise required, Lessee may move the Hardware or Software to another location within Texas without
notification to, or the consent of, Lessor; provided, however, that not later than December 31 of each
calendar year, Lessee shall provide Lessor a written report detailing the total amount of Hardware and
Software at each location of Lessee as of that date, and the complete address for each location. Lessor shall
make all filings and returns for property taxes due with respect to the Hardware and Software, and Lessee
agrees that it shall not make or file any property tax returns, including information returns, with respect to
the Hardware and Software.

13. Taxes.

Unless otherwise agreed by the parties on the applicable Schedule, Lessor will pay any Imposition or file
any forms or returns with respect thereto. Lessee shall, when billed, and with copy of Imposition invoice(s)
with respect to Assets specified on the Schedule, reimburse Lessor for such payment. For purposes of this
paragraph “Impositions” means all taxes, including personal property taxes and fees, without pro-ration as
described in the Financial Disclosure Summary Work Sheet (Attachment 1) hereafter imposed, assessed or
payable during the term of the relevant Schedule including any extension thereof. Because the
reimbursement date for an Imposition may occur after the expiration or termination of the term of the
relevant Schedule, it is understood and agreed that Lessee's liability to reimburse for such Impositions shall
survive the expiration or termination of the term of the relevant Schedule.

14. Ownership.

The Hardware and Software shall at all times be and remain the sole and exclusive property of Lessor,
subject to the parties’ rights under any applicable software license agreement. Lessee shall have no right,
title or interest in the Hardware except a leasehold interest as provided for herein. Lessee agrees that the
Hardware shall be and remain personal property and shall not be so affixed to realty as to become a fixture
or otherwise to lose its identity as the separate property of Lessor. Upon Lessor’s request, Lessee will enter
into agreements necessary to ensure that the Hardware remains the personal property of Lessor.

15. Option to Extend: Surrender of Hardware and Software Assets.

(a) Not less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the initial Schedule Term, Lessor shall notify
Lessee in writing of options to extend the Schedule for continued use of the Hardware or Software
specified in that Schedule. If Lessee desires to exercise any of the options offered by Lessor (and
provided that, with respect to Hardware, any extension does not exceed seventy five percent (75%) of
its economic life), Lessee shall give Lessor irrevocable written notice of the option Lessee intends to
exercise at least forty-five (45) days before the expiration of such Schedule Term. In the event the Lease
is extended for some but not all of the Hardware and Software specified on a Schedule, the Schedule
shall be updated to reflect those changes. At the end of the Schedule Term (as well as with respect to
any Hardware and Software not extended as described immediately above), Lessee will surrender and
return the Hardware and Software to Lessor in compliance with Section 15(b) below.

(b) Except as specified otherwise herein, upon the expiration, early termination as provided herein, or final
termination of the Schedule, Lessee, at its cost and expense, shall promptly return the Hardware, freight

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 7 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



prepaid, to Lessor in good repair and working order, with reasonably unblemished physical appearance
and with no defects which affect the operation or performance of the Hardware (“Return Condition”),
reasonable wear and tear excepted. If the Hardware is not in Return Condition, Lessee shall, at its option,
either restore the Hardware (at Lessee’s cost) to Return Condition or pay for the Hardware at its
Stipulated Loss Value if the Hardware is not reasonably repairable. Lessee shall arrange and pay for the
de-installation and packing of the Hardware in suitable packaging, and return the Hardware to Lessor at
the location specified by Lessor; provided, however, that such location shall be within the United States
no farther than 500 miles from the original Lessee delivery location, unless otherwise agreed to on the
applicable Schedule. At its option and expense, Lessor shall have the right to supervise and direct the
preparation of the Hardware for return. If, upon termination or expiration of the Schedule for any reason,
Lessee fails or refuses to return to Lessor a Hardware unit or Software program specified in that
Schedule or to pay Lessor the Stipulated Loss Value for a Hardware unit, Lessee shall remain liable for
Rent Payments for that unit or program up to the date on which the unit or program is returned to the
address specified by Lessor (or on which Lessee has paid Lessor the Stipulated Loss Value). In such
event and specifically with respect to the Hardware, Lessor shall also have the right to enter Lessee’s
premises or any other premises where the Hardware may be found upon reasonable written notice to the
Lessee and during normal business hours, and subject to Lessees reasonable safety and security
requirements to take possession of and to remove the Hardware, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense,
without legal process. Lessee understands that it may have a right under law to notice and a hearing
prior to repossession of the Hardware. However, as an inducement to Lessor to enter into a transaction,
but only to the extent that Lessee, if a state agency, has statutory authority to do so, Lessee hereby
expressly waives all rights conferred by existing law to notice and a hearing prior to such repossession
by Lessor or any officer authorized by law to effect repossession and hereby releases Lessor from all
liability in connection with such repossession except as provided by Paragraph b. Without waiving the
doctrines of sovereign immunity and immunity from suit and to the extent authorized by the Constitution
and laws of the State of Texas, Lessee’s obligation to return Hardware may, at Lessor’s option, be
specifically enforced by Lessor.

16. Quiet Enjoyment.

During the Schedule Term, Lessor shall not interfere with Lessee’s quiet enjoyment and use of the Assets
as long as an Event of Default (as hereinafter defined in Section 23 (“Default”) of the MOLA) has not
occurred.

17. Warranties regarding the Assets.

Lessor acknowledges that warranties made by the manufacturer or licensor of the Assets, if any, inure to
the benefit of Lessee. Lessee agrees to pursue any warranty claim directly against such manufacturer or
licensor of the Assets and shall not pursue any such claim against Lessor.

18. No Warranties by Lessor regarding the Assets.

Except as set forth in the Contract, Lessee acknowledges that Lessor is not the manufacturer or licensor of
the Hardware or Software Assets. Lessee agrees that Lessor makes no representations or warranties of
whatsoever nature, directly or indirectly, express or implied, as to the suitability, durability, fitness for use,
merchantability, condition, or quality of the Hardware or Software Assets or any unit thereof. Except to the

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 8 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



extent Lessor is the manufacturer or licensor of the Hardware or Software Assets, Lessee specifically waives
all right to make claim against Lessor for breach of any warranty of any kind whatsoever; and with respect
to Lessor, Lessee leases the Hardware and Software “as is”. Except to the extent Lessor is the manufacturer
or licensor of the Hardware or Software Assets, Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any loss, damage,
or expense of any kind or nature caused directly or indirectly by any Hardware or Software leased hereunder,
or by the use or maintenance thereof, or by the repairs, service or adjustment thereto or any delay or failure
to provide any thereof, or by any interruption of service or loss of use thereof, or for any loss of business or
damage whatsoever and howsoever caused. Lessor agrees to assign to Lessee, upon Lessee’s request
therefor, any warranty of a manufacturer or licensor or seller relating to the Hardware and Software that
may have been given to Lessor.

19. Risk of Loss.

Commencing upon delivery and continuing throughout the Schedule Term, Lessee shall bear the entire risk
of loss or damage in respect to the Hardware specified on the Schedule, whether partial or complete, from
any cause whatsoever. Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor regarding any Event of Loss. Upon any Event
of Loss, Lessee shall, at its option: (a) immediately repair the affected Hardware so that it is in good
condition and working order, (b) replace the affected Hardware with identical equipment of at least equal
value, in good condition and repair, and transfer clear title thereto to Lessor, or (c) to the extent permitted
by law, pay to Lessor, within thirty (30) days of the Event of Loss, an amount equal to the Stipulated Loss
Value for such affected Hardware unit, plus any other unpaid amounts then due under the Schedule. If an
Event of Loss occurs as to part of the Hardware for which the SLV is paid, a prorated amount of each Rent
Payment shall abate from the date the SLV payment is received by Lessor. The SLV shall be an amount
equal to the sum of all future Rent Payments from the last Rent Payment date to the end of the Schedule
Term with such Rent Payments discounted to present value at the like-term Treasury Bill rate for the
remaining Schedule Term in effect on the date of such Event of Loss, or if such rate is not permitted by law,
then at the lowest permitted rate.

In the event of a governmental taking of a Hardware unit for an indefinite period or for a stated period,
which does not extend beyond the Schedule Term, all obligations of Lessee with respect to such Hardware
unit (including payment of Rent) shall continue. So long as Lessee is not in default hereunder, Lessor shall
pay to Lessee all sums received by Lessor from the government by reason of such taking.

20. Representations and Warranties of Lessee.

Lessee represents and warrants for the benefit of Lessor and its assigns, and Lessee will provide an opinion
of counsel to the effect that, as of the time of execution of the MOLA and each Schedule between Lessor
and Lessee:

(a) Lessee is either a Texas state agency or Texas local government, as defined in Section 2054.003, Texas
Government Code (including institutions of higher education as defined in Section 2054.003 (8-a),
Texas Government Code) or a state agency purchasing from a DIR contract through an Interagency
Agreement, as authorized by Chapter 771, Texas Government Code. Lessee has made an independent
legal and management determination to enter into this transaction;

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 9 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



(b) Each Schedule executed by Lessee has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Lessee and
constitutes a valid, legal and binding true lease and operating lease agreement of Lessee, enforceable in
accordance with its terms;

(c) No approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any federal or other governmental
authority or instrumentality with respect to the entering into or performance by Lessee of any Schedule
between Lessor and Lessee;

(d) The entering into and performance of any Schedule between Lessor and Lessee, this MOLA or any
Schedule will not violate any judgment, order, law or regulation applicable to Lessee or result in any
breach of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest or
other encumbrance upon assets of Lessee or on the Hardware or Software leased under any Schedule
between Lessor and Lessee pursuant to any instrument to which Lessee is a party or by which it or its
assets may be bound,

(e) To the best of Lessee’s knowledge and belief, there are no suits or proceedings pending or threatened
against or affecting Lessee, which if determined adversely to Lessee will have a material adverse effect
on the ability of Lessee to fulfill its obligations under the MOLA or any Schedule between Lessor and
Lessee;

(f) The use of the Assets is essential to Lessee’s proper, efficient and economic operation, and Lessee will
sign and provide to Lessor upon execution of each Schedule between Lessor and Lessee hereto written
certification to that effect; and

(g) Lessee represents and warrants that (i) It has authority to enter into any Schedule under this MOLA, (ii)
the persons executing a Schedule have been duly authorized to execute the Schedule on Lessee’s behalf,
(i11) all information supplied to Lessor is true and correct, including all credit and financial information
and (iv) it is able to meet all its financial obligations, including the Rent Payments hereunder.

21. Representation and Warranties of DIR.

DIR represents and warrants for the benefit of Lessor and its assigns, and DIR will provide an opinion of
counsel to the effect that, as of the time of execution of the MOLA:

(a) DIR is a State agency as defined in Section 2251.001, Texas Government Code. DIR has not provided
Lessee or Lessor with any legal or management advice regarding the MOLA or any Schedule executed
pursuant thereto;

(b) This MOLA has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by DIR and constitutes a valid, legal and
binding agreement of DIR, enforceable in accordance with its terms;

(c) No approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any federal or other governmental
authority or governmental authority or instrumentality with respect to the entering into or performance
by DIR of this MOLA;

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 10 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



(d) The entering into and performance of the MOLA does not violate any judgment, order, law or regulation
applicable to DIR or result in any breach of, constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any
lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance upon assets of DIR or on the Hardware or Software
pursuant to any instrument to which DIR is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound,

(e) To the best of DIR’s knowledge and belief, there are no suits or proceedings pending or threatened
against or affecting DIR, which if determined adversely to DIR will have a material adverse effect on

the ability of DIR to fulfill its obligations under the MOLA;

(f) DIR is authorized to charge and collect the administrative fee as set forth within Section 5 of the
Contract; and

(g) Lessor’s payment of the administrative fee to DIR shall not constitute an illegal gratuity or otherwise
violate Texas law.

22. Representations and Warranties of Lessor.

Lessor represents and warrants for the benefit of DIR and each Lessee:

(a) Lessor is an entity authorized and validly existing under the laws of its state of organization, is
authorized to do business in Texas, and is not in default as to taxes owed to the State of Texas and any
of its political subdivisions;

(b) The MOLA and each Schedule executed in conjunction to this MOLA have been duly authorized,
executed and delivered by Lessor and constitute valid, legal and binding agreements of Lessor,
enforceable with respect to the obligations of Lessor herein in accordance with their terms;

(c) No approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any federal or other governmental
authority or instrumentality with respect to the entering into or performance by Lessor of this MOLA or
any Schedule;

(d) The entering into and performance of the MOLA or any Schedule will not violate any judgment, order,
law or regulation applicable to Lessor or result in any breach of, or constitute a default under, or result
in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance upon the assets of Lessor,
including the Hardware or Software leased under the MOLA and Schedules thereto, pursuant to any
instrument to which Lessor is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound;

(e) To the best of Lessor’s knowledge and belief, there are no suits or proceedings pending or threatened
against or affecting Lessor, which if determined adversely to Lessor will have a material adverse effect
on the ability of Lessor to fulfill its obligations under the MOLA or any Schedule;

(f) Lessor acknowledges that DIR and any Lessee that is a state agency, as government agencies, are
subject to the Texas Public Information Act, and that DIR and Lessees that are state agencies will
comply with such Act, including all opinions of the Texas Attorney General's Office concerning this
Act.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 11 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



23. Default.

Lessee shall be in default under a Schedule upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events
(each an “Event of Default”): (a) nonpayment or incomplete payment by Lessee of Rent or any other sum
payable on its due date; (b) Lessee’s material breach of this MOLA, any Schedule, or any applicable
software license agreement, which is not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from
Lessor; (c) Lessee’s filing of any proceedings commencing bankruptcy or the taking of other similar action
by Lessee under any state insolvency or similar law, (d) the filing of any involuntary petition against Lessee
or the appointment of any receiver not dismissed within sixty (60) days from the date of said filing or
appointment; (¢) subjection of a substantial part of Lessee’s property or any part of the Hardware to any
levy, seizure, assignment or sale for or by any creditor or governmental agency; or (f) any representation or
warranty made by Lessee in this MOLA, any Schedule or in any document furnished by Lessee to Lessor
in connection therewith or with the acquisition or use of the Assets being or becoming untrue in any material
respect.

24. Remedies.
(a) Lessor’s Remedies.

i.  Upon the occurrence of an “Event of Default,” Lessor may, in its sole discretion, do any one or
more of the following:

A. after giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessee of the Event of Default, during which
time Lessee shall have the opportunity to cure such Default, terminate any or all Schedules
executed by Lessor and the defaulting Lessee;

B. without Lessee and DIR waiving the doctrines of sovereign immunity and immunity from suit,
and to the extent allowed by the laws and Constitution of the State of Texas, Lessor may
proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the performance of the terms of the Schedule;

C. after giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessee of the Event of Default, during which
time Lessee shall have the opportunity to cure such Default, and whether or not the Schedule
is terminated, take possession of the Hardware and Software wherever located, without
additional demand, liability, court order or other process of law. To the extent permitted by
Texas law, Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor, its assigns or the agents of either to enter upon
the premises where such Hardware or Software is located or cause Lessee, and Lessee hereby
agrees, to return such Hardware and Software to Lessor in accordance with the requirements
of Section 15 (“Option to Extend; Surrender of Hardware and Software Assets”) hereof;

D. by notice to Lessee, and to the extent permitted by law, declare immediately due and payable
and recover from Lessee, as liquidated damages and as a remedy, the sum of:

I.  the present value of the Rent owed from the earlier of the last date of payment by Lessee
or the date Lessor obtains a judgment against Lessee until the end of the Schedule Term
plus, if the Hardware is not returned to or repossessed by Lessor, the present value of the

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 12 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



Stipulated Loss Value of the Hardware at the end of the Schedule Term, each discounted
at a rate equal to the rate used by Lessor for business opportunity analysis;

II.  without Lessee and DIR waiving the doctrines of sovereign immunity and immunity from
suit, and to the extent allowed by the laws and Constitution of the State of Texas, costs,
fees (including all attorneys’ fees and court costs) and expenses associated with collecting
said sums; and

III.  interest on (I) from the date of default at 1)2% per month or portion thereof (or the highest
rate allowable by law, if less) and, on (II) from the date Lessor incurs such fees, costs or
expenses.

ii.  Upon return or repossession of the Hardware, Lessor may, if it so decides in its sole discretion,
upon notice to Lessee, use reasonable efforts to sell, re-lease or otherwise dispose of such
Hardware, in such manner and upon such terms as Lessor may determine in its sole discretion, so
long as such manner and terms are commercially reasonable. Upon disposition of the Hardware,
Lessor shall credit the Net Proceeds (as defined below) to the damages paid or payable by Lessee.
Proceeds upon sale of the Hardware shall be the sale price paid to Lessor less the Stipulated Loss
Value in effect as of the date of default. Proceeds upon a re-lease of the Hardware shall be all rents
to be received for a term not to exceed the remaining Schedule Term, discounted to present value
as of the commencement date of the re-lease at Lessor’s current applicable debt rate. Without
Lessee and DIR waiving the doctrines of sovereign immunity and immunity from suit, and to the
extent allowed by the laws and Constitution of the State of Texas, “Net Proceeds” shall be the
Proceeds of sale or re-lease as determined above, less all costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in
the recovery, storage and repair of the Hardware, in the remarketing or disposition thereof, or
otherwise as a result of Lessee’s default, including any court costs and attorney’s fees and interest
on the foregoing at eighteen percent (18%) per annum or the highest rate allowable by law, if less,
calculated from the dates such costs and expenses were incurred until received by Lessor. Lessee
shall remain liable for the amount by which all sums, including liquidated damages, due from
Lessee exceeds the Net Proceeds. Net Proceeds in excess thereof are the property of and shall be
retained by Lessor.

iii.  No termination, repossession or other act by Lessor in the exercise of its rights and remedies upon
an Event or Default by Lessee shall relieve Lessee from any of its obligations hereunder. No
remedy referred to in this Section is intended to be exclusive, but each shall be cumulative and in
addition to any other remedy referred to above or otherwise available to Lessor at law or in equity.

iv.  Neither DIR nor non-defaulting Lessees shall be deemed in default under the MOLA or Schedules
because of the default of a particular Lessee. Lessor’s remedies under this Section 24 shall not
extend to DIR and those non-defaulting Lessees.

(b) Lessee’s Remedies. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Lessee shall have all rights
provided under Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code § 2A.508 through § 2A.522, including without limitation, the
right to cancel a Schedule and recover damages from Lessor in the event of nonperformance of or other
default by Lessor hereunder.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 13 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16



(c) Each party agrees that any delay or failure by the other party to enforce that party’s rights under this

25.

MOLA or a Schedule does not prevent that party from enforcing its rights at a later time.

Notices and Waivers.

(a) All notices relating to this MOLA shall be delivered to DIR or Lessor as specified in Section 6 of the

Contract, or to another representative and address subsequently specified in writing by the appropriate
parties hereto. All notices relating to a Schedule shall be delivered in person to an officer of Lessor or
Lessee or shall be given by certified or registered mail or overnight carrier to Lessor or Lessee at its
respective address shown on the Schedule or to another address subsequently specified in writing by the
appropriate parties thereof. DIR, Lessee, and Lessor intend and agree that a photocopy or facsimile of
this MOLA or a Schedule and all related documents, including but not limited to the Acceptance
Certificate, with their signatures thereon shall be treated as originals, and shall be deemed to be as
binding, valid, genuine, and authentic as an original signature document for all purposes.

(b) A waiver of a specific default shall not be a waiver of any other or subsequent default. No waiver of

26.

(2)

(b)

any provision of this MOLA or a provision of a Schedule shall be a waiver of any other provision or
matter, and all such waivers shall be in writing and executed by an officer of the waiving party. No
failure on the part of a party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right hereunder shall operate as
a waiver thereof.

Assignment by Lessor: Assicnment or Sublease by Lessee.

Upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to Lessee and provided that any such assignee expressly
assumes Lessor’s obligations under this MOLA and each Schedule, Lessor may (i) assign all or a portion
of Lessor’s right, title and interest in this MOLA and/or any Schedule; (ii) grant a security interest in
the right, title and interest of Lessor in the MOLA, any Schedule and/or any Asset; and/or (iii) sell or
transfer its title and interest as owner or licensor of the Hardware and Software and/or as Lessor under
any Schedule; and DIR and each Lessee leasing Hardware under the MOLA understand and agree that
Lessor’s assigns may each do the same (hereunder collectively “Assignment”). All such Assignments
shall be subject to each Lessee’s rights under the Schedule(s) executed between it and Lessor and to
DIR’s rights under the MOLA. Each Lessee leasing Assets through Schedules under this MOLA and
DIR hereby consent to such Assignments and agree to execute and deliver promptly such
acknowledgements, Opinions of Counsel and other instruments reasonably requested to effect such
Assignment. Lessor shall remain liable for performance under the MOLA and any Schedule(s) executed
hereunder to the extent Lessor’s assigns do not perform Lessor’s obligations under the MOLA and
Schedule(s) executed hereunder. Upon any such Assignment, all references to Lessor shall also include
all such assigns, whether specific reference thereto is otherwise made herein.

Lessee will not sell, assign, sublet, pledge or otherwise encumber, or permit a lien to exist on or against
any interest in this MOLA or the Assets without Lessor’s prior written consent except otherwise
permitted under this MOLA; provided, however, that no such prior written consent from Lessor is
necessary in the event of a legislative mandate to transfer the MOLA to another state agency.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 14 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA

04/21/16



27.

Delivery of Related Documents.

For each Schedule, Lessee will provide the following documents and information satisfactory to Lessor: (a)
Certificate of Acceptance (if Acceptance has taken place); (b) Opinion of Counsel; (¢) Financial Statements;
(d) incumbency certificate; and (e) other documents specified in the applicable Schedule as being reasonably
required by Lessor.

28.

(2)

(b)

Miscellaneous.

Prior to delivery of any Assets, the obligations of Lessor hereunder shall be suspended to the extent that
it is hindered or prevented from performing because of causes beyond its control. In such event, the
obligation of Lessee to commence Rents for such Assets shall also be suspended.

Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that there are no agreements or understanding, written or oral, between
them with respect to the Assets, other than as set forth in this MOLA, including the Contract, and in
each Schedule to which Lessee is a signatory party. Lessor and Lessee further acknowledge that this
MOLA, including the Contract, and each Schedule to which Lessee is a party contain the entire
agreement between Lessor and Lessee and supersedes all previous discussions and terms and conditions
of any purchase orders issued by Lessee, order acknowledgement and other forms issued by Lessor, and
the like. DIR and Lessor acknowledge that there are no agreements or understandings, written or oral,
between them other than as set forth in this MOLA and the Contract and that both contain the entire
agreement between them. The terms and conditions of this MOLA may be amended only by written
instrument executed by Lessor and DIR. The terms of a Schedule may only be amended in a writing
signed by both Lessee and Lessor.

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433 Page 15 of 17 Appendix E, MOLA

04/21/16



Attachment 1 to the Master Operating Lease Agreement
Financial Disclosure Summary

Lease Rate Factor(s): Response Notes
Equipment Type A
Equipment Type B
Equipment Type C
How is Daily Rental calculated?
Is Daily Rental invoiced separately g Leos
or rolled into monthly rental? O N/A
O Yes
Is thi tep L ?
s this a Step Lease O No
Oy
Does this lease include software? es
O No
OA
If yes, who owns the software? gency
O Lessor
Personal Property Tax Response Notes
Estimated PPT
O Agency
PPT P
ayment made by O Lessor on Agency behalf
O Agency pays direct
[ Lessor pays and passes invoice
PPT calculation method through
[ Lessor estimates and includes
[ Lessor sets PPT at disclosed rate
O N/A - Agency pays direct
If PPT rate changes, how are O N/A - Lessor pays/passes invoice
charge backs or short falls through
handled? [ Lessor is responsible
[ Lessee is invoiced for short fall
Equipment Schedule Details Response Notes

Can Agency make decisions at
asset level (extend, purchase,
return)?

O Asset level
O All and not less than all

Does this ES auto extend?

O Yes
O No

If Yes, how long?

What is the cost of the Auto
extension?

What is the notice period?

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433

Page 16 of 17

Appendix E, MOLA

04/21/16




Are negotiated extensions FMV

O Yes

packaging?

If yes, what is the cost if not
returned?

based? O No
On FMV, can Agency select own O Yes
evaluator? O No
Is asset and lease information O Yes
available online? O No
End of Lease Details Response Notes
Where are the assets returned to?
What is the return freight cost?
. O Agency

Who pays the return freight cost? O Lessor

O Yes
Do | need to return original OO No

Do | need to return original
manuals and documentation?

O Yes

O No

If yes, what is the cost if not
returned?

Do | need to return software?

O Yes

O No

If yes, what is the cost if not
returned?

Is there an FMV purchase cost
cap?

O Yes

O No

If yes, what is the cost cap
percentage?

What is the cost for a lost asset?

What is the cost for missing
equipment?

What is the cost for data
sanitization on assets with
memory?

What is the cost for data
sanitization?

What is the cost for on-site data
destruction?

DIR Contract # DIR-CPO-4433

Page 17 of 17

Appendix E, MOLA
04/21/16




DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

STATE OF TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES

CONTRACT FOR PRODUCTS AND RELATED SERVICES
Sharp Electronics Corporation
1. Introduction

A. Parties

This Contract for products and related services is entered into between the State of Texas, acting
by and through the Department of Information Resources (hereinafter “DIR") with its principal
place of business at 300 West 15 Street, Suite 1300, Austin, Texas 78701, and Sharp Electronics
Corporation (hereinafter “Vendor”), with its principal place of business at 100 Paragon Drive,
Montvale, NJ 07645.

B. Compliance with Procurement Laws

This Contract is the result of compliance with applicable procurement laws of the State of Texas.
DIR issued a solicitation on the Comptroller of Public Accounts’ Electronic State Business Daily,
Request for Offer (RFO) DIR-TSO-TMP-419, on 12/12/2018, for Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document
Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services.
Upon execution of this Contract, a notice of award for RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419 shall be posted by
DIR on the Electronic State Business Daily.

C. Order of Precedence

For purchase transactions under this Contract, the order of precedence shall be as follows: this
Contract; Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions For Products and Related Services
Contracts; Appendix B, Vendor’s Historically Underutilized Businesses Subcontracting Plan;
Appendix C, Pricing Index; Appendix D, Customer Service Agreement; Appendix E, Master
Operating Lease Agreement; Appendix F, Master Lease Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response
to RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including
all addenda; are incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between DIR and
Vendor governing purchase transactions. For Lease transactions under this Contract the order of
precedence shall be as follows: this Contract; Appendix E, Master Operating Lease Agreement;
Appendix F, Master Lease Agreement, as applicable depending on the type of lease; Appendix A,
Standard Terms and Conditions For Products and Related Services Contracts; Appendix B,
Vendor’s Historically Underutilized Businesses Subcontracting Plan; Appendix C, Pricing Index;
Appendix D, Customer Service Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response to RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-
419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all addenda; are
incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between DIR and Vendor
governing lease transactions. In the event of a conflict between the documents listed in this
paragraph related to purchases, the controlling document shall be this Contract, then Appendix
A, then Appendix B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D, then Appendix E, then Appendix F, then
Exhibit 1, and finally Exhibit 2. In the event of a conflict between the documents listed in this

Department of Information Resources Page 1 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

paragraph related to lease transactions, the controlling document shall be this Contract, then
Appendix E or Appendix F, depending on the type of lease transaction, then Appendix A, then
Appendix B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D, then Exhibit 1, and finally Exhibit 2. In the event
and to the extent any provisions contained in multiple documents address the same or
substantially the same subject matter but do not actually conflict, the more recent provisions shall
be deemed to have superseded earlier provisions.

2. Term of Contract
The initial term of this Contract shall be two (2) years commencing on the last date of approval by
DIR and Vendor, with one (1) optional two-year renewal and one (1) optional one-year renewal.
Prior to expiration of each term, the contract will renew automatically under the same terms and
conditions unless either party provides notice to the other party 60 days in advance of the renewal
date stating that the party wishes to discuss modification of terms or not renew. Additionally, the
parties by mutual agreement may extend the term for up to ninety (90) additional calendar days.

3. Product and Service Offerings

A. Products

Products available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services;
Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software
and Services as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may incorporate changes to
their product offering; however, any changes must be within the scope of products awarded
based on the posting described in Section 1.B above. Vendor may not add a manufacturer’s
product line which was not included in the Vendor’s response to the solicitation described in
Section 1.B above.

B. Services
Services available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers,
3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document
Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services
as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may incorporate changes to their service
offering; however, any changes must be within the scope of services awarded based on the
posting described in Section 1.B above.

4, Pricing
Pricing to the DIR Customer shall be as set forth in Appendix A, Section 8, Pricing, Purchase Orders,
Invoices and Payment, and as set forth in Appendix C, Pricing Index, and shall include the DIR
Administrative Fee.

5. DIR Administrative Fee
A) The administrative fee to be paid by the Vendor to DIR based on the dollar value of all sales to
Customers pursuant to this Contract is three-quarters of one percent (.75%). Payment will be
calculated for all sales, net of returns and credits. For example, the administrative fee for sales
totaling $100,000 shall be $750.00.

Department of Information Resources Page 2 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

B) All prices quoted to Customers shall include the administrative fee. DIR reserves the right to
change this fee upwards or downwards during the term of this Contract, upon written notice to
Vendor without further requirement for a formal contract amendment. Any change in the
administrative fee shall be incorporated in the price to the Customer.

6. Notification
All notices under this Contract shall be sent to a party at the respective address indicated below.

If sent to the State:

Kelly A Parker, CTPM, CTCM

Director, Cooperative Contracts
Department of Information Resources
300 W. 15%™ St., Suite 1300

Austin, Texas 78701

Phone: (512) 475-1647

Facsimile: (512) 475-4759

Email: kelly.parker@dir.texas.gov

If sent to the Vendor:

Brenda Siemer

Sharp Electronics Corporation

100 Paragon Drive Montvale, NJ 07645
Phone: (201) 529-0354

Facsimile: (201) 529-9454

Email: siemerb@sharpsec.com

7. Software License, Service and Leasing Agreements

A. Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement
Regardless of any other provision or other license terms which may be issued by Vendor after
the effective date of this Contract, and irrespective of whether any such provisions have been
proposed prior to or after the issuance of a Purchase Order for products licensed under this
Contract, or the fact that such other agreement may be affixed to or accompany software
upon delivery (shrink-wrap), the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract shall
supersede and govern the license terms between Customers and Vendor. It is the
Customer’s responsibility to read the Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement and determine
if the Customer accepts the license terms as amended by this Contract. If the Customer
does not agree with the license terms, Customer shall be responsible for negotiating with
the reseller to obtain additional changes in the Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement
language from the software publisher.

B. Service Agreement
Services provided under this Contract shall be in accordance with the Service Agreement as
set forth in Appendix D of this Contract. No changes to the Service Agreement terms and
conditions may be made unless previously agreed to by Vendor and DIR.

Department of Information Resources Page 3 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

C. Master Operating Lease Agreement
DIR and Vendor hereby agree that Vendor is authorized to utilize the Master Operating Lease
Agreement in Appendix E of this Contract for Lessees that are Texas State Agencies or
otherwise authorized to conduct lease transactions through DIR contracts.

D. Master Lease Agreement

DIR and Vendor hereby agree that Vendor is authorized to utilize the Master Lease Agreement
in Appendix F of this Contract for DIR authorized entities as Lessees that are not Texas State
Agencies or otherwise required by statute to utilize the Texas Public Finance Authority for
such leasing transactions. Texas State Agencies that have the requisite capital authority and
who are not required to utilize such authority via the Texas Public Finance Authority may or
may not be eligible to utilize the Master Lease Agreement; each such agency must confer with
its own counsel to make this determination.

E. Conflicting or Additional Terms
In the event that conflicting or additional terms in Vendor Software License Agreements,
Shrink/Click Wrap License Agreements, Service Agreements or linked or supplemental
documents amend or diminish the rights of DIR Customers or the State, such conflicting or
additional terms shall not take precedence over the terms of this Contract.

In the event of a conflict, any linked documents may not take precedence over the printed or
referenced documents comprising this contract; provided further that any update to such
linked documents shall only apply to purchases or leases of the associated Vendor product or
service offering after the effective date of the update; and, provided further, that, if Vendor
has responded to a solicitation or request for pricing, no update of such linked documents on
or after the initial date of Vendor’s initial response shall apply to that purchase unless Vendor
directly informs Customer of the update before the purchase is consummated.

In the event that different or additional terms or conditions would otherwise result from
accessing a linked document, agreement to said linked document shall not be effective until
reviewed and approved in writing by Customer’s authorized signatory.

Vendor shall not [without prior written agreement from Customer’s authorized signatory,]
require any document that: 1) diminishes the rights, benefits, or protections of the
Customer, or that alters the definitions, measurements, or method for determining any
authorized rights, benefits, or protections of the Customer; or 2) imposes additional costs,
burdens, or obligations upon Customer, or that alters the definitions, measurements, or
method for determining any authorized costs, burdens, or obligations upon Customer.

If Vendor attempts to do any of the foregoing, the prohibited documents will be void and
inapplicable to the contract between DIR and Vendor or Vendor and Customer, and Vendor
will nonetheless be obligated to perform the contract without regard to the prohibited
documents, unless Customer elects instead to terminate the contract, which in such case may
be identified as a termination for cause against Vendor.

Department of Information Resources Page 4 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

The foregoing requirements apply to all contracts, including, but not limited to, contracts
between Customer and a reseller who attempts to pass through documents and obligations
from its Manufacturer of Publisher.

8. Authorized Exceptions to Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions for Product and Related
Services Contracts.

No exceptions have been agreed to by DIR and Vendor.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)

Department of Information Resources Page 5 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



DIR Contract No. DIR-CP0O-4433

Vendor Contract No.

This Contract is executed to be effective as of the date of last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: _Signature on File

Name: _Mike Marusic

Title: _President

Date: _08/02/2019

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By:__Signature on File

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: Chief Procurement Officer

Date: _08/09/2019

Office of General Counsel: Signature on File: 08/07/2019

Department of Information Resources Page 6 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



Amendment Number 1
to
Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433
between
State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources
and
Sharp Electronics Corporation

This Amendment Number 1 to Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433 (“Contract”) is between the
Department of Information Resources (“DIR”) and Sharp Electronics Corporation (“Vendor”). DIR
and Vendor agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Contract as follows:

1. Contract, Section C — Pricing Index is hereby restated in its entirety and replaced with
Appendix C — Pricing Index (per Amendment 1) attached hereto.

All other terms and conditions of the Contract, not expressly amended herein, shall remain in full
force and effect. In the event of conflict among the provisions, the order of precedence shall be
Amendment Number 1, and then the Contract.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)

Amendment 1
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 10/2017 Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this amendment to be effective as of the date
of the last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: Signature on file

Name: Mike Marusic

Title: President and CEO

Date: September 23, 2019

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By:  Signature on file

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: Chief Procurement Officer

Date: September 25,2019

Office of General Counsel: Initials on file September 24, 2019

Amendment 1
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 10/2017 Page 2



Amendment Number 2
to
Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433
between
State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources
and
Sharp Electronics Corporation

This Amendment Number 2 to Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433 (“Contract”) is between
the Department of Information Resources (“DIR”) and Sharp Electronics Corporation

(“Vendor”). DIR and Vendor agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Contract as
follows:

1. Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 1), is hereby replaced in its entirety
with Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 2), as attached.

All other terms and conditions of the Contract, not expressly amended herein, shall remain
in full force and effect. In the event of conflict among the provisions, the order of
precedence shall be this Amendment Number 2, then Amendment Number 1, and then the
Contract.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Amendment 2
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this amendment to be effective as of
the date of the last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: _Signature on File

Name: _Erica Calise

Title: _ Director of Government Marketing

Date: _8/11/2020

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: Chief Procurement Officer

Date:  8/12/2020

Office of General Counsel: Mark Howard 8/11/2020

Amendment 2
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 2



Amendment Number 3
to
Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433
between
State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources
and
Sharp Electronics Corporation

This Amendment Number 3 to Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433 (“Contract’) is between
the Department of Information Resources (“DIR") and Sharp Electronics Corporation
("Vendor”). DIR and Vendor agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Contract as
follows:

1. Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 2), is hereby replaced in its entirety
with Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 3), as attached.

All other terms and conditions of the Contract not expressly amended herein, shall remain
in full force and effect. In the event of conflict among the provisions, the order of
precedence shall be this Amendment 3, then Amendment Number 2, then Amendment
Number 1, and then the Contract.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Amendment 3
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this amendment to be effective as of
the date of the last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: _ Erica Calise

Title: Director of Government Marketing

Date: _11/5/2020

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: __Chief Procurement Officer

Date: 11/18/2020

Office of General Counsel: _MH 11/18/2020

Amendment 3
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 2



Amendment Number 4
to
Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433
between
State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources
and
Sharp Electronics Corporation

This Amendment Number 4 to Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433 (“Contract’) is between
the Department of Information Resources (“DIR") and Sharp Electronics Corporation
("Vendor”). DIR and Vendor agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Contract as
follows:

1. Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 3), is hereby replaced in its entirety
with Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 4), as attached.

All other terms and conditions of the Contract not expressly amended herein, shall remain
in full force and effect. In the event of conflict among the provisions, the order of
precedence shall be this Amendment 4, then Amendment 3, then Amendment Number 2,
then Amendment Number 1, and then the Contract.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Amendment 4
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this amendment to be effective as of
the date of the last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: __Erica Calise

Title: Director of Government Marketing

Date: _1/25/2021

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: Hershel Becker

Title: _ Chief Procurement Officer

Date: 1/28/2021

Office of General Counsel: _M. H 1/28/2021

Amendment 4
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 2



Amendment Number 5
to
Contract Number DIR-CPO-4433
between
State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources
and
Sharp Electronics Corporation

This Amendment Number 5 to Contract Number DIR-CP0O-4433 ("Contract”) is between
the Department of Information Resources (“DIR") and Sharp Electronics Corporation
("Vendor”). DIR and Vendor agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Contract as
follows:

1. Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 4), is hereby replaced in its entirety
with Appendix C, Pricing Index (per Amendment 5), as attached.

All other terms and conditions of the Contract not expressly amended herein, shall remain
in full force and effect. In the event of conflict among the provisions, the order of precedence
shall be this Amendment 5, then Amendment 4, then Amendment 3, then Amendment
Number 2, then Amendment Number 1, and then the Contract.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Amendment 4
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this amendment to be effective as of
the date of the last signature.

Sharp Electronics Corporation

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name: __Erica Calise

Title: Director of Government Marketing

Date: _3/25/2021

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By: Signature on File

Name Hershel Becker

Title: _ Chief Procurement Officer

Date: 3/29/2021

Office of General Counsel: _M. H. 3/26/2021

Amendment 4
Contract DIR-CP0O-4433
rev. 05/2020 Page 2



Department of Information Resources

Request for Offer
DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers,
Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related
Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and
Services

Issued: December 12, 2018

Initial Responses Due: February 4, 2019 2:00 PM (CT)



Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCGTION .....ccuuiiiienieiitennieertensceenennseeesensssesssnssesssssssesssnsssesssnsssssssnsssssssnsssssssnssssssnnssssssnnsns 1
1.1. T oL 1= 1
1.2. (= 2ol €= o1V T [ N 1
1.2.1 Information Technology ACQUISITION........ccccueeiieiiiiei e 1
1.2.2 Texas Government Code, Section 2157.068......ccccooiiieeriiiiiiiiiiieiiieeee e eees 2
1.2.3 Cost Avoidance Performance IMEASUIES..........cccccueeeeeeiiieeeeeiieeeeereeeeecireeeeereeeeenns 3
A S 0o 1y il 0= Tolo 1V oV T T U 3
O T o 11 o g ot | Y- | LTSRNt 3
2 I O ¥ ¢ =T 0} i 0o T | 1 - [ £ T T T U 3
1.2.7 E-Rate.cciiiicciiee ettt Error! Bookmark not defined.
1.2.8  EXCIUSIONS . .uiiiiiiiiiie e ettt ettt et e e et e e e e et a e e e seataeeesbteeesenbaeeesastaeessseneesansnns 4
2. VENDOR INFORMATION SYSTEM (VIS) PORTAL - BIDSTAMP .....ccoeeiiiiiiieiiinniienisennsenssssssesssssssens 5
2.1. Solicitation Response REqUIremMENt ......ccccceieeeeiireeeneiiteenncereenseeereenseesrennseessenssessssnssenns 5
2.2, VIS Account REqUEST ProCESS...ccciuiiiuiiieiieeiiniieiiieiiessiociaiisssiessiassasssssisssssssssssssssssssanens 5
3 SCOPE..... .o eeeeeiieiiitieeeieieee st trresnneesseessttesnnsssssssssseneesnnssssssssssssesnnsssssssssessesnnnssssssssssssnnnnnssnnss 5
3.1. PrOTUCES ...ttt st rreeeeeeesse e s s s s s e snnsesssssssensssnnssssssssssnsssnnnssssssssnnsssnnnnsssnns 5
00 00t R = o o1 1o V= PP SPRPSPRRSRPS 16
3.2, Related SEIrVICES .....ciiiieiiiiiieiiiieieei it rrenecerenneesrennseesaennssessennssessenssessasnsssssssnssannes 19
3.3. Emerging TeChNOIOZIeS....ccuuuu ittt rreee e reens e e seenssessennssessennsnnnes 19
3.4. Threshold and SOW ReqUIrements .......ccccceeeiiiiemmuniiiiniiineesmmsiniimeesssisesssssses 19
3.5. Electronic and Information Resources (EIR) Accessibility ......cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinnnna. 20
3.6. FOrm Of CONTIACE ......coiiiieecieecccieiieeeccceeceee s s e e eeennnsseeeesseseesnnssssssssseseeennnnsssssssanesennnnnnnn 20
3.6.1 Sample Contract and Terms Negotiation ........ccccviiriiieiii i 20
3.6.2 Proposed Changes and EXCEPLIONS ........uuveveeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e 21
4, GENERAL INFORMATION ....ccuiiiiieiiiiineniinieneniiiienesissienssssssensssssssnsssssssnsssssssnsssssssnssssssnnssssssnnss 21
4.1. POINt OFf CONTACE ......ciiiiiieiceccc e cce e e s e s eeneeneeeesseseeennnsssssssseseeennnnssssssseensennnnnnen 21
4.2, Contact With DIR Staff ....ccceuiiiiiiieiiiiiiieiirriirerecreneerrnerrsessesssersnsersesssensssensesensssenanses 22
4.3. Anticipated Schedule......... e e e s e e e n s e e e e eeens 22
e 0 A 4 @ Yol o T T [ ] USRS 22
4.3.2  Vendor CONFEIENCE .....uueiiiiieeecceee ettt e e eree e e eetee e e sate e e e e e e e s eabaeeeeanes 22
RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page i

03/2018



4.3.3 Written Questions and Official ANSWEIS.......uuuuueiieieeeeeeeeee e 23

4.4. Historically Underutilized BUSINESSES.....c.ccuciiiiimeniiiiimeniiiienniiiienniesimensennennsiesssnnssesnes 23
4.4.1 HUB SubcoNtracting Plan ......ccoccuiiiiiiiiee ettt ree e e e vae e e 24
4.4.2 HUB ContinuUing PerformMancCe......c.ccccuueeiiciiieeeeieieeecetiee e setee e eetee e e vtee e e vae e e 24
4.4.3 HUB Resources Available .........ccueiiioiiiii ittt e 24
4.5. AVZ=TATo (oY@ TUE: 111 ot 4 oY o 13PN 25
BT R YU d o [o g 4= Te IRV/=T Vo Fo T 4SS 25
4.5.2 Federal REQUINEMENTS ...cccciiiiiiciiie ettt e e e etee e s e s e bee e s e nbae e e eanes 25
4.5.3 Vendor Performance and Debarment ........ccveeeeieeieeciiiiinieeee e 26

4.5.4 Required Vendor and Subcontractor Current and Former State Employee
B 1T ol [o 1 UL TP UUPR 26
4.6. Response Deadline and Submission Requirements..........cccceeerieeencereenncerneenncernennneennes 26
4.6.1  Official TIMEPIECE ..uuuuriiiieee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e eab e e e e e e e e e snnraaeeaaaeas 26
4.7. Response Format and Contents.......ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiennniiiiiniiiieeesiiiniiiessssisesssssees 26
4.7.1 Mandatory ReSPoNnse CONLENTS ...ueeeiieeeeeciiiiiiie e e ee et e e e e eerrre e e e e e e e enrraeeeee s 27
oy V- T Y o ol Y USRS 28
4.7.3 Accessibility of Electronic Response Documents..........ccccceveeeeeeciviieeeeeeeeeccnvveeennn. 28
4.8. RejJeCtion Of RESPONSES....cccuuuuciiiiiieeeieeiieierirteeennnnseesssereesnnnssssssssseeeennnssssssssssssennnnnnns 28
4.9. Right to Amend or Withdraw RFO .........cciieeiiiiieeiiiiieniiiieeicniennicniensesneensesssnnssennes 28
4.10. Ownership Of RESPONSES .........ceeiriiiremmeniiiiiiiiieeeneneieeeeseeeeennssssseesseseeennnssssssessessennnnnnns 29
4.11.  Public INfOrmMatioN......ccceeeeeccccieeeceecccercccs e e rreenee e ee s s e e e e e nanssssessseseeennnnsssnssssessennnnnnns 29
5. EVALUATION, NEGOTIATIONS, AND AWARD .....cceuiieuiieiiteirereeiteectecrecsescsnserasessssesssasssasssnnes 29
5.1. Evaluation Of RESPONSES........ciiiiiiieeieeeieeiriirrreeeeeeees s s e reeennassssssssseeennnnsssssssssneeennnnnes 29
5.2. EValuation Criteria......cccieeeeeeieiiiiiiieecceercees s trrreeeeeesses s s e s eesnnasssssssssseeennnnsssssssssneeennnnnes 29
5.2.1  PaSS/Fail CriteIIa cocuueveiiieiiiieeieeeieee e ettt e e e e e seaee e et e e e sesesabeeeeessssssabaseesesssnnnanns 29
5.2.2 Weighted Evaluation Criteria......ccccccuueeeiiiiieeeiiiee et 30
5.3. Oral Presentations, Best and FINal Offer ........civciiieiiiiiiieiiieierencereecreeenreneseeneernenens 30
5.4. [\ L= Lo YA Y A Lo o K3 RPN 30
5.5. AWaArd of CONTraCt ........iiiiiiiiiiieiiiieiiiicrisseesteeesnnnsssseestaeesnansssssssssssssnnnsssssssssasenns 30
5.6. Vendor Protest ProCeaUIES.......cuuiiiiiiiiiiimmniiieeiiieennnsssssesieeesnnnsssssssssssssnnssssssssssssssns 31

Exhibit A — Vendor Information Form

Exhibit B — Vendor History and Experience

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page i
03/2018



Exhibit C — Contract Marketing and Support Plan

Exhibit D — Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Subcontracting Plan

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page iii
03/2018



Introduction

1.1.  Purpose

The purpose of this Request for Offer (RFO) is to solicit responses from potential Vendors to
provide Managed Print Services (MPS), printers and copiers non-multifunction (Non MFD) and
multifunction (MFD) devices, 3D printers, scanning, plotting and facsimile equipment and devices
and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; and Enterprise Content
Management (ECM) Products, Software and Services to the State of Texas, acting by and through
the Department of Information Resources (DIR).

As a result of this RFO, DIR expects to receive and evaluate responses and select one or more
qualified Vendors with whom to enter into negotiations. Section 5 of this RFO contains more
information regarding the response evaluation and Vendor selection process. DIR reserves the
right to make a single award or multiple awards from this RFO. All contracts awarded shall be
indefinite quantity contracts with no minimum guarantees of any purchases.

As a result of this RFO, DIR expects to create a contract vehicle that satisfies statewide
procurement requirements for Managed Print Services (MPS), printers and copiers non-
multifunction (Non MFD) and multifunction (MFD) devices, 3D printers, scanning, plotting and
facsimile equipment and devices and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; and
Enterprise Content Management (ECM) Products, Software and Services contracts and improves
the efficiency of the procurement process by shortening the time required to procure these
products and services.

As part of DIR’s initiatives to identify strategic sourcing opportunities, DIR reserves the right to
make a single award or multiple awards as determined by DIR to achieve the highest overall
best value to the state.

1.2. Background

1.2.1 Information Technology Acquisition

Through its Cooperative Contracts Program, DIR assists state agencies and local
governments (Customers) with cost-effective acquisition of their information resources
by negotiating, managing, and administering contracts with information technology
providers. Customers include any Texas state agency, unit of local government, or
institution of higher education as defined in Texas Government Code, Section 2054.003;
the Electric Reliability Council of Texas, the Lower Colorado River Authority, a private
school, as defined by Section 5.001, Education Code, a private or independent institution
of higher education, as defined by Section 61.003, Education Code, a volunteer fire
department, as defined by Section 152.001, Tax Code; those state agencies purchasing
from a DIR contract through an Interagency Agreement, as authorized by Texas
Government Code, Chapter 771; any local government as authorized through Texas
Government Code, Chapter 791; the Interlocal Cooperation Act; the state agencies and
political subdivisions of other states as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section
2054.0565; and for non-telecommunications IT Commodity products and services,
“assistance organizations” defined in Texas Government Code, Section 2175.001.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 1
03/2018



1.2.2

DIR combines the buying power of authorized Customers to obtain volume-discounted
pricing for selected technology products and services. In addition to offering volume-
discounted pricing, DIR created the Cooperative Contracts (Co-op Contracts) Program to
make it easier for Customers to acquire these products and services. Customers place
orders with and issue payments directly to the Vendors participating in the Co-op
Contracts Program. Subject to DIR rights set forth in Sections 4.8 and 4.9 of this RFO, DIR
will award and negotiate base contract documents with Vendors as a result of this RFO.
Customers contact the Vendor for product and/or services and pricing information,
negotiate their own service level agreements and additional terms and conditions, if any,
and send their purchase orders (with the DIR contract number) and payments directly to
the participating awarded Vendor, not to DIR. Information regarding the Co-op Contracts
Program is located on DIR’'s Web site at http://dir.texas.gov/View-About-
DIR/Pages/Content.aspx?id=41.

Texas Government Code, Section 2157.068

Texas Government Code, Section 2157.068, effective September 1, 2005, requires State
agencies to buy commodity items, as detailed below, in accordance with contracts
developed by DIR, unless the agency obtains an exemption from DIR.

Commodity items are commercially available software, hardware and technology services
that are generally available to businesses or the public and for which DIR determines that
a reasonable demand exists in two or more state agencies. Hardware is the physical
technology used to process, manage, store, transmit, receive or deliver information.
Software is a commercially available program that operates hardware and includes all
supporting documentation, media on which the software may be contained or stored,
related materials, modifications, versions, upgrades, enhancements, updates or
replacements and may include Software provided as a service. Technology services are
the services, functions and activities that facilitate the design, implementation, creation,
or use of software or hardware. Technology services include seat management, staff
augmentation, training, maintenance and subscription services. Seat/Device
management is a service through which a state agency transfers its responsibilities to a
Vendor to manage its personal computing needs, including all necessary hardware,
software and technology services.

Technology services do not include telecommunications services. Any service awarded
under the TEX-AN Next Generation Procurement, RFO number DIR-TEX-AN-NG-001 is
excluded. The following services were awarded under the TEX-AN Next Generation
Procurement: Long Distance Services, Internet Services (including SOHO), Voice over
Internet Protocol (VolP), Local Voice Service, Wireless Service, Fixed Satellite and Access
and Transport.

Institutions of higher education, K-12, and local governments are not required to
purchase IT commodities from DIR, but may do so voluntarily. Information regarding
Texas Government Code §2157.068, including processes and guidelines, is located on
DIR’s Web site at:
http://dir.texas.gov/View-Contracts-And-Services/Pages/Content.aspx?id=25

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 2

03/2018



1.23

1.24

1.25

1.2.6

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419

03/2018

Cost Avoidance Performance Measures

As part of its performance measures reported to state leadership, DIR must show the cost
avoidance realized by the State for the products and services obtained under DIR
contracts. Cost avoidance is the difference between the negotiated DIR contract price and
the prevailing market price.

Cost Recovery

DIR recovers the costs of negotiating, executing, and administering the Co-op Contracts
through an administrative fee. DIR is authorized to charge a reasonable administrative
fee to all customers per Section 2157.068(d) of the Texas Government Code. The
administrative fee must be included in the Vendor’s price to the customer and paid to DIR
by the Vendor. The fee has been set at a not-to-exceed level of 2.00% by the current
appropriations act of the State Legislature. For the purposes of responding to this RFO,
the administrative fee of 0.75% shall be used in calculating the pricing specified in Bid
Package 2. DIR may change the administrative fee at any time during a contract term.
DIR will notify Vendors of any change in the administrative fee.

Historical Sales

Contracts negotiated and managed through the Cooperative Contracts Program resulted
in over $5 billion in Customer purchases for the past three (3) Fiscal Years (FY) combined.
Information contained within the table below shows the total purchases for the past three
(3) fiscal years by Customer segment. These purchases represent contracts that are
hardware, software, and services related. The State’s Fiscal Year runs September 1%
through August 31%,

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Assistance Org $2,357,384.76 $3,079,520.73 $2,958,.084.65)
Higher Ed $351,693,838.26 $339,061,683.43 $332,385,633.15
K-12 $628,316,299.13 $577,352,825.09 $589,442,854.33
Local
Government $462,736,727.05 $461,433,333.12 $448,209,464.71
Out of State $8,767,492.85 $20,451,872.88 $19,245,239.18
State Agency $515,716,174.70 $492,221,768.72 $415,604,984.31

Total: $1,969,587,916.75 $1,893,601,003.97 $1,807,846,260.33

Current Contracts

DIR currently has multiple contracts with 14 Vendors to provide Managed Print Services,
Printers, Copiers, 3D and Scanning Equipment and Related Services. The volume of
products sold through these contracts for Fiscal Year 2019 (September 1, to September
30, 2018 (FY 2019 to date of RFO)) was approximately $7,658,719.

Page 3



1.2.7

DIR Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D and Scanning Equipment Plotters and

Related Services

FY2016

FY2017

FY2018

Assistance Org

$121,968.06,

$346,801.81

$609,869.07

Higher Ed

$4,919,693.19

$9,794,501.36

$9,302,583.49

K-12

$20,589,834.65

$31,613,469.11

$29,841,450.84

Local Government

$6,325,757.18

$12,076,426.32

$15,501,442.22

Out of State $609,430.60 $4,114,099.87, $4,345,551.03
State Agency $6,026,025.34 $5,659,844.47 $10,555,206.85
Total: $38,592,709.02 $63,605,142.94 $70,156,103.50

This RFO encompasses term contracts that are administered by The Comptroller of Public
Accounts (CPA) Statewide Procurement Division (SPD) for Document Imaging Services.
The estimated volume of products/services sold through those contracts were:

SPD Document Imaging Services Contract Number 920-C1

FY2016
$9,520,797.09

FY2017
$6,103,336.06

FY2018
$10,433,536.03

Total:

Enterprise Content Management (ECM) Products, Software and Services is a new
category and therefore there are no historical sales recorded to date.

Exclusions

The following manufacturers which could possibly be within the scope of this RFO, are excluded
due to direct contracts with those manufacturers:

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419

03/2018

e Apple

e (Cisco

e Dell

e Hewlett Packard
e |BM

e lLenovo

e Motorola

e Novell

e Oracle

e Panasonic

In the event that DIR identifies other Manufacturers/Publishers to be excluded, the
Manufacturer/Publisher names will be included in a future addendum. Vendors should
submit a written request should they have questions about a specific
manufacturer/publisher on a current DIR contract. This does not preclude the Vendor
from proposing the utilization of these manufacturers as part of a total
solution. However, if utilized as part of a total solution, the same product brand may

Page 4



not be offered outside of that package as a standalone product.

Vendor Information System (VIS) Portal - BidStamp

DIR’s BidStamp Vendor Information System (BidStamp VIS) provides prospective bidders
(Vendors) with the ability to create a profile that supports the key functions required during the
solicitation response process. The high-level processes associated with the portal include vendor
account/profile creation, vendor contact creation, vendor account management, and response
submission. In addition to the account management and solicitation response capabilities enabled
by the BidStamp VIS portal, Vendors will be able to view open solicitations and additional
information about DIR.

2.1. Solicitation Response Requirement

Any Vendor responding to this RFO must submit their response through the BidStamp VIS.
Persons with disabilities who seek accommodation, under the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA), in responding to this solicitation may contact DIR at the point of contact in section 4.1 of
this solicitation. Please allow at least five business days for response.

2.2. VIS Account Request Process

Before users can access any of the BidStamp VIS portal functionality, they will be required to
provide login credentials to access a new or existing account. Vendors will access the BidStamp
VIS Portal via DIR’s Applications Portal, and enter in their access credentials. If a Vendor does not
yet have login credentials, it will request one by clicking on “Are you a vendor and need to request
an account?” button that is located on the login page.

Instructions for VIS account access and using the BidStamp VIS portal to submit solicitation
response can be found on DIR’s website Information for Vendors at the bottom of the page.

Scope
3.1. Products

DIR intends to contract to provide Managed Print Services (MPS), printers and copiers non-
multifunction (Non MFD) and multifunction (MFD) devices, 3D printers, scanning, plotting and
facsimile equipment and devices and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; and
Enterprise Content Management (ECM) Products, Software and Services.

Vendors may not propose or provide remanufactured, like-new, newly manufactured,
refurbished, reconditioned or any other than NEW products or equipment, to include add-on
products. This RFO specifically prohibits remanufactured toner cartridges.

Managed Print Services:

DIR intends to establish and provide contracts to DIR Customers for Managed Print Services
(MPS), printers and copiers non-multifunction (Non MFD) and multifunction (MFD) devices, 3D
printers, scanning, plotting and facsimile equipment and devices and Related Services; Document
Imaging Services/Solutions; and Enterprise Content Management (ECM) Products, Software and
Services. A multifunction device is defined as a product or device that has multiple functions. An

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 5
03/2018



example of this might be a printer or copier that makes copies/prints, faxes and scans. Although
not required, a multifunction device usually has network capabilities.

The MPS shall be for the management of one or more output devices, including but not limited to
production or print type devices and shall apply to routine office fleet document output devices,
such as printers, copiers, faxes, scanners, plotters, multifunction units, as well as 3D printer
devices. DIR Customers may order the MPS individually or in any combination thereof. 3D printers
may include any of the MPS offerings, including but not limited to, installation and maintenance
and support (Related) services.

For the purposes of this RFO, MPS shall be defined as: assessing, optimizing and managing a
Customer’s product, data or document output environment. These MPS shall provide
documentation of current printing and copying device(s) utilizations, workflow, etc,;
recommendations to reduce per-pages costs; managing print volume; providing cost effective
document output devices configurations regardless of brand or type; procurement and
management of all output devices consumable supplies such as 3D printer supplies and
accessories, and equipment supplies such as (but not all inclusive): photoconductor, toner,
staples, ink and developer excluding paper); tracking of all output devices; providing volume usage
reports; providing help desk services for maintenance and repair; training; managing user’s print
behavior and satisfaction, etc. A document output device is any stationary or mobile device that
may be wireless or hard-wired, networked or non-networked, stationary or portable that
permanently affixes print to paper or produces another output product (such as 3D output).
Devices include, but are not limited to printers, copiers, 3D printers, faxes, scanners, multifunction
and non-multifunction units, plotters, wide format printers, duplication devices, e-printers and
production, high volume printers or other similar devices.

MPS may be proposed per single category of an MPS listed below or Vendors may propose
optional bundled MPS detailed within a Service Level Support Agreement (SLA). Vendors may also
propose Other/Miscellaneous or optional MPS not listed in this RFO, as long as it resides within
the scope of this RFO. Each of the categories below have been given definition and specifications
for the purpose of evaluation only and may not specifically define the services which are offered
by the Vendor; Vendors are encouraged to detail each MPS that they offer to reflect their own
business model(s). In the event that the categories of any MPS listed in the Pricing sheets do not
adequately align with the Vendor line-of-business/offerings, Bid Package 2, Pricing Index but are
within the scope of this RFO, the Vendor shall list the product/service under the heading,
Miscellaneous/Other pricing.

Declared Disaster Equipment Recovery Program

For 48 and 60-month multifunction leases, Vendors may opt to offer Bid Package 7, Declared
Disaster Equipment Recovery Program Agreement (“Disaster Recovery Program” or “program”)
to their Customers. If the Vendor offers this program as part of their contract, they shall propose
(at a minimum) 48 and 60-month leasing pricing without Declared Disaster pricing in addition to
48 and 60-month leasing pricing with Declared Disaster pricing. Refer to Bid Package 7 Declared
Disaster Equipment Program Agreement example for further detail of the program. If the Vendor
opts to offer The Declared Disaster Equipment Program to their Customers, the Agreement will
become an appendix to their contract. The Bid Package 7, as written, is not negotiable unless DIR
amends it; in which case, it will be amended to all Vendors offering the Disaster Recovery
Program.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 6
03/2018



Service Level Support Agreement

e All Service Level Support Agreements shall ensure that the MPS Vendor provides an

optimal printing environment for the DIR Customer by establishing service performance
metrics with corresponding service level objectives. An SLA shall detail each support
services offered by a Vendor. Vendors offering Maintenance and/or Support Services
shall provide a Service Level Support Agreement with their proposal, which shall
include Service Level metrics.

Managed Print Services Examples

Technical Discovery/Assessment Services

Analyze and document current business processes, work flow and usage of existing
components and technologies surrounding print management and output devices.
Services within this category would include producing inventory reports of output
devices, usage for printing, copying, (black and white and color) faxing, scanning, plotting
and associated costs, usage of consumable products (ink/toner), cost analysis reporting,
cost savings, and ultimately recommending how to make changes to improve
productivity and reduce cost.

Change Management

A comprehensive strategy to manage change and control project scope for the MPS, such
as a methodology that addresses how solutions contribute to greater user satisfaction
and user adoption and how users print behaviors are modified.

Implementation and Project Management

Describes in detail the project management processes and methodology for the MPS
landscape, such as showing how the most cost-effective devices will be installed when a
new or replacement device is recommended. The plan should include implementation
progress milestones. Implementation plans shall be coordinated and developed by DIR
Customer and Vendor.

Support Services for Qutput Devices Owned or Leased by Customer

Manage services on output devices owned or leased by the Customer. This would
include, but not be limited to, standard and Ad Hoc usage reports, maintenance,
break/fix, troubleshooting, on-site support function, supplies, and upgrading of devices
to provide needed technology features.

Procurement and Support Services for Output Devices provided by Vendor

Manage procurement and support services including bearing the cost for new devices
that may be required by a Customer. All maintenance, break/fix, troubleshooting, and
upgrades for such devices shall be the responsibility of the Vendor.

Maintenance

Manage full maintenance to include all labor, all parts (including drums), all service, all
travel and all regular and preventative maintenance. A guaranteed maintenance service
may be included in the monthly rate or can be billed separately by month or quarterly.
Document output device maintenance service shall be provided for all leased document
output devices installed.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 7

03/2018



Each maintenance agreement shall be in written form in the format of a Service Level
Support Agreement (SLA) as defined above. Vendor will repair or adjust the machine(s)
as required to maintain them in good working order. These costs are borne by the
Vendor and are inclusive in the MPS monthly costs.

Preventive maintenance will be based upon specific needs of the individual devices as
determined by the Vendor in accordance with manufacturer specifications. Preventive
maintenance will include, but not be limited to, lubrication, necessary adjustments and
replacement of unserviceable parts, with preventive maintenance inspection per
manufacturer suggestion.

The Vendor shall agree to provide a service log (service history on the machine) on any
machine when requested by the Customer. This history will provide the cause of the
breakdown and length of time it is down. If the down time is determined to be operator
error, misuse or abuse by the Customer, the downtime will not be considered in
accessing satisfactory machine performance.

e Managed Print Security Services

Vendor agrees that all managed service products equipped with hard disk drives (e.g.
printers, fax machines, scanners, MFD) shall have the capability to securely erase data
written to the hard drive prior to final disposition of the product, in accordance with
Texas Administrative Code, Title 1, Chapter 202 (1 TAC 202)
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtacSext.ViewTAC?tac view=4&ti=1&pt=10&c
h=202 (Link: Texas Administrative Code). Documentation of completed hard disk drive
erasure shall be made available to Customer, i.e. certification/validation/report.

e Consumables Supply Services
Paper is not considered a consumable supply to be provided by the Vendor. Unless
otherwise negotiated between the DIR Customer and Vendor, MPS includes the
management of output device consumables; toner/ink cartridges, developer, drums,
staples etc. Itis the Vendor’s responsibility to manage the procurement, and restocking
of consumables as necessary. All costs for these supplies will be the Vendor’s
responsibility.

e Proactive Support Services
Providing electronic monitoring and support services for document output devices that
will result in fewer support calls and decrease device down time. Each Vendor contract
that provides maintenance or support as a Service shall include a Service Level Support
Agreement as a part of their contract.

e Asset Tracking
Manage all tracking of output devices to include, but not be limited to, physical location

of device, device usage, and maintenance records.

e Installation/Moves/Changes/Returns
Provide installation of new output devices, relocation of existing or new output devices,
and continued modification or upgrade of output devices, including Returns of

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 8
03/2018



equipment. Cost for all handling, packing, transport, insurance, removal and installation
and return charges, to include device hard drive data purging (aka hard drive wiping) or
hard drive removal and subsequent return to the DIR Customer, shall be the
responsibility of the Vendor. Vendor shall perform all installations and shall verify proper
operation of all equipment. For installation and removals that require special rigging,
Vendor shall submit a price quote to DIR Customer for approval prior to any work being
done. Vendor shall contact the DIR Customer to inquire about stairs, loading dock, etc.

e Technical Support/Help Desk Service

Provide technical assistance in the installation, operation, maintenance of MPS
document output devices upon request. Unless otherwise negotiated between the DIR
Customer and Vendor, such assistance shall be available from 8:00 A.M. until 5:00 P.M.
(Standard Business Hours), Central Time, Monday through Friday, at no additional cost.
Additional services such as: Weekend, Holiday, and 24x7x365 coverage may be
negotiated, as required by DIR Customer. Texas holidays are defined by the Texas
Comptroller of Public accounts at https://comptroller.texas.gov/about/holidays.php
(link: State of Texas Holiday Schedule - Fiscal 2019). Technical services must include
assistance in the installation and network configuration of new devices and software.
Vendor shall supply a toll-free telephone number and/or specific email address for
Customer to report maintenance issues, trouble-tickets, and request other how-to
assistance as necessary. The support process must include the ability to track service
calls as well as a timely confirmation for, and a resolution of, all Customer service
requests submitted.

e Training

Provide output device and work-flow training as necessary to fully take advantage of the
MPS. For new device installations, the Vendor shall provide (at a minimum) one (1) on
site on-boarding training session per new device model/category. The number of
training sessions shall reflect the size and scope of the installation and the number of
users. Each training session will be a minimum of one (1) hour in length and will
familiarize users with the new device(s). Training services must include instructional
sheets, user guides and other related documentation as part of the program rollout and
on an ongoing training/refresher/updated technology as determined by DIR Customer
and Vendor.

e Standard and Ad-hoc Reporting and Documentation
Produce various types of reports via online or hard copy as may be required by DIR
Customer. Vendor must define all standard reports and a description of the Ad Hoc
reporting process in their Service Level Support Agreement.

e Managed Print Services Accounting Services
For accounting requirements, when applicable, the document output device(s) provided
under MPS must have the ability to account for the usage costs by job, task, device, user,
location, department or other similar Customer requirement. Costs for any counting
device must be included in monthly MPS pricing.

e End of Engagement/De-Installation Services
Provide de-installation (packing and handling) and removal of Vendor provided output

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 9
03/2018



devices, including providing a plan to coordinate these services, at no cost to the DIR
Customer. Services include, but are not limited to, managing all return processes for all
devices provided by Vendor and performing and accrediting hard drive data security and
purging in accordance with 1 TAC 202. The de-installation and removal of devices shall
occur in a timely manner but no later than a removal completion date as agreed between
Customer and Vendor. Customer shall not be liable for payment except for the time that
a device is in use by the Customer. If the Vendor fails to meet the agreed upon
completion removal date, they may be liable for any late removal fees that may have
been previously agreed upon by Customer and Vendor.

e End of Engagement/Transition Plan

Provide an end of engagement plan that, at a minimum, considers hardware, software
and data network licenses and contracts, key personnel (DIR Customer staff and Vendor
staff), knowledge transfer facilitated through documentation, accommodation and
technology spaces, and data — on disks, storage locations, etc. End of Engagement plans
shall be coordinated and developed by DIR Customer and Vendor. In addition, a transition
plan that addresses the orderly transition to DIR Customer, or a successor MPS Vendor,
of all MPS provided by Vendor.

o Additional Services/Emerging Technologies
Responding Vendors are encouraged to provide any other services, including but not
limited to emerging technologies for MPS, in addition to the above services being
requested.

e Pooling and Overages

Monthly Pooling of Click Charges shall be allowed for DIR Customers under a DIR Contract.
Excluding color MFD, the Schedule or other Agreement between the DIR Customer and
Vendor shall define each device as a Category of either: High, Medium, or Low according
to the device Pages per Minute (PPM) output. Devices on the same contract and within
the same Category may pool the allowed number of Click Charges per month for all of the
devices within the same category. Overage or Excess Clicks will not be assessed until the
total of all the individual Category Click Charges have been pooled together and
exhausted.

Copiers
e Rental, Lease, Purchase, Fleet, and Mail and Production

e Non-Multifunctional (single function), and Multifunctional (multiple functions), Network
capable and Non-Network (stand-alone)

Printers
e Rental, Lease, Purchase, Fleet, and Mail and Production
e Portable and Stationary
e Non-Multifunctional (single function), and Multifunctional (multiple functions), Network
capable and Non-Network (stand-alone)

Scanners
e Rental, Lease, Purchase, Fleet
e Portable and Stationary

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 10
03/2018



e Non-Multifunctional (single function), and Multifunctional (multiple functions), Network
capable and Non-Network (stand-alone)

3D Printers

DIR intends to establish and provide contracts to DIR Customers for 3D printers capable of
processing or making three dimensional solid objects from a digital file achieved using additive
processes. DIR is interested in 3D printers that can offer 3D technology to all agencies across the
state of Texas in all industries to include healthcare (i.e., bioprinting, prosthetic, chemistry,
sensors, medical models, bone, valves, cartilage, medical equipment, cranium replacement,
temporary skin for burn victims.

3D Printer technologies all share the common theme of sequential-layer of material
addition/joining throughout a 3D work envelope under automated control. Responding Vendors
should provide full device descriptions including device type, including but not limited to
Extrusion, Wire, Granular, Laminated, Light polymerized or Powder bed and inkjet head and the
technology associated with the device such as Fused Deposition Modeling (FDM), Electron Beam
Freeform Fabrication (EBF3), Selective laser sintering (SLS), etc.

Include any trademark or patent-specific, warranty or licensing agreements with proposal. Vendor
may propose accessories, additives and raw materials as Accessories or as Miscellaneous/Other

Items in Bid Package 2, Pricing Sheet.

3D Printer Types and Methodologies

Type Technology Type Technology
Powder bed and inkjet Plaster-based 3D Granular Direct metal laser
head 3D printing printing (PP) sintering (DMLS)
Laminated Laminated object Electron-beam melting
manufacturing (LOM) (EBM)
Light polymerized Stereolithography (SLA) Selective laser melting
SLM
Digital Light Processing Selective heat sintering
(DLP) (SHS)
Type Technology Type Technology
Wire Electron Beam Selective laser sintering
Freeform Fabrication SLS
(EBF3)
Extrusion Fused deposition
modeling (FDM

Accessories
Accessories may be defined as a thing that can be added to something else in order to make it
more useful, versatile, or attractive.

Accessories may exist under the following product categories (although not inclusive): Printers,
copiers, scanners, plotters, facsimiles, 3D printers. Tab 3 of Bid Package 2 Pricing Index titled

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 11
03/2018



Entire Product Offering has listed Accessories as a Category. Vendor should list all products that
they consider as an accessory, peripheral, or ancillary product within the Accessories category.
This Microsoft Excel ™ file shall be submitted as an attached file to the Vendor proposal through
the VIS Portal. Vendor should add additional rows to provide all products and pricing that are
offered in their response. If an accessory is not listed in tab 3, Entire Product Offering, it may
not be offered on a resulting contract.

The following are some examples of an accessory: power surge, power conditioner, document
feeder, punch, trimmer, wireless accessory, memory, finisher, kits, licenses, tools, monitor,
envelope inserters, cables, keyboards, additives, raw materials, plotter paper, etc.

Document Imaging Services/Solutions
Document imaging equipment systems can take many forms including microfilm, on demand
printers, facsimile machines, copiers, multifunction printers, document scanners, computer
output microfilm (COM) and archive writers, or indexing services. Document Imaging means the
conversion of paper files (of any size or description) or microfilm / fiche to digital images. Digital
Imaging means the conversion of digital files, but not limited to digital to microfilm/ fiche, and
microform to digital conversion. This RFO seeks Document Imaging Services or Solutions that may
include but are not limited to:

e Document Conversion

e Preservation and Archive Scanning and Imaging

e Document preparation

e Indexing and formatting

e Digital retention, storage and hosting

e Microfiche and Digitization Imaging

e Image Enhancement

e ICR/OCR/OMR

e Interface with Customer system

Security
The Vendor must provide for the security of all Documents picked up from Customer and the

Documents must be transported in a closed and locked vehicle with appropriate climate
control. Documents must be secured in such a manner as to prevent them from being damaged
or disarranged during transport.

The Vendor must take all necessary precautions to ensure against loss or theft while in
possession of the Documents, or at any time while they are the Vendor’s responsibility (as in
the case where an authorized subcontractor is used). Additionally, the Vendor must have
appropriate staff criminal history checks and bonding as required by the Customer’s written SOW
or ordering document. The Vendor must maintain proper control and handling of the
Documents in order to prevent unauthorized access and/or access to the Documents by
unauthorized individuals.

The Vendor must provide for Secure storage of Source Media while in its’ custody. It is reasonable
for the Vendor to store Source Media for 30 Business Days before the start of a project and 30
Business Days after the completion date at no cost to Customer. If there is a charge for additional
days of storage, then it must be included in Bid Package 2, Pricing Index, tab 3 Entire Product
Offering. Completion date should be defined as the final delivery date for the records imaged

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 12
03/2018



unless otherwise agreed by the Vendor and Customer. The Vendor must not connect imaging
equipment to the internet without Customer’s prior written approval.

The Vendor must utilize a location that is properly Secured in order to ensure adequate
protection against theft of or damage to Customer Documents. Documents should not be
exposed to food, drink, or other contaminants at any time. Documents must be unloaded
and scanned in a Secure location and may not be left in an unsecure location or in a Secure
location accessible to unauthorized persons.

Vendor’s facilities must meet or exceed the following minimum security and environmental

requirements:

e physical security and access control systems;

e basic environmental controls, such as air conditioning and heating;

e an automatic fire detection system;

e emergency opening and alarm activation capabilities that are in compliance with all applicable
government fire and safety codes;

e 24 hours per day/ 365 days per year police and fire monitoring; and

e Immediately upon becoming aware of any loss, damage to or theft of Customer Documents,
data, Images, etc., the Vendor must notify the Customer and the DIR Contract Manager.

The Vendor must perform all functions of the Contract and keep all related data always and
exclusively within the continental United States. All work and data must remain always and
exclusively in the continental United States. The Vendor must handle, distribute, and store
confidential Documents in accordance with all applicable security regulations and laws, including
but not limited to Texas Business and Commerce Code Chapters 521, 502, and 503; 15 USC
§8§6801 et seq. (Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act), 26 USC §§ 6108, 7609 (Tax Reform Act), 5 USC §552a
(federal Privacy Act); 29 USC §1181 et seq. (HIPAA). In addition, Vendors must also support
Customer’s processes for managing records’ lifecycle. Additionally, Vendor must comply with,
at a minimum, the statutes and regulations regarding all record management and electronic
records listed below:

* State— Gov't Code 441.180-205 and rules 13 TAC 6
* Local - Local Government Records Act — Local Gov’'t Code 201-205 and rules 13 TAC 7

The following items are included in Bid Package 2 Pricing Index, tab 3 (Entire Product Offering)
under Document Imaging Services/Solutions. Vendor’s proposed pricing may offer one, all or
none of the following items, depending on their line of business. These categories have been
identified from product/services sales data on the current SPD contracts. In the event that the
document imaging items listed in the Pricing sheets do not adequately align with the Vendor line-
of-business/offerings, Bid Package 2, Pricing Index, tab 3 (Entire Product Offering) provides for
Miscellaneous/Other products/services pricing to add unique or miscellaneous document
imaging product/services/solutions, as long as the offering is with the scope of Document Imaging
as defined in this RFO.

Black and White Low (200 DPI) Index Field - Type 1 16-30 Characters
Image Capture
Black and White Medium (300 DPI) Index Field - Type 1 31-45 Characters
Image Capture

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 13
03/2018



Black and White
Image Capture

High (400 DPI)

Index Field - Type 2

Up to 15 Characters

Black and White
Image Capture

Very High (600 DPI +)

Index Field - Type 2

16-30 Characters

Black and White
Image Capture

Preservation < 600
PPI

Index Field - Type 2

31-45 Characters

Black and White
Image Capture

Preservation >= 600
PPI

Searchable PDF
Documents

Scanned images with
text portions

Color Image Capture
Service/Solution

Medium (300 DPI)

Special Document
Handling
Service/Solution

Handling includes
overnight vault storage
services

Color Image Capture
Service/Solution

High (400 DPI)

Special Document
Handling

Special handling for
fragile materials

Color Image Capture
Service/Solution

Very High (600 DPI +)

Special Document
Handling

Handling includes
stringent
environmental
requirements/solutions

Color Image Capture
Service/Solution

Preservation < 600
PPI

Capture from Special
Formats
Service/Solution

Photographic prints

Color Image Capture
Service/Solution

Preservation >= 600
PPI

Capture from Special
Formats

Photographic negatives

Large Format Image | Medium (300 DPI) Capture from Special Newspapers
Capture Formats

Service/Solution

Large Format Image | High (400 DPI) Capture from Special X-Rays

Capture
Service/Solution

Formats
Service/Solution

Large Format Image
Capture
Service/Solution

Very High (600 DPI +)

Capture from Special
Formats
Service/Solution

Manuscripts

Transparent Media
Image
Service/Solution

Medium (1200 PPI)

Capture from Special
Formats
Service/Solution

Drawings

Transparent Media
Image
Service/Solution

High (2400 PPI)

Capture from Special
Formats
Service/Solution

Bound Books

Transparent Media Very High (4000 PPI Enhancing Images Bit depth
Image +) Service/Solution

Service/Solution

Image Processing Low (200 DPI) Enhancing Images Resolution

Service/Solution

Service/Solution

Image Processing
Service/Solution

Medium (300 DPI)

Enhancing Images
Service/Solution

Tonal dynamic range

Image Processing High (400 DPI) Enhancing Images Contrast
Service/Solution Service/Solution

Image Processing Very High (600 DPI +) Enhancing Images Color space
Service/Solution Service/solution

Image Processing Preservation < 600 Delivery Media CcDh
Service/Solution PPI

Image Processing Preservation >= 600 Delivery Media DVD

Service/Solution

PPI

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419
03/2018

Page 14




Microfiche
Conversion
Service/Solution

Conversion of
microfiche to digital
Images

Delivery Media

usB

Microfilm
Conversion
Service/Solution

Conversion of
microfilm to digital
Images

Delivery Media

External hard drive

Index Field - Type 1

Up to 15 Characters

Transportation of
Source Material

Secure carrier charge
for each box in
shipment

Secure Document
Destruction
Service/Solution

Non-Paper
Destruction
Service/solution

Secure Document
Destruction
Service/Solution

Paper Destruction

Source Document Destruction or Return

Upon termination or completion of all work and/or at specified intervals as required by
Customer, the Vendor must comply with the Customer requirements for Document disposal
or return. All source Documents and materials produced or delivered, if not already the property
of the Customer, will become and remain the property of the Customer.

When required by the SOW, the Vendor must destroy (rather than return) the Source Media
and as requested, send written confirmation or certificate of destruction to the Customer that
the information has been destroyed. State agencies are required to use the set-aside Document
Destruction Services Contracts as per Human Resources Code §122.008 and Vendor(s) are
encouraged to accommodate the Customer requirements. It is not expected that Documents
are to undergo Re-preparation if the Documents are to be destroyed; however, it is always
dependent on Customer requirements as spelled out in the SOW as to what will be required
with Documents following imaging.

All data must be destroyed in accordance with Customer records series retention periods and
records management practices via written consent. This requirement includes any data that may
have been captured by scanning devices used in a Digital Imaging project for any PA. The Vendor
must comply with the requirements of 1 TAC §202.26 or §202.76, as applicable, regarding
destruction of information stored on hard drives or other media.

The Vendor must describe how all data Captured will be destroyed once data backup and
retention requirements no longer apply and certify in writing to the Customer that the
information has been destroyed.

Customer Service

The Vendor must deliver “best in class” Customer Service. Vendor’s Service Level Support
Agreement should address Vendor Customer Service including, but not limited to, general
service call center, relationship management for escalation of issues, and technical
representative available to the Customer. A well-detailed Service Level Support Agreement will
provide descriptions of all aspects of customer service related to services to be performed and
solutions provided by Vendor under a Contract issued as a result of this RFO including standard
procedures and corrective action procedures if issues are discovered by the Customer.

Training
If training is requested by PA, Vendor shall provide all training at no cost unless training costs

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419
03/2018

Page 15



are listed on the Price Sheet Attachment. Use your response to describe your Training Services
and what separates your company from others.

Enterprise Content Management (ECM)

Enterprise Content Management (ECM) is used to create, store, distribute, discover, archive,
transform and manage unstructured content (such as scanned documents, email, reports, medical
images and office documents), and ultimately analyze usage to enable organizations to deliver
relevant content to users where and when they need it. Products may include Content Services
Platform (CSP) which is a set of services and microservices, embodied either as an integrated
product suite or as separate applications that share common APIs and repositories, to exploit
diverse content types and to serve multiple constituencies and numerous use cases across an
organization. This kind of platform can be delivered as an integrated product suite or as separate
applications that have similar APIs and repositories. The changes in this space represent a shift
from self-contained systems and repositories to open services.

The ECM in this RFO includes such software and SaaS and cloud services to facilitate content
management records management, document management, document storage/
imaging/archiving/retrieval, and enterprise content management such as, but not all inclusive as:

e [T Based ECM Software and Services to include (although not all inclusive):
document conversion;

records management and storage;

information governance;

transactional content management;

social content management;

online channel optimization; and

infrastructure content management.

Software as a Service for video, mobility, social, and cloud platforms.
Digital Asset Management

Archiving

Imaging

Business Process Management

Records Management

Document Management

Web Content Management

@]

O 00000000 O0OO0OO0OO0OO0

3.1.1 Pricing

Any Vendor responding to this RFO must submit specific pricing for the products requested
herein. For the purposes of obtaining pricing and evaluating the responses to this RFO, the
products and related services, if any, shall be priced and discounted as instructed in this
solicitation number DIR-TSO-TMP-419. All products for Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers,
3D printers and Scanning & Plotting Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging
Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services may be
made available on a single Vendor contract depending upon 1) the vendor’s offerings in their
proposal, 2) successful evaluation scoring, and 3) successful negotiations.

Vendors must submit pricing on DIR’s Automated Pricing Form in the BidStamp VIS. Failure to

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 16
03/2018



respond as instructed may result in Vendor’s offer being disqualified from further evaluation.

3.1.1.1 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index

Pricing Index: Bid Package 2 has six (6) tabs.
O The first tab (titled 1 - Instructions) contains instructions for completing the
Price Sheets that will assist as the Vendor completes their proposal.

0 The second tab (titled 2 - BidStamp Pricing Sheet) has representative samples
(titled EXAMPLE) of products. Below Examples (in white/uncolored rows) is a list
of products that should be entered in to the BidStamp VIS Portal Price Form.
Vendor must offer only one price for each product listed. The price to the DIR
Customer shall include all shipping and handling fees. If you do not offer the
product listed in tab 2 Price Sheet, do not enter it into the BidStamp VIS Portal
Price Form. If you do offer the product listed in tab 2 Price sheet, enter it into
the BidStamp VIS Portal Price Form. You will not be penalized if you do not offer
a particular product and it will not affect Vendor’s scoring/rating.

= MPS Category: For instance, if you do not offer a copier line that falls
within the M1 Volume Band (1 — 30 Pages per Minute [PPM]) then you
should not enter it into the BidStamp VIS Portal Price Form. If you do
offer six M1 Volume Band products/copiers, there are separate rows on
the Pricing Sheet for “lowest” and “highest”. Of the six M1 Volume bands
that you offer, list the lowest-priced product and the highest-priced
product/copier in the M1 Volume Band of the BidStamp VIS Portal Price
Form.

O Tab 2 - BidStamp Pricing Sheet (tab 2) has sections titled:
= Managed Print Services, Network Devices, Non-Network Devices
[scanners, plotters, facsimiles, etc.] (MPS)
= Document Imaging (DIS)
= Enterprise Content Management (ECM)

NOTE: For BidStamp VIS Portal Price Form, it is very IMPORTANT that for each
applicable category only enter "MPS", “DIS” or “ECM” in the BRAND
Column.

O For BidStamp ENTRY: It is IMPORTANT to know if the following fields are left
blank or not populated an ERROR will occur:

=  BRAND
= Product Number/SKU
= MSRP

=  Discount % off MSRP
=  Manufacturer or Reseller

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 17
03/2018



0 The Third tab (titled 3 - Entire Product Offering MPS) provides several examples
under each category:
= Managed Print Services, Network Devices, Non-Network Devices
e Service Level Agreement “SLA Project/SOW”
e Related Services
e  Accessories
e Miscellaneous/Other

O The Fourth tab (titled 4 - Entire Product Offering DIS) provides several examples
under each category:
=  Document Imaging
e Miscellaneous/Other

O The Fifth tab (titled 5 - Entire Product Offering ECM) provides several examples
under each category:
= Enterprise Content Management
e Related Services
e Miscellaneous/Other

Vendors must submit their complete catalog of products with specific pricing in
the format outlined on third tab, fourth tab and fifth tab titled 3 - Entire Product
Offering-MPS, 4 - Entire Product Offering-DIS and 5 - Entire Product Offering-
ECM. This Microsoft Excel ™ file shall be submitted as an attached file to the
Vendor proposal through the VIS Portal. Vendor should add additional rows to
provide all products and pricing that are offered in their response. Vendor
should not delete any tabs or delete any columns. If a product or service is not
listed in tabs 3 - Entire Product Offering-MPS, 4 - Entire Product Offering-DIS
and 5 - Entire Product Offering-ECM Entire Product Offering, it may not be
offered on a resulting contract.

0 The sixth tab (titled 6 - Volume Discount): DIR encourages Vendors to offer
VOLUME pricing for specific Products and/or Services on the spreadsheet tabs
of Bid Package 2, Pricing Index. In addition to VOLUME pricing for specific
Products and/or Services, DIR encourages Vendors to propose increased
discount based on total statewide aggregate contract sales for Products and
Services. See Instruction tab in Bid Package 2, Pricing Index for volume pricing
instructions.

DIR is not soliciting Managed Print Services (MPS), Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, and Scanning,
Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services for the agency. DIR establishes
statewide master contracts for use by DIR eligible customers. DIR competitively bids for
information technology products and services.

Customers must identify their own needs, then contact an awarded DIR Vendor and obtain a price
quote for products/services. Customers may submit a statement of work or purchase order to
the Vendor when obtaining a quote based on their needs. The Customer makes the best value
determination and issues a purchase order directly to the Vendor.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 18
03/2018



This RFO is not a solicitation for professional or consulting services as defined in Chapter 2254,
Texas Government Code.

3.2. Related Services

Related services are any value-added service that Vendor may perform as related to the products
proposed in Section 3.1. Related services include but are not limited to: product installation,
maintenance and technical support, project management, managed services and product training
and Managed Print Services. Any Vendor offering product Services must submit a description of
those services and the related pricing in Bid Package 2 Pricing Index, tab 3 (Entire Product
Offering) of the spreadsheet in the Automated Pricing Form in the BidStamp VIS in the (MS Excel®)
format provided in the Pricing Sheet attachment. If a product or service is not listed on Tab 3 -
Entire Product Offering-MPS, Tab 4 - Entire Product Offering-DIS or Tab 5 - Entire Product
Offering-ECM Entire Product Offering, it may not be offered on a resulting contract.

This RFO is not a solicitation for professional or consulting services as defined in Chapter 2254 of
the Texas Government Code.

3.3. Emerging Technologies

DIR recognizes that technology is ever-evolving and advancing. DIR reserves the right to consider
the addition of emerging technology such as next generation, enhancements and upgrades for
products or services that are within the scope of DIR-TSO-TMP-419. Vendor may propose such
products and related services throughout the term of the contract. In order to meet the needs of
DIR customers, DIR may request the addition of products and services within scope of DIR-TSO-
TMP-419 by augmenting the original solicitation through a competitive bidding process. Pricing
and terms will be negotiated upon DIR agreement. Any determination will be at DIR’s sole
discretion and any decision will be final.

3.4. Threshold and SOW Requirements

State Agency Customers (not including institutions of higher education), must adhere to the
requirements of Senate Bill 533 (85R) relating to DIR Cooperative Contracts. Senate Bill 533
(SB533) requires state agencies to adhere to the following purchasing thresholds:

Threshold Requirements for IT Commodities (Hardware, Software and Services)

Contract Value Number of DIR Vendors

$50,000 or less May award directly to DIR Vendor of choice

$50,000.01 to $1,000,000,00 Three (or all DIR Vendors in a category with less than
three vendors)

$1,000,000.01 to $5 million Six (or all DIR Vendors in a category with less than six
vendors)

More than $5,000,000.01 Agencies must conduct an independent
procurement and cannot use DIR Cooperative
Contracts

In addition, TGC Section 2157.0685 requires that state agencies procuring more than $50,000

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 19
03/2018



worth of services from DIR Contracts must submit their draft and final Statements of Work to DIR
for review and approval prior to making payment to a Vendor.

Threshold and SOW review and signature processes do not apply to Institutions of higher
education, K-12, local governments, assistance organizations, or out-of-state customers.

3.5. Electronic and Information Resources (EIR) Accessibility

Under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2054, Subchapter M, and DIR implementing rules, DIR
state agency Customers must procure EIR that complies with the Accessibility Standards defined
in the Texas Administrative Codes 1 TAC 206, 1 TAC 213, and WCAG 2.0 AA as applicable, and
when such products are available in the commercial marketplace or when such products are
developed in response to a procurement solicitation.

Accordingly, all Vendors must submit completed VPAT form (Bid Package 9) or links to
completed VPATs located on manufacturer websites for each proposed product or product
family prior to an award for the proposed product or product family. Instructions on how to
complete a VPAT® can be found on DIR’s website.

Vendors claiming that a proposed product or family of products is exempt from accessibility
requirements must use the VPAT form to: (1) specify each exempt product or product family and
indicate “Not Applicable” in the “Supporting Features” column of the Summary Table; (2) provide
an explanation in the “Remarks” column of Summary Table.

e For Consumer Off the Shelf (COTS) products, including Software as a Service (SaaS), a
completed, accurate Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT) for each product or
service included in the submitted pricelist.

Vendors who do not already have accessibility documentation should complete the form located
here: http://www.itic.org/public-policy/accessibility. Vendors that claim their products are
exempt from accessibility requirements must present that position to DIR as a question during
the question and answer period of the solicitation.

In addition to the VPAT requirement, vendors must complete the Policy Driven Adoption for
Accessibility (PDAA) for Vendor Self-Assessment. (Bid Package 10)

3.6. Form of Contract

3.6.1 Sample Contract and Terms Negotiation

Negotiation: The final terms and conditions of any contract awarded as a result of this RFO shall
be agreed upon during negotiation. However, the minimum standard terms and conditions that
shall be included in any awarded contract are contained in the sample Contract for Products and
Related Services attached as “Bid Package 3” and the Standard Terms and Conditions for Products
and Related Services Contracts attached as “Bid Package 4” to the posting for this RFO, requisition
number DIR-TSO-TMP-419, on the Electronic State Business Daily,
http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 20
03/2018



3.6.2 Proposed Changes and Exceptions

Caution: Vendors’ Responses may be disqualified if their exceptions are excessive, or if they
except to non-negotiable terms, as described below. Item 11 of Exhibit A contains the format
for Vendor to note any exception to any provision, term, or condition specified in the Contract for
Products and Related Services and Standard Terms and Conditions for Products and Related
Services Contracts. Vendor should provide any proposed changes to contract language in redline
in the “Proposed Language (redline)” column of the chart in Item 11 of Exhibit A. Vendors may
request exceptions to standard contract terms and conditions; however, (1) where noted,
exceptions to certain terms and conditions will not be allowed. If Vendor is unable to comply
with these provisions, the Vendor’s response may be subject to disqualification from further
consideration for this solicitation; (2) DIR in its discretion may or may not accept the Vendor’s
requested exceptions; and (3) material deviations (including excessive, additional, inconsistent,
conflicting or alternative terms) may render the Offer non-responsive and may result in
rejection of the bid. An explanation as to why the Vendor cannot comply with the provision,
term, or condition and proposed alternative language must be included in the response. If Vendor
fails to note any exception, Vendor will not be allowed to request an exception upon award or at
some later date.

DIR anticipates an initial contract term of two (2) years renewable automatically in one (1)
optional two-year renewal and one (1) optional one-year renewal under the same terms and
conditions, unless either party provides notice to the other party 60 days in advance of the
renewal date stating that the party wishes to discuss modifications of terms or not renew. In the
event of prolonged contract negotiations DIR may in its discretion offer Vendor a shorter contract
term.

DIR reserves the right to make changes to the Contract for Products and Related Services or the
Standard Terms and Conditions for Products and Related Services Contracts if it is in the best
interest of the State to do so. Should this occur prior to the award of any contracts as a result of
this RFO, any Vendors selected for negotiations will be notified.

General Information
4.1. Point of Contact
All communications regarding this RFO must be addressed in writing to:

Carrie Thomas

Department of Information Resources
300 W. 15%™ Street, Suite 1300

Austin, Texas 78701

Phone: 512-936-2353

Fax: 512-936-6896

Internet: carrie.thomas@dir.texas.gov

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 21
03/2018



4.2. Contact with DIR Staff

Upon issuance of this RFO, employees and representatives of DIR other than the Point of Contact
identified in Section 4.1 will not discuss the contents of this RFO with any Vendor or their
representatives. Failure of a Vendor and any of its representatives to observe this restriction
may result in disqualification of any related response. This restriction does not preclude
discussions between affected parties for the purpose of conducting business unrelated to this
procurement.

4.3. Anticipated Schedule

4.3.1 RFO Schedule

It is DIR’s intention to comply with the following schedule for this RFO. These dates
represent a tentative schedule of events. DIR reserves the right to modify these dates at
any time. Prospective Vendors will be notified of modifications to the schedule via the
Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) web site.

Date/Time Activity
Publish RFO on Electronic State
Business Daily

December 12, 2018

December 21, 2018 9:00 A.M. —11:00
A.M. (CT)

January 7, 2019 2:00 P.M. (CT) Deadline for submitting questions

Estimate for posting answers to
guestions on the ESBD
Deadline for DIR to receive Vendor

Optional Vendor Conference

January 22, 2019 COB (CT)

February 4, 2019 2:00 PM (CT)

references
February 4, 2019 2:00 PM (CT) Deadline for submitting responses to DIR
Evaluation of responses, oral
February 4, 2019 — until completed presentations (if requested),

negotiation and contract execution

4.3.2 Vendor Conference

The Optional Vendor Conference will be held on the date and time specified in RFO
Section 4.3.1 above at the location listed below. Please bring a copy of the RFO to the
Vendor Conference, as DIR will only supply a limited amount of copies.

William P. Clements Building
300 W. 15th Street

Ground Floor, Room 103
Austin, Texas 78701

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 22
03/2018



Webinar Information
A webinar will be held on the date and time specified in RFO Section 4.3.1 above.
To reserve a webinar seat, register at:

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2982423486435590147

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about
joining the Webinar.

DIR will provide conference and webinar attendees with an opportunity to submit written
guestions at the conference. All questions submitted at the conference must reference
the appropriate RFO page and section number. Although DIR may provide tentative
verbal responses to questions at the conference, responses are not official until they are
posted as an addendum to this RFO on the Electronic State Business Daily,
http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp. DIR reserves the right to amend answers prior to the
offer submission deadline.

Any addenda and/or amendment to this procurement solicitation will be posted as an
addendum on the Electronic State Business Daily. It is the responsibility of interested
parties to periodically check the ESBD for updates to the procurement during the time
period that the solicitation is Open per the RFO Schedule in 4.3.1. Respondent’s failure to
periodically check the ESBD will in no way release the selected Vendor from “addenda or
additional information” resulting in additional costs to meet the requirements of the RFO.

4.3.3 Written Questions and Official Answers

Vendors shall submit all questions regarding this RFO through the BidStamp VIS.
Questions regarding this RFO will be accepted until the date and time specified above
in Section 4.3.1, RFO Schedule. Note: Texas observes Daylight Savings Time. Official
answers will be posted as an addendum to this RFO, requisition number DIR-TSO-TMP-
419 on the Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp. DIR
reserves the right to amend answers prior to the offer submission deadline.

Any addenda and/or amendment to this procurement solicitation will be posted as an
addendum on the Electronic State Business Daily. It is the responsibility of interested
parties to periodically check the ESBD for updates to the procurement prior to submitting
a bid. Respondent’s failure to periodically check the ESBD will in no way release the
selected Vendor from “addenda or additional information” resulting in additional costs to
meet the requirements of the RFO.

4.4. Historically Underutilized Businesses

The purpose of the Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Program is to promote full and equal
business opportunities for all businesses in State contracting in accordance with the goals
specified in the State of Texas Disparity Study. Each state agency must make a good faith effort to
meet or exceed the goals identified below and assist HUBs in receiving a portion of the total
contract value of all contracts that the agency expects to award in a fiscal year in accordance with
the following procurement goals/percentages:

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 23
03/2018



.

11.2% for heavy construction other than building contracts;
21.1% for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders’

contracts;

o v kW

32.9% for all special trade construction contracts;
23.7% for professional services contracts;

26.0% for all other services contracts;

21.1% for commodities contracts.

It is the policy of DIR to make a good faith effort to achieve the annual program goals by
contracting directly with HUBs or indirectly through subcontracting opportunities in accordance
with the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2161.252(b), and HUB Rules promulgated by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA), 34 TAC, Chapter 20.

HUBs are strongly urged to respond to this RFO. Under Texas law, state agencies are required to
make a good faith effort to assist HUBs in receiving certain percentages of the total value of
contract awards. Vendors who meet the qualifications are strongly encouraged to apply for
certification as HUBs.

44.1

4.4.2

44.3

HUB Subcontracting Plan

DIR has determined that subcontracting is probable under any contract awarded as a
result of this RFO. The HUB Goal for this RFO is 21.1%. ALL VENDORS RESPONDING TO
THIS RFO, INCLUDING THOSE THAT ARE HUB CERTIFIED OR THOSE WHO DO NOT PLAN
TO SUBCONTRACT, MUST COMPLETE A HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN (HSP) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE’S POLICY ON UTILIZATION OF HUBs. THE HSP MUST BE
INCLUDED AS PART OF THE RESPONSE TO THIS RFO. FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE HSP AS
INSTRUCTED MAY RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION OF THE RESPONSE FROM
CONSIDERATION. The State’s Policy on Utilization of Historically Underutilized Businesses
and HSP forms are available in the BidStamp VIS. Please review the HSP forms carefully
and allow sufficient time to identify and contact HUBs and allow them to respond. Note
that Vendors must demonstrate a good faith effort to contract with new HUBs if currently
proposed HUBs have performed as subcontractors to the Vendor for more than five years.
If the Vendor does not plan to subcontract, Vendor must state that fact in their plan. An
original, signed paper copy of the HSP must be uploaded into BidStamp. The completed
plan shall become a part of the contract that may be awarded as a result of this RFO.

HUB Continuing Performance

Any contracts awarded as a result of this RFO shall include reporting responsibilities
related to HUB subcontracting. Awarded Vendors may not change any subcontractor
without submitting a revised HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP). Any change to a
subcontractor and revised HSP must be approved in writing by DIR prior to
implementation.

HUB Resources Available

A list of certified HUBs is available on the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA)
Website at: https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. For additional
information, contact the CPA’s HUB program office at
StatewideHUBProgram@cpa.texas.gov. If Vendors know of any businesses that may
qualify for certification as a HUB, they should encourage those businesses to contact the

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 24

03/2018



CPA HUB program office.

4.5.2

Vendor Qualifications

Authorized Vendors

Vendors who respond to this RFO must be one of the following:

1)

2)

Vendor who will sell directly to Customers through a Co-op Contract. Any proposing
Vendor who is not the Manufacturer/Publisher must supply a signed letter from the
Manufacturer/Publisher certifying that Vendor is an authorized reseller of
Manufacturer’s/Publisher’s products to the agencies and political subdivisions of the
State, including institutions of higher education, and may sell such products under
the terms and conditions of the DIR Contract, in support of Vendor’s proposal. Signed
letters of authorization must be submitted with Vendor’s proposal. Failure to supply
the letter may result in elimination of the related proposal from the solicitation
process.

Vendor who will execute a Co-op Contract with DIR and designate one or more
qualified dealers or resellers (Order Fulfillers) to sell directly to Customers on its
behalf. Vendor may also sell directly to Customers. Vendors responding to this RFO
must supply a signed letter from the Manufacturer/Publisher certifying that Vendor
is an authorized reseller of Manufacturer’s/Publisher’s products to the agencies and
political subdivisions of the State, including institutions of higher education, and may
sell such products under the terms and conditions of the DIR Contract, in support of
Vendor’s proposal. Signed letters of authorization must be submitted on
Manufacturer/Publisher letterhead with original signature with Vendor’s proposal.
Failure to supply the letter may result in elimination of the related proposal from
the solicitation process.

Federal Requirements

1)

2)

3)

State agencies are prohibited from doing business with terrorists and terrorist
organizations. Any Vendor listed in the prohibited Vendors list authorized by
Executive Order #13224, "Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with
Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism”, published by the
United States Department of the Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control (Terrorism
List) shall not be awarded a Contract as a result of this RFO. Any Vendor awarded a
Contract as a result of this RFO must agree that if at any time during the term of the
contract the Vendor is listed on the Terrorism List, the Vendor shall promptly notify
DIR. As part of DIR’s contract management, periodic checks will be performed to
ensure any Vendor awarded a contract as a result of the RFO remains in compliance
with these Federal Requirements. DIR shall have the absolute right to terminate the
contract without recourse in the event Vendor becomes listed on the Terrorism List.
Should any Vendor or its principals awarded a Contract as a result of this RFO become
suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal government as listed in
the System for Award Management (SAM) maintained by the General Services
Administration, the Vendor’s contract will be terminated without recourse.

Vendor shall comply with the requirements of the Immigration and Reform Act of
1986, the lllegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 25

03/2018



("IIRIRA"), and the Immigration Act of 1990 (8 U.S.C.1101, et seq.) regarding
employment verification and retention of verification forms for any individual(s) hired
on or after the effective date of the 1996 Act who will perform any labor or services
under this Contract.

4.5.3 Vendor Performance and Debarment

In accordance with 34 TAC, Chapter 20, Subchapter C, any Vendor that is debarred from
doing business with the State of Texas will not be awarded a contract under this
solicitation. The list of debarred Vendors is located on the CPA Web site at:
http://comptroller.texas.gov/procurement/prog/vendor performance/debarred/

4.5.4 Required Vendor and Subcontractor Current and Former State Employee Disclosures

Vendor shall disclose, for itself and on behalf of all of its Subcontractors, in its response

to Section 12 of Exhibit A to the RFO, all of the following:

1) Any current or former employees of Vendor who will spend 20% or more of their time
on a contract resulting from this RFO and are current or former employees of DIR
within the past five (5) years;

2) Any proposed Vendor personnel assigned to work directly on any Contract to arise
from this RFO 20% or more of their time who are related within two degrees of
consanguinity of any current or former employees of DIR. Disclosure of former state
employees may be limited to the last five (5) years; and

3) Vendor will certify that they are in compliance with Texas Government Code, Title 6,
Subtitle B, Section 669.003, relating to contracting with the executive head of a state
agency. If Section 669.003 applies, Vendor will complete the following information
in order for the response to be evaluated: Name of Former Executive, Name of State
Agency, Date of Separation for State Agency, Position with Vendor, and Date of
Employment with Vendor.

4.6. Response Deadline and Submission Requirements

Vendors are invited to submit responses in accordance with the requirements outlined in this
document. Responses must be received by DIR on or before the solicitation response due date
listed in section 4.3.1. No late responses will be reviewed. No facsimile or e-mail responses shall
be accepted. No physical written responses will be accepted unless pre-approved and authorized
by DIR in accordance with section 2.1 of this solicitation.

4.6.1 Official Timepiece

The clock in the DIR Purchasing Office at 300 W. 15 Street, 13" Floor, Room 1335, is the
official timepiece for determining compliance with the deadline. All responses will be date
and time stamped electronically in the BidStamp VIS or if accommodation is granted by
DIR, when received by the Purchasing Office on the 13" floor.

4.7. Response Format and Contents

Per section 2.1 of this solicitation, any Vendor responding to this RFO must submit their response
through the BidStamp VIS unless granted an accommodation by DIR by the appropriate deadline.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 26
03/2018



4.7.1

Mandatory Response Contents

VENDOR MUST PROVIDE THE ITEMS LISTED BELOW OR THE RESPONSE WILL BE
REJECTED.

1) Vendor Information — Exhibit A of this RFO

This form must be filled out in its entirety and signed by an officer or agent empowered
to contractually bind the Vendor. Vendors Response should offer information to
support its capability to provide the products and services requested in this RFO.
Attachments 1 and 2 must be completed and submitted with the response if applicable
per Item 21, Canceled Contracts.

2) Vendor History and Experience - Exhibit B of this RFO
Vendors Response should offer information to support its capability to provide the
products and services requested in this RFO.

3) Contract Marketing and Support Plan — Exhibit C of this RFO
Vendor must provide a plan that describes the Vendor’s ability and strategy for
promoting and supporting the contract, if awarded.

4) HUB Subcontracting Plan Forms — Exhibit D of this RFO
All Vendors, INCLUDING THOSE WITH HUB DESIGNATION AND THOSE THAT DO NOT
PLAN TO USE SUBCONTRACTORS, must submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan. The HUB
Subcontracting Plan Form is provided in the BidStamp VIS portal. Refer to Section 4.4
for more information regarding HUB subcontracting. Note: For the purposes of the
HUB Subcontracting Plan, Order Fulfillers designated by a manufacturer or publisher
to sell directly to Customers on its behalf are considered subcontractors. The signed
copy of the HSP must be uploaded and submitted in the BidStamp VIS.

5) Product Pricing
Vendor shall provide a detailed description and the specific pricing for any products
and related services that Vendor is proposing to offer in response to this RFO via the
Automated pricing Form in the BidStamp VIS. Vendor shall provide specific pricing
for the products and related services applicable to their response. Bid Package 2 —
Pricing Index will be uploaded into BidStamp VIS.

6) Signed letter(s) from the Manufacturer / Publisher, on Manufacturer/Publisher
letterhead certifying that Vendor is an authorized reseller of Manufacturer’s /
Publisher’s products. Handwritten signature or certified digital signature (i.e.
Docusign) are acceptable; typed or script font signatures are not.

7) Software License Agreements and/or Service Agreements
Vendor shall provide any Software License Agreements and/or Service Agreements
that are applicable to the services Vendor is proposing. These Agreements must, at a
minimum, allow and provide for inclusion of the terms and conditions of the Contract
for Products and Related Services (Bid Package 3) and the Standard Terms and
Conditions for Products and Related Services Contracts (Bid Package 4).

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 27

03/2018



8) Policy-Driven Adoption for Accessibility — Bid Package 10
Vendor must provide the PDAA form (Bid Package 10) as requested in Section 3.5,
Electronic and Information Resources (EIR) Accessibility, of this RFO.

4.7.2 References — Bid Package 8

Vendor must send the Vendor Reference Questionnaire (Bid Package 8) to three (3)
companies or government agencies. Instructions are included on the questionnaire.
Vendor may submit the Vendor Reference Questionnaire to companies or government
agencies through the BidStamp VIS. DIR is not responsible for undeliverable e-mails or
for non-responsive references. Vendor’s references will be evaluated in accordance with
Section 5.2.2. Include all requested information. References must respond to DIR on the
form provided by the due date in order to be considered in proposal evaluation. The
Vendor Reference Questionnaire form must be submitted directly from the reference to
DIR. The Vendor may not submit the reference form to DIR. References may be contacted
for clarification at DIR’s discretion.

4.7.3 Accessibility of Electronic Response Documents — Bid Package 9

Vendor response documents should be submitted in a format that is accessible to people
with disabilities. This can include, but is not limited to accessible Office, Adobe PDF, or
other productivity document suite. Vendor should not submit scanned documents.

4.8. Rejection of Responses

DIR has sole discretionary authority and reserves the right to reject any and all responses received
as a result of this RFO. Responses that do not comply with the mandatory submission
requirements may be rejected. In addition, DIR reserves the right to accept or reject, in whole or
in part, any responses submitted, and to waive minor technicalities when in the best interest of
the State.

4.9. Right to Amend or Withdraw RFO

DIR reserves the right to alter, amend or modify any provision of this RFO, or to withdraw this
RFO, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the award of a contract if to do so is in the best
interest of the State. DIR reserves the right to re-solicit for like or similar products and services
whenever it determines re-solicitation to be in the best interest of the State.

Any changes or additional information regarding this RFO will be posted as an addendum to
requisition number DIR-TSO-TMP-419 on the Electronic State Business Daily,
http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp. It is the responsibility of Vendors to monitor the web site for
addenda. Vendor's failure to periodically check the ESBD will in no way release the vendor from
"addenda or additional information" resulting in additional costs to meet the requirements of the
RFO Pre-agreement Costs.

DIR shall not be responsible or liable for any cost incurred by any Vendor in the preparation and
submission of its response to this RFO or for other costs incurred by participating in this
procurement process.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 28
03/2018



4.10. Ownership of Responses

All responses become the property of DIR. DIR reserves the right to use any and all information
or materials presented in response to this RFO. Disqualification of a Vendor’s response does not
eliminate this right.

4.11. Public Information

DIR is a government agency subject to the Texas Public Information Act. Responses submitted to
DIR as a result of this RFO are subject to release as public information after contracts are executed
or if the procurement is terminated. Vendor may not mark its complete proposal “copyrighted”
or mark every page as proprietary or confidential but if a Vendor believes that its response, or
parts of its response, may be exempted from disclosure under Texas law, the Vendor must specify
page-by-page and line-by-line the parts of the response that it believes are exempt. In addition,
the Vendor must specify which exception(s) are applicable and provide detailed reasons
substantiating the exception(s).

The Office of the Attorney General (OAG) has the sole authority to determine whether
information is confidential and not subject to disclosure under the Public Information Act DIR shall
comply with all decisions of the OAG.

DIR assumes no responsibility for asserting legal arguments on behalf of any Vendor. Vendors are
advised to consult with their legal counsel concerning disclosure issues resulting from this
procurement process and to take precautions to safeguard trade secrets and other proprietary
information.

Evaluation, Negotiations, and Award

5.1. Evaluation of Responses

DIR will review proposals to determine responsiveness to this RFO. All determinations about
responsiveness to this RFO are final. All proposals determined to be responsive will go through a
financial review overseen by the Chief Financial Officer’s (CFQ’s) office. The financial review is a
pass/fail determination that is final. Only proposals that receive a passing grade will proceed to
the Evaluation Committee. DIR will establish an Evaluation Committee to review all responses
that have not been rejected. At any time during the evaluation process, DIR may ask any or all
Vendors to elaborate on or clarify specific points or portions of their response. DIR’s request and
Vendor’s response shall be in writing. Once initial evaluation of responses has been completed,
the Evaluation Committee shall turnover the tabulated scores to the DIR purchasing office and
shall conclude their duties.

5.2. Evaluation Criteria

5.2.1 Pass/Fail Criteria

In addition to the weighted criteria listed below DIR also reviews additional Pass/Fail criteria as
follows:

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 29
03/2018



1. DUNS Number and report is a Pass/Fail review conducted by the Finance Group (Exhibit
A, ltem 12)

2.  Compliance with applicable provisions of §§2155.074, 2155.075, 2156.007, 2157.003, and
2157.125, Gov't Code. Respondents may fail this selection criterion for any of the
following conditions:

a. Aletter grade score of D or F in the Vendor Performance System;

b. Currently under a Corrective Action Plan through the CPA, having repeated
negative Vendor Performance Reports,

¢. Having purchase orders that have been cancelled in the previous 12 months for
non-performance (including but not limited to late delivery, etc.).

3. Completion of HUB Subcontract Plan (Exhibit D).

5.2.2 Weighted Evaluation Criteria

The criteria and weight to be used in determining the best value for the State are as follows:
0 45% - Pricing
0 30% - Vendor History and Experience and References in providing the products and
services requested. (Exhibit B of Bid Package 1, and Vendor References)
0 25% - Vendor’s plan for supporting the Contract — Exhibit C

Vendors will be evaluated on performance under existing and prior contracts for similar products
or services and the evaluation may include consideration of Vendor performance as recorded in
the CPA Vendor Performance Tracking System as described in the Texas Administrative Code, 34
TAC 20.108(b).

5.3.  Oral Presentations, Best and Final Offer

DIR in its discretion shall make the determination whether to request oral presentations and/or
engage in the Best and Final Offer process. Both oral presentations and the Best and Final Offer
process, if held, will also be scored.

DIR reserves the right to continue to evaluate responses until such point as the best value, as
defined by Texas Government Code, Section 2157.003, is obtained for the State.

5.4. Negotiations

At the conclusion of the evaluation, as described within Sections 5.1 through 5.3 above, DIR staff
shall determine the number of Vendors with which it will start contract negotiations. In its
discretion, DIR shall terminate contract negotiations when DIR determines that the best value for
the State has been obtained. Then the staff will recommend award of one or more contracts to
DIR Executive Management.

5.5. Award of Contract

DIR Executive Management shall make the decision to award any contracts, if in the best interest
of DIR and the State to do so. The decision of Executive Management on any award is final. Any
award for this RFO shall be posted under requisition number on the Electronic State Business
Daily, http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp, upon execution of a contract with one or more Vendors.

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 30
03/2018



All responses and working papers pursuant to this RFO are not subject to disclosure under the
Public Information Act until all contracts resulting from this RFO have been executed.

Any Contract resulting from this solicitation is contingent upon the continued availability of lawful
appropriations by the Texas Legislature.

5.6. Vendor Protest Procedures

Any Vendor who is aggrieved in connection with this RFO, evaluation, or award of a contract may
formally protest to DIR in accordance with the Vendor protest procedures posted on the DIR Web
site at: http://dir.texas.gov/View-Information-For-Vendors/Pages/Content.aspx?id=21.

END OF RFO

RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Page 31
03/2018



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Bid Package 1 Exhibit A
Vendor Information

This form must be filled out in its entirety and signed by an officer or agent empowered to
contractually bind the Vendor.

1)

2)

Company Name:

Comptroller of Public Accounts Vendor Identification Number:

Principal place of business
Address:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

Facility responsible for servicing the contract
Address:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

Contact Person regarding Vendor’s response to the RFO
Name:

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone Number:

Fax:

Email:

Contact Person responsible for contract negotiation
Name:

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone Number:

Fax:

Email:

Officer or Agent empowered to contractually bind the Vendor:
Name:

Title:

Address:

Phone Number:

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Fax:
Email:

8) Indicate whether or not your company is a certified Historically Underutilized Business
(HUB) with the State of Texas by the CPA.
Yes No

9)  Provide the year in which your company was created/incorporated.

10) Vendor must send the Vendor Reference Questionnaire to three (3) companies or government
agencies. Instructions are included in Bid Package 5. DIR is not responsible for undeliverable
e-mails or for non-responsive references. If DIR does not receive a vendor reference, Vendor
will receive a score of “0” for that reference. Include all requested information. References must
respond to DIR on the form provided by the due date in order to be considered in proposal
evaluation. The Vendor Reference Questionnaire form must be submitted directly from the
reference to DIR. The Vendor may not submit the reference form to DIR. Should this occur,
the reference will be scored with a zero (0).

11) List below by subsection all exceptions to the Contract for Product and Services and Standard
Terms and Conditions for Product and Services Contracts in redline form. You must include
the basis of your exceptions and provide proposed alternate language. If Vendor fails to list
exceptions in its response, Vendor shall not be permitted to submit exceptions to the
same section during the negotiation process or thereafter. Vendor shall not redline the
contract or Exhibit A. All exceptions must be listed in the chart below.

Section Section Title Explanation of Proposed Language (redline)
Exception

12) Vendor and Subcontractor Conflict of Interest Disclosure
List below all current or former employees of Vendor and/or proposed Vendor personnel with
conflict of interests as follows:

1) Any current or former employees of Vendor who will spend 20% or more of their time on a
contract resulting from this RFO and are current or former employees of the State of Texas
within the past five (5) years; and

2) Any proposed Vendor personnel assigned to work directly on any Contract to arise from this
RFO 20% or more of their time who are related within two degrees of consanguinity of any
current or former employees of the State of Texas. Disclosure of former state employees may
be limited to the last five (5) years.

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Vendor Personnel:
Current or Former Employees who are current | Vendor Personnel related to State of
or former State employees (see Note 1 above) | Texas Employees (see Note 2 above)

Subcontractor personnel:
Current or Former Employees of Subcontractor Personnel related to State
Subcontractor(s) who are current or former of Texas Employees (see Note 2 above)
State employees (see Note 1 above)

3) Vendor certifies that they are in compliance with Texas Government Code, Title 6, Subtitle
B, Section 669.003, relating to contracting with the executive head of a state agency. If Section
669.003 applies, Vendor will complete the following information in order for the response to be
evaluated: Name of Former Executive, Name of State Agency, Date of Separation for State
Agency, Position with Vendor, and Date of Employment with Vendor.

13) Proof of Financial Stability.

All Vendors responding to this RFO and all Vendors that will enter into a contract with DIR must
be and remain current in payment of all taxes, including Sales and Franchise Taxes. In general,
the Comptroller of Public Accounts must identify the Vendor to be “in good standing” and a
Vendor with which the state is authorized to do business.

Vendors must provide a Dun and Bradstreet D-U-N-S number. The D-U-N-S number MUST be
included in the Vendor’s response. Failure to include the D-U-N-S number listed for the
company shall cause automatic rejection of the response.

14) Electronic Product Environment Assessment Tool (EPEAT). To the extent Customers use
products provided by Vendor in the delivery of Services offered under this RFO, indicate
whether the products provided are EPEAT certified and identify the applicable EPEAT rating
(bronze, silver or gold) for certified products. If products provided are not EPEAT certified,
describe Vendor's efforts to obtain EPEAT certified products.

15) For each manufacturer, Vendor is proposing in the RFO, indicate whether or not the
manufacturer has a program to recycle the manufacturer's computer equipment and if
they recycle computers from other manufacturers. If you are a reseller, you must
indicate whether your company has a recycling program or will use the manufacturer’s
recycling program for the products listed in this RFO.

Manufacturer Name
Recycles their own computers? Yes No

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Recycles other manufacturer’s computers? Yes No
If Reseller, check one that applies:
Will use Manufacturer’s program
Will use Respondent’s own program

Provide documentation or citation (URL) where the recycling program resides to enable
DIR to verify compliance with this requirement.

16) Statement of Compliance

A. Checklist for the RFO

The following checklist is provided for the convenience of Vendors in their response preparation
process. It is not intended to represent an exhaustive list of the mandatory requirements for this
RFO. Vendors must ensure that all mandatory requirements for this RFO are met, even if they
are not included in this checklist. The mandatory documentation must be submitted with the
original and each copy of the response.

A completed checklist shall not be binding on DIR’s administrative review for compliance with
the mandatory response contents specified in this RFO. As step one of the evaluation process,
DIR will review all responses to ensure compliance with the mandatory response contents as
specified in Section 3.7.3. of the RFO and reject any response that does not comply.

All responses must be received by DIR on or before the date and time specified in Section
3.3.1 of this RFO. No late responses will be reviewed.

Item Check
Responses must be submitted in the BidStamp VIS Portal

Mandatory Response Contents
Vendor Information — Exhibit A
Vendor History and Experience — Exhibit B
Contract Support Plan — Exhibit C
Manufacturer Letters, Section 4.5.1
HUB Subcontracting Plan Forms — BidStamp VIS Form (Print, sign and upload)
Pricing Form (BidStamp VIS Portal)
Accessibility Documentation (PDAA), Section 3.5 RFO Requirement
Service Agreement(s) (if applicable)

B. Certification Statement

The undersigned hereby certifies on behalf of insert company name here that DIR-TSO-TMP-
419; has been read and understood. In submitting its response insert company name here
represents to DIR the following:

i) Vendor is capable of providing the products and services as described in the RFO;

i) Vendor is offering true and correct pricing and discounts for the products and services;

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
ii) To the extent applicable to this scope of this Solicitation, Vendor hereby certifies that it is
authorized to sell and provide warranty support for all products and services offered in the
response to this solicitation number DIR-TSO-TMP-419;
iv) Vendor agrees, if awarded a contract, to abide by the terms and conditions of the resulting
contract;
v) as of the date of signature below, Vendor is not listed in the prohibited Vendors list authorized
by Executive Order #13224, "Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who
Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism”, published by the United States
Department of the Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control;
vi) Vendor and its principals are not suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal
government as listed in the System for Award Management (SAM) maintained by the General
Services Administration;
vii) Vendor certifies, under Texas Government Code, Sections 2155.004 and 2155.0086, that the
individual or business entity named in this bid or contract is not ineligible to receive the specified
contract and acknowledges that this contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate;
(viii) Vendor certifies that, to the extent applicable to this scope of this RFO, Vendor is in
compliance with Health and Safety Code, Chapter 361, Subchapter Y, related to the Computer
Equipment Recycling Program, and the related rules found at 30 TAC Chapter 328;
(ix) Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any economic
opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a
public servant in connection with the submitted response;
(x) Vendor has not received compensation for participation in the preparation of specifications
for this solicitation as required by Texas Government Code, Section 2155.004(a);
(xi) Vendor has not, nor has anyone acting for Vendor, violated the antitrust laws of the United
States or the State of Texas, nor communicated directly or indirectly to any competitor or any
other person engaged in such line of business for the purpose of obtaining an unfair price
advantage;
(xii) Vendor is not currently delinquent in the payment of any franchise tax owed the State of
Texas and is not ineligible to receive payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas Family Code
and acknowledges the Contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is
inaccurate, and any Vendor subject to Section 231.006 must include names and social security
numbers of each person with at least 25% ownership of the business entity submitting the
response, prior to award; .Enter the name and Social Security Numbers for each person below
(alternatively, if this section applies, Vendor may make a note here and include Names and
Social Security Numbers on a separate page and include it in the electronic folder labeled
“Confidential and Proprietary.”

Name: Social Security Number;
Name: Social Security Number;
Name: Social Security Number:

xiii) Vendor agrees that any payments due under this Contract will be applied towards any debt,
including but not limited to delinquent taxes and child support that is owed to the State of Texas;
(xiv) Vendor agrees to comply with Texas Government Code, Section 2155.4441, relating to
use of service contracts for products produced in the State of Texas;

(xv) Vendor certifies it is in compliance with Texas Government Code, Section 669.003, relating
to contracting with executive head of a state agency;

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
(xvi) Vendor certifies for itself and its subcontractors that it has identified all current or former,
within the last five years, employees of the State of Texas assigned to work on the DIR Contract
20% or more of their time and has disclosed them to DIR and has disclosed or does not employ
any relative of a current or former state employee within two degrees of consanguinity, and, if
these facts change during the course of the Contract, Vendor certifies it shall disclose for itself
and on behalf of subcontractors the name and other pertinent information about the employment
of current and former employees and their relatives within two degrees of consanguinity;
(xvii) Vendor represents and warrants that the provision of goods and services or other
performance under the Contract will not constitute an actual or potential conflict of interest and
certifies that it will not reasonably create the appearance of impropriety;
(xviii) Vendor certifies that if a Texas address is shown as the Principle Place of Business in
Exhibit A, Vendor Information Form, Vendor qualifies as a Texas Resident Bidder as defined in
Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part |, Chapter 20;
(xix) Vendor understands and agrees that Vendor may be required to comply with additional
terms and conditions or certifications that an individual Customer may require due to state and
federal law (e.g., privacy and security requirements); and
(xx) Vendor agrees that these representations will be incorporated into any subsequent
agreement(s) between Vendor and Customer that result from this RFO; and
(xxi) Respondent certifies that there have been [ yes / [1 no canceled contracts in the past
five (5) years. Note: If yes is checked, Respondent must complete Exhibit A, Attachment 1 & 2
and submit with the response; and
(xxii) Vendor represent and warrant as required by Texas Government Code section 2270.002,
by executing this Contract, that Vendor does not, and will not during the term of this Contract,
boycott Israel. Vendor further certifies that no subcontractor of the Vendor boycotts Israel, or
will boycott Israel during the term of this Contract. Vendor agrees to take all necessary steps to
ensure this certification remains true during the term of this Contract.

Signature of Officer or Agent empowered to contractually bind the Vendor

Date

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Exhibit A

Attachment 1

List of Vendor’s Cancelled Contracts

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED/SIGNED BY RESPONDENT FOR ANY IDENTIFIED
CONTRACT CANCELLED WITHIN THE PAST FIVE YEARS REFERENCE AND SUBMITTED

WITH THE RESPONDENT’S REQUIREMENTS SUBMISSION

RESPONDENT NAME:

COMPANY
NAME

COMPANY
ADDRESS
(Street, City,
State, Zip Code)

*CONTACT
NAME / PHONE

*E-MAIL

CONTRACT
DATE:

AWARD

OPERATIONS
DATE:

START

CONTRACT
DATE:

CANCELLATION

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REASON FOR CANCELLATION:

COMPANY
NAME

COMPANY
ADDRESS
(Street, City,
State, Zip Code)

*CONTACT
NAME / PHONE

*E-MAIL

CONTRACT
DATE:

AWARD

OPERATIONS
DATE:

START

CONTRACT
DATE:

CANCELLATION

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REASON FOR CANCELLATION:

*Note: Do NOT complete these fields if DIR is the Cancelled Contract Reference

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017




Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Exhibit A
Attachment 2
RESPONDENT RELEASE OF LIABILITY
(TO REFERENCE)

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED/SIGNED BY RESPONDENT FOR EACH IDENTIFIED
REFERENCE (CANCELLED CONTRACT REFERENCES) AND SUBMITTED WITH THE
RESPONDENTS REQUIREMENTS SUBMISSION

To company providing the reference:
Enter name of company providing the reference here

You are hereby requested to provide a business reference for:

Enter name of company (Respondent) or key staff person’s name needing a
reference

to the:
Texas Department of Information Resources
Solicitation Evaluation Team

Please disclose any and all information that you deem relevant relating to the above-named
parties’ business relationship. By signing this document, the entity and, if applicable,
individual key staff person signing below releases the above-named company providing a
reference, its agents, employees, and all persons, natural or corporate, in privity with above-
named company providing a reference from any and all liability, claims or causes of action
arising from their disclosure of information pursuant to this request for a business reference.

Signed the day of , 20

(Respondent Signature)

(Respondent Printed Name)

(Respondent Title)

Signed the day of , 20

(Key Staff Signature or “N/A” if Respondent-
level release)

(Key Staff Printed Name)

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and
Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions;
Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Solicitation Exhibit A v. 09/2017



1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Texas Department of Information Resources

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Bid Package 1 Exhibit B
Vendor History and Experience

Provide a detailed history of your company.

Provide the number of years your company has sold the products/services proposed in your
response to this RFO.

Provide the number of years your company has sold the products/services proposed in your
response to this RFO to Texas state agencies, local governments, independent school districts, and
institutions of higher education.

Indicate whether or not Texas state agencies, local governments, independent school districts, and
institutions of higher education have purchased the products/services proposed in your response
to this RFO from your company within the last 12 months.

Yes No

If yes, provide the entity names, total sales, quantity sold, and discount % off list price.

Indicate whether or not your company holds a contract for use by public entities (state agencies,
local governments, independent school districts, public universities) in any other states for the
same products/services requested in this RFO.

Yes No

If yes, provide the entity names, total sales, quantity sold, and discount % off list price.

Indicate whether or not your company holds a contract with any entity or consortium authorized
by Texas law to sell the products and services requested in this RFO to Texas state agencies, local
governments, independent school districts, and institutions of higher education.

Yes No

If yes, provide the entity names, total sales, quantity sold, and discount % off list price.

Bid Package 1 Exhibit B v. 04/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

7) Indicate whether or not your company currently holds or has held a DIR contract(s) in the past 5
years.

Yes No

If yes, provide the DIR contract number(s).

END OF EXHIBIT B

Bid Package 1 Exhibit B v. 04/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Bid Package 1 Exhibit C
Contract Marketing and Support Plan

Vendor must provide a plan that describes the Vendor’s ability and strategy for promoting
and supporting the contract, if awarded. The plan must include the information listed

below.

1) Describe your company’s strategy for marketing and selling the services listed in this RFO

2)

3)

4)

5)

to eligible DIR Customers. A Contract Marketing Plan, as an example, would list the
marketing elements Vendor would use like publishing on DIR website, email signature tag,
Trade Publication Advertisements etc.

Describe your company’s strategy for providing sales, order processing, and support of
eligible DIR Customers throughout the State of Texas.

Provide the projected total sales of the services listed in this RFO that your company
anticipates making to eligible DIR Customers within the next 12 months. If available, show
the projected sales breakdown between the following segments: State and Local
Governments, Higher Education, and K-12.

Do you have other existing DIR Contracts? If yes, list those existing DIR contracts, and
explain how this contract will impact the marketing and support of your other contracts?
How will your other contracts impact the marketing of this contract, should you receive an
award?

Provide an overview of the management and customer relationship team that will be
responsible for managing the State’s relationship in the event of being awarded a contract.
Address the following:

a. Describe the geographical reach of the Vendor, teaming partners and subcontractors
(if any), to include, at a minimum, locations of corporate and branch offices as well as
locations where work is currently taking place. Explain how these locations and any
proposed new locations will be used in the performance of this contract.

b. Provide names, titles, prior account management experience for accounts of the
State’s size and type.

RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 1 Exhibit C v.04/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services

Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

c. Provide an organization chart identifying the chain of command for managing this
contract, including resource sourcing responsibility, and organization components that
support this contract. In a narrative, describe how the Vendor will manage the contract
to ensure uninterrupted, high quality performance and overall contract effectiveness.

END OF EXHIBIT C

RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 1 Exhibit C v.04/2017



Texas Department of Information Resources

DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 1
Exhibit D

Sample HUB Subcontracting Plan

Complete an automated version of the HUB Subcontracting Plan in BidStamp.
Note: Vendors must also print, sign, and upload the signed HSP. (reference Vendor Guide Section 5.4)



Rev. 2/17

HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)
QuUICK CHECKLIST

While this HSP Quick Checklist is being provided to merely assist you in readily identifying the sections of the HSP form that you will need to
complete, it is very important that you adhere to the instructions in the HSP form and instructions provided by the contracting agency.

>

If you will be awarding all of the subcontracting work you have to offer under the contract to only Texas certified HUB vendors, complete:

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information

Section 2 a. - Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract.

Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors.
Section 2 c. - Yes

Section 4 - Affirmation

GFE Method A (Attachment A) - Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors, and the aggregate
percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which you do not have a

contract* in place for more than five (5) years meets or exceeds the HUB Goal the contracting agency identified in the
“Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements”, complete:

Oooooood

[ Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information

[0 section 2 a. - Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.

[0 Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors
and Non-HUB vendors.

O section 2. - No

O Section2d. - Yes

[ Section 4 - Affirmation

L] GFE Method A (Attachment A) - Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors or only to Non-HUB

vendors, and the aggregate percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which

you do not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years does not meet or exceed the HUB Goal the contracting agency

identified in the “Agency Special Instruttions/Additional Requirements”, complete:

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information

Section 2 a. - Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract.

Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors

and Non-HUB vendors.

Section2¢. -No

Section 2d. - No

Section 4 - Affirmation

GFE Method B (Attachment B) - Complete an Attachment B for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

(0 o o

If you will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract and will be fulfilling the entire contract with your own resources
(i.e., employees, supplies, materials and/or equipment), complete:

[J Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information

[ Section 2 a. - No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and | will be fulfiling the entire contract with my own resources.
[ section 3 - Seff Performing Justification

[ Section 4 - Affirmation

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service, to include under the same contract for a specified period of time. The
frequency the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or
more contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than
renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new”
contracts.




Rev. 2/17

HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)

In accordance with Texas Gov't Code §2161.252, the contracting agency has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under this contract. Therefore,
all respondents, including State of Texas certified Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) must complete and submit this State of Texas HUB Subcontracting

Plan (HSP) with their response to the bid requisition (solicitation).
NOTE: Responses that do not include a completed HSP shall be rejected pursuant to Texas Gov't Code §2161.252(b).

The HUB Program promotes equal business opportunities for economically disadvantaged persons to contract with the State of Texas in accordance with the
goals specified in the 2009 State of Texas Disparity Study. The statewide HUB goals defined in 34 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §20.284 are:

o 11.2 percent for heavy construction other than building contracts,
e 21.1 percent for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders’ contracts,
e 329 percent for all special trade construction contracts,
e 23.7 percent for professional services contracts,
e 26.0 percent for all other services contracts, and
e 21.1 percent for commodities contracts.
- - Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements - -

In accordance with 34 TAC §20.285(d)(1)(D)(iii), a respondent (prime contractor) may demonstrate good faith effort to utilize Texas certified HUBs for
its subcontracting opportunities if the total value of the respondent’s subcontracts with Texas certified HUBs meets or exceeds the statewide HUB goal or the
agency specific HUB goal, whichever is higher. When a respondent uses this method to demonstrate good faith effort, the respondent must identify the HUBs with
which it will subcontract. If using existing contracts with Texas certified HUBs to satisfy this requirement, only the aggregate percentage of the contracts expected
to be subcontracted to HUBs with which the respondent does not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years shall qualify for meeting the
HUB goal. This limitation is designed to encourage vendor rotation as recommended by the 2009 Texas Disparity Study.

Si=eaj(o]\l RESPONDENT AND REQUISITION INFORMATION

a. Respondent (Company) Name: State of Texas VID #:
Point of Contact: Phone #:
E-mail Address: Fax #:

b. s your company a State of Texas certified HUB? []-Yes []-No

c. Requisition #: Bid Open Date:

(mm/ddlyyyy)



Rev. 2/17

Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: DIR-TSO-TMP-419

SIS 1[e]\’H] RESPONDENT's SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS

After dividing the contract work into reasonable lots or portions to the extent consistent with prudent industry practices, and taking into consideration the scope of work
to be performed under the proposed contract, including all potential subcontracting opportunities, the respondent must determine what portions of work, including
contracted staffing, goods and services will be subcontracted. Note: In accordance with 34 TAC §20.282, a “Subcontractor” means a person who contracts with
a prime contractor to work, to supply commodities, or to contribute toward completing work for a governmental entity.

a. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that identifies your subcontracting intentions:
[1 - Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract. (If Yes, complete Item b of this SECTION and continue to Item c of this SECTION.)

[ - No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and | will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources, including employees, goods and
services. (If No, continue to SECTION 3 and SECTION 4.)

b. List all the portions of work (subcontracting opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract
you expect to award to Texas certified HUBs, and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB).

HUBs Non-HUBs
Item # Subcontracting Opportunity Description feﬁce‘":f;g:e(f.tr . cm:;f:; to .Perf intzgfecf.tb . C?':&a:; to Percentage of the contract
HUBs with which you do not have HUBs with which you have a expected to be subcontracted
a continuous contract* in place |continuous contract* in place for to non-HUBs.
for more than five (5) years. i .
1 % % %
2 % % %
3 % % %
4 % % %
5 % % %
6 % % %
7 % % %
8 % % %
9 % % %
10 % % %
1 % % %
12 % % %
13 % % %
14 % % %
15 % % %
Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted: % % %

(Note: If you have more than fifteen subcontracting opportunities, a continuation sheet is available online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/forms.php).

C. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be using only Texas certified HUBs to perform all of the subcontracting opportunities
you listed in SECTION 2, ltem b.

[ - Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)
[ - No (If No, continue to Item d, of this SECTION.)

d. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether the aggregate expected percentage of the contract you will subcontract with Texas certified HUBs
with which you do not have a continuous contract® in place with for more than five (5) years, meets or exceeds the HUB goal the contracting agency
identified on page 1 in the “Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements.”

[ - Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)
[ - No (If No, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency
the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more
contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than
renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new”
contracts.




Rev. 2/17

Ent

er your company’s name here:

Requisition #: DIR-TSO-TMP-419

SI=e4 R[]\’ RESPONDENT's SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS (CONTINUATION SHEET)

This page can be used as a continuation sheet to the HSP Form’s page 2, Section 2, Item b. Continue listing the portions of work (subcontracting
opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUBSs,
and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB).

HUBs Non-HUBs
Percentage of the contract Percentage of the contract Percentage of the contract
Item # Subcontracting Opportunity Description :Ggesc:;fhtev Elec ;;gﬁomeﬁat:e exgﬁg:i’ g?hl;e’hsis:;:,:t;a:::dato expecte(ti 0'71 ;):_;lbtg::ntracted
a continuous contract* in place |continuous contract* in place for
for more than five (5) years. more than five (5) years.

16 % % %
17 % % %
18 % % %
19 % % %
20 % % %
21 % % %
22 % % %
23 % % %
24 % % %
25 % % %
26 % % %
27 % % %
28 % % %
29 % % %
30 % % %
31 % % %
32 % % %
33 % % Y%
34 % % %
35 % % %
36 % % %
37 % % %
38 % % %
39 % % %
40 % % %
41 % % %
42 % % %
43 % % %
Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted: % % %

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency the
HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more contracts
that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or
extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new” contracts.

HSP — SECTION 2
(Continuation Sheet)




Rev. 2/17

Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: DIR-TSO-TMP-419

SO [OJIEN SELF PERFORMING JUSTIFICATION (if you responded “No” to SECTION 2, Item a, you must complete this SECTION and continue to SECTION 4.) If you

responded “No” to SECTION 2, Item a, in the space provided below explain how your company will perform the entire contract with its own employees, supplies,
materials and/or equipment.

SI=31(0]\K: AFFIRMATION

As evidenced by my signature below, | affirm that | am an authorized representative of the respondent listed in SECTION 1, and that the information and
supporting documentation submitted with the HSP is true and correct. Respondent understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the requisition:

e  The respondent will provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor for the awarded
contract. The notice must specify at a minimum the contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the
subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of
the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s
point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the contract is awarded.

®  The respondent must submit monthly compliance reports (Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report — PAR) to the contracting agency, verifying its
compliance with the HSP, including the use of and expenditures made to its subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs). (The PAR is available at
https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/ProgressAssessmentReportForm.xls).

e  The respondent must seek approval from the contracting agency prior to making any modifications to its HSP, including the hiring of additional or different
subcontractors and the termination of a subcontractor the respondent identified in its HSP. If the HSP is modified without the contracting agency’s prior approval,

respondent may be subject to any and all enforcement remedies available under the contract or otherwise available by law, up to and including debarment from all
state contracting.

e The respondent must, upon request, allow the contracting agency to perform on-site reviews of the company’s headquarters and/or work-site where services
are being performed and must provide documentation regarding staffing and other resources.

Signature Printed Name Title Date

(mm/ddlyyyy)
Reminder:

> If you responded “Yes” to SECTION 2, Items ¢ or d, you must complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of
the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, ltem b.

» If you responded “No” SECTION 2, Items ¢ and d, you must complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)” for each of
the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, ltem b.

3


http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-forms/progressassessmentrpt.xls

HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)

DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #:

IMPORTANT: If you responded “Yes” to SECTION 2, Items ¢ or d of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed “HSP Good Faith Effort -
Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this
page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-a.pdf

NIl [o\W-BM SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing
the attachment.

Item Number: Description:

NI N[e]\ WS SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION

List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed above in SECTION A-1. Also identify whether they are a Texas certified
HUB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Employer Identification Number (EIN), the approximate dollar value of the work to be
subcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you
use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL)- Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at
http://mycpa.cpa.state tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A” signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

n Texas VID or federal EIN Approximate Expected
Company Name Toxas certfed HUB | et 7t | pollar Amoun _[Percentage of
leave their VID / EIN field blank.
J-Yes [J-No $ %
-Yes [O-No $ %
-Yes [-No $ %
-Yes [-No $ %
-Yes [-No $ %
[O-Yes [@O-No $ %
O-Yes [J-No $ %
J-Yes [-No $ %
O-Yes [J-No $ %
-Yes [J-No $ %
[-Yes [J-No $ %
[J-Yes [J-No $ %
[J-Yes [J-No $ %
[-Yes [J-No $ %
d-Yes [J-No $ %
[-Yes [J-No $ %
J-Yes [J-No $ %
[O-Yes [J-No $ %
O-Yes [-No $ %
0-Yes [J-No $ %
O-Yes [O-No $ %
[J-Yes [J-No $ %
[J-Yes []-No $ %

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to
provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBS) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the
contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the
approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of
the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the
contract is awarded.

Page 1 of 1
(Attachment A)


http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp

HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)

Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #:

Rev. 2/17

IMPORTANT: If you responded “No” to SECTION 2, Items c and d of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed “HSP Good Faith Effort -
Method B (Attachment B)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this
page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-b.pdf..

Sl [e\ Y28 SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY
Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are
completing the attachment.

[tem Number: Description:

SI=le\J22YH MENTOR PROTEGE PROGRAM

If respondent is participating as a Mentor in a State of Texas Mentor Protégé Program, submitting its Protégé (Protégé must be a State of Texas certified HUB) as a
subcontractor to perform the subcontracting opportunity listed in SECTION B-1, constitutes a good faith effort to subcontract with a Texas certified HUB towards that
specific portion of work.

Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be subcontracting the portion of work you listed in SECTION B-1 to your Protégé.
- Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION B-4.)
[ - No/ Not Applicable (If No or Not Applicable, continue to SECTION B-3 and SECTION B-4.)

N =R N[O=EXH NOTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

When completing this section you MUST comply with items a, b, ¢ and d, thereby demonstrating your Good Faith Effort of having notified Texas certified HUBs and
trade organizations or development centers about the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Your notice should include the scope of work,
information regarding the location to review plans and specifications, bonding and insurance requirements, required qualifications, and identify a contact person.
When sending notice of your subcontracting opportunity, you are encouraged to use the attached HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notice form, which is also available

online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/HUBSubcontractingOpportunityNotificationForm.pdf.

Retain supporting documentation (i.e., certified letter, fax, e-mail) demonstrating evidence of your good faith effort to notify the Texas certified HUBs and trade
organizations or development centers. Also, be mindful that a working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not including weekends, federal or
state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is sent/provided to the HUBs and to
the trade organizations or development centers is considered to be “day zero” and does not count as one of the seven (7) working days.

a. Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1, to three (3) or more Texas certified HUBs. Unless the contracting agency
specified a different time period, you must allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to you submitting your bid response to the
contracting agency. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders
List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A”
signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

b. List the three (3) Texas certified HUBs you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the company’s Texas Vendor
Identification (VID) Number, the date you sent notice to that company, and indicate whether it was responsive or non-responsive to your subcontracting
opportunity notice.

Company Name Texas VID Date Notice Sent Did the HUB Respond?
(Do not enter Social Security Numbers.) (mm/ddlyyyy)

O-Yes [J-No

[ -Yes O-No

O-Yes [I-No

c. Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1 to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers in Texas to
assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the subcontracting opportunity to their members/participants. Unless the contracting agency specified a
different time period, you must provide your subcontracting opportunity notice to trade organizations or development centers at least seven (7) working days prior to
submitting your bid response to the contracting agency. A list of trade organizations and development centers that have expressed an interest in receiving notices
of subcontracting opportunities is available on the Statewide HUB Program’s webpage at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/resources.php.

d. List two (2) trade organizations or development centers you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the date
when you sent notice to it and indicate if it accepted or rejected your notice.

Date Notice Sent | was the Notice Accepted?

Trade Organizations or Development Centers
(mm/ddlyyyy)

O - Yes O -No
O-Yes [J-No

Page 1 of 2
(Attachment B)


http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mwb-links-1

HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B) Cont.

Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #:

Rev. 2/17

Si={eg)(e)\\] =X 4 SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION
Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing
the attachment.

a. Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity for which you are completing this Attachment B continuation page.
Item Number: Description:

b. List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Also identify whether they are a Texas certified
HUB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Emplioyer Identification Number (EIN), the approximate dollar value of the work to be
subcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that
you use the State of Texas' Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at
http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A” signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

Texas VID or federal EIN

- Approximate Expected
Company Name Texas certified HUB [Do not enter Social Security Numbers Dollar Amount Percentage of
If you do not know their VID / EIN, Contract

leave their VID / EIN field blank.

O- Yes O-No %

- Yes O-No %

- Yes O- No %

- Yes O-No

%

O- Yes O-No %

O- Yes O- No %

O-Yes O-No %

O- Yes O - No %

O- Yes O- No %

B | P | B | A |B | L] B B || B

O- Yes - No %

c. If any of the subcontractors you have selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1 is not a Texas certified HUB, provide written
justification for your selection process (attach additional page if necessary):

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to provide
notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the
contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity it (the subcontractor) will perform, the
approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of
the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the
contract is awarded.

Page 2 of 2
(Attachment B)



Rev. 2/17

)HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notification Form

In accordance with Texas Gov't Code, Chapter 2161, each state agency that considers entering into a contract with an expected value of $100,000 or more shall, before the
agency solicits bids, proposals, offers, or other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether subcontracting opportunities are probable under the contract. The state
agency | have identified below in Section B has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under the requisition to which my company will be responding.

34 Texas Administrative Code, §20.285 requires all respondents (prime contractors) bidding on the contract to provide notice of each of their subcontracting opportunities to at
least three (3) Texas certified HUBs (who work within the respective industry applicable to the subcontracting opportunity), and allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days
to respond to the notice prior to the respondent submitting its bid response to the contracting agency. In addition, at least seven (7) working days prior to submitting its bid
response to the contracting agency, the respondent must provide notice of each of its subcontracting opportunities to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers
(in Texas) that serves members of groups (i.e., Asian Pacific American, Black American, Hispanic American, Native American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran)
identified in Texas Administrative Code §20.282(19)(C).

We respectfully request that vendors interested in bidding on the subcontracting opportunity scope of work identified in Section C, Item 2, reply no later than the date and time
identified in Section C, Item 1. Submit your response to the point-of-contact referenced in Section A.

EEIHHE PRIME CONTRACTOR’S INFORMATION

Company Name: State of Texas VID #:
Phone #:

Point-of-Contact:
E-mail Address: Fax #:

EE’E@I! CONTRACTING STATE AGENCY AND REQUISITION INFORMATION

Agency Name:

Point-of-Contact: Phone #:

Requisition #: Bid Open Date:

(mm/ddlyyyy)
Esiﬂlm SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY RESPONSE DUE DATE, DESCRIPTION, REQUIREMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION
1. Potential Subcontractor’s Bid Response Due Date:

If you would like for our company to consider your company’s bid for the subcontracting opportunity identified below in ltem 2,

we must receive your bid response no later than on
Central Time Date (mm/ddlyyyy)

In accordance with 34 TAC §20.285, each notice of subcontracting opportunity shall be provided to at least three (3) Texas certified HUBs, and allow the HUBs at
least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to submitting our bid response to the contracting agency. In addition, at least seven (7) working days prior
to us submitting our bid response to the contracting agency, we must provide notice of each of our subcontracting opportunities to two (2) or more trade
organizations or development centers (in Texas) that serves members of groups (i.e., Asian Pacific American, Black American, Hispanic American, Native
American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran) identified in Texas Administrative Code, §20.282(19)(C).

(A working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not including weekends, federal or state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed
by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is sent/provided to the HUBs and to the trade organizations or development centers
is considered to be “day zero” and does not count as one of the seven (7) working days.)

2. Subcontracting Opportunity Scope of Work:

3. Required Qualifications: [[]- Not Applicable

4. Bonding/Insurance Requirements: [J- Not Applicable

5. Location to review plans/specifications: [J- Not Applicable




Department of Information Resources
Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimilie Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services
BID PACKAGE 2 - PRICING INDEX

Instructions

CATEGORIES MUST BE ENTERED IN BIDSTAMP AS LISTED BELOW.

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES, NETWORK DEVICES, NON-NETWORK DEVICES and RELATED SERVICES

TAB 2 - BIDStamp PRICE SHEET - Is an EXAMPLE Price Sheet. You will enter each of the offerings in the white/uncolored rows into the BIDStamp VIS Price Form in accordance with RFO Bid Package 1, Section 3.1.1
Pricing.
Vendor must offer only one price for each product listed. The Price to the DIR Customer shall include all shipping and handling fees. If you do not offer anything in the product lines defined, do not add it to the
BidStamp VIS Price Form.
ITIMPORTANT!! For this category only enter " MPS" in the BRAND Column !! IMPORTANT !!
DIR has provided Examples, followed by rows below the Examples in white/uncolored rows, which list specific Products for your pricing and entry into the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.

Example: If you do not offer a copier line that falls within the M1 Volume Brand (1 - 30 pages per Minute [PPM]) then do not enter that product row in the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.

Example: If you do offer a copier line that falls within the M1 Volume Brand (1 - 30 pages per Minute [PPM]) then add it as a row on the BIDStamp VIS Price Form. Add rows for the lowest-priced product and
the highest-price product (if you offer both) in multiple rows for the M1 Volume Band in the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.
PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU: A product number/SKU must be entered
Discount range (e.g., 0% - 99%) is not allowed.

2) |TAB 3 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING - MPS - The discount being offered shall be based upon the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP).
TAB 3 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING - MPS - is not entered in the BidStamp VIS; it is entered in the tab titled "3 - Entire Product Offering - MPS" and submitted in BidStamp VIS as an EXCEL spreadsheet
Attachment.

3) |For all Tabs above - Price to DIR Customer shall include all Shipping and Handling or Transport fees.

For Tabs 3, 4, 5 and 6, DO NOT CREATE COLUMNS WITHIN THE TABS. ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERINGS SHALL BE COMPLETED ON THE TABS PROVIDED IN THIS BID PACKAGE 2 AND UPLOADED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL

4
) AS AN ATTACHMENT.

5) [IMPORTANT!!! For BIDStamp ENTRY: An ERROR will occur if the following fields are left blank: BRAND, Product Number/SKU, MSRP and Discount % off MSRP

DOCUMENT IMAGING SERVICES

TAB 2 - BIDStamp PRICE SHEET - Is an EXAMPLE Price Sheet. You will enter each of the offerings in the white/uncolored rows into the BIDStamp VIS Price Form in accordance with RFO Bid Package 1, Section 3.1.1
Pricing.
Vendor must offer only one price for each product listed. The Price to the DIR Customer shall include all shipping and handling fees. If you do not offer anything in the product lines defined, do not add it to the
BidStamp VIS Price Form.
IMPORTANT!! For this category only enter "DIS" in the BRAND Column !! IMPORTANT !!
DIR has provided Examples, followed by rows below the Examples in white/uncolored rows, which list specific Products for your pricing and entry into the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.

Example: If you do not offer a Microfilm (Digital Archive Writer), then do not enter that product row in the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.

Example: If you do offer a Microfilm (Digital Archive Writer), then add it as a row on the BIDStamp VIS Price Form.
PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU: For DIS PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU: if Vendor do not have an assigned Product Part Number/SKU, enter "Services". If providing Service/Solution vendor is listed as
Manufacture.
Discount range (e.g., 0% - 99%) is not allowed.

2) |TAB 4 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING-DIS - The discount being offered shall be based upon the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP).
Vendor will provide a MSRP price list of Services/Solutions being proposed
Discount range (e.g., 0% - 99%) is not allowed.

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




TAB 4 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING - DIS - is not entered in the BidStamp VIS; it is entered in the tab titled "4 - Entire Product Offering - DIS" and submitted in BidStamp VIS as an EXCEL spreadsheet Attachment.

3) |For all Tabs above - Price to DIR Customer shall include all shipping and handling fees.
2) For Tabs 3, 4, 5 and 6, DO NOT CREATE COLUMNS WITHIN THE TABS. ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERINGS SHALL BE COMPLETED ON THE TABS PROVIDED IN THIS BID PACKAGE 2 AND UPLOADED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL
AS AN ATTACHMENT.
5) |IMPORTANT!!! For BIDStamp ENTRY: An ERROR will occur if the following fields are left blank: BRAND, Product Number/SKU, MSRP and Discount % off MSRP
ENTERPRISE CONTENT MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS, SOFTWARE, SERVICES, AND RELATED SERVICES
1) TAB 2 - BIDStamp PRICE SHEET - Is an EXAMPLE Price Sheet. You will enter each of the offerings in the white/uncolored rows into the BIDStamp VIS Price Form in accordance with RFO Bid Package 1, Section 3.1.1
Pricing.
DIR has provided Examples, followed by rows below the Examples,which list specific Product Categories for your pricing.
IMPORTANT!! For this category only enter "ECM" in the BRAND Column !! IMPORTANT !!
PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU: A Product Part Number/SKU must be entered
Discount range (e.g., 0% - 99%) is not allowed.
2) |TAB S5 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING - ECM - The discount being offered shall be based upon the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP).
Vendor will provide an MSRP and Discount for EACH item that they wish to offer on their contract. If a product is not listed it may NOT be offered on their contract.
Discount range (e.g., 0% - 99%) is not allowed.
Product/Services detail list Pricing information is not entered in the BidStamp VIS.
TAB 5 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING - ECM - is not entered in the BidStamp VIS; it is entered in the tab titled "5 - Entire Product Offering - ECM" and submitted in BidStamp VIS as an EXCEL spreadsheet
Attachment.
The Entire Product Offering is not entered in the BidStamp VIS; it is entered in "5 - Entire Product Offering - ECM" tab and submitted in BidStamp VIS as an EXCEL spreadsheet in the tab 5 format.
3) |For all Tabs above - Price to DIR Customer shall include all Shipping, Handling and Transport fees.
4) For Tabs 3, 4, 5 and 6, DO NOT CREATE COLUMNS WITHIN THE TABS. ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERINGS SHALL BE COMPLETED ON THE TABS PROVIDED IN THIS BID PACKAGE 2 AND UPLOADED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL
AS AN ATTACHMENT.
5) IMPORTANT!!! For BIDStamp ENTRY: An ERROR will occur if the following fields are left blank: BRAND, Product Number/SKU, MSRP and Discount % off MSRP

TAB 6 - VOLUME DISCOUNT SHEET- The discount being offered shall be based upon the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP).
Volume Pricing information is not entered in the BidStamp VIS. If Vendor is proposing Volume Discounts, the service must be listed on the Volume Discount Tab with the associated type or grouped with an
associated discount.
For example:
ABC Service, 1-5 Units - 10.00% - (two decimals)
ABC Service, 6-10 Units - 20.00% - (two decimals)
ABC Service, 10+ Units - 30.00% - (two decimals)
All Volume Discounts will be listed on the Volume Discount Tab and will be submitted in the tab 6 EXCEL spreadsheet format as an Attachment.

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




[ D [ E [ F [ G [ H [ ! [

|'\J|_k

|J>|D)

|Q\

|O§

CATEGORY

Volume Band M1 (Lowest
Priced)

Volume Band M3 (Highest
Priced)

Volume Band C2 (Lowest
Priced)

MPS

Department of Information Resources
Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management Products, Software and Services

BID PACKAGE 2 - PRICING SHEET

* For Vendor reference: DIR CUSTOMER PRICE contains 0.75% DIR Administrative Fee and it will be AUTOMATICALLY calculated once all other cells are filled.
For reference purposes, the formula to calculate DIR Customer Price is: DIR Customer Price = MSRP x (1-DIR Discount%) x (1+0.75%)
DO NOT make any changes to the format of the grids. Insert additional rows as needed.

Monochrome, B&W MFD
Volume Band M1 1 - 30 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M2 31 - 49 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M3 50 - 68 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M4 69 - 89 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M5 90 + Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Color and B&W MFD
Volume Band C1 1 - 30 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band C2 31- 50 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band C3 51 + Pages Per Minute (PPM)

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES, NETWORK DEVICES, NON-NETWORK DEVICES and RELATED SERVICES

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

IMPORTANT!! For this category enter "MPS" in the BRAND Column (See Example)

MANUFACTURER RESELLER
PRODUCT PART NUMBER/ SKU "y "y MSRP
IF APPLICABLE IF APPLICABLE

PRODUCTS/SERVICES

SUB DESCRIPTION Discount % off MSRP

UNIT

Nonac Copier Black and White

2 x 550 Sheet Paper Cassette, an 100-
Sheet Stack Bypass, 512mb RAM, UFR II LT
Printing, Network ScanGear, 10/100 Base |MKS345 Y
TX Ethernet, USB 2.0 high speed
connectivity and a drum unit

$1,000.00 30.00%

Each

Copier Black and White

Includes: PS, PCL, and XPS Controller, 100-
sheet Single Pass Duplex Document
Feeder, Standard Wireless Connectivity Y
and Web Browser, 4 GB Standard Memory
(when UK-219 is installed), 250 GB HDD,
Standard USB 2.0 (supports local printing),
Two USB 2.0 Host Ports, 6K Starter Toner
and 60K Imaging Unit DKE476

$2,000.00 35.00%

Each

Copier Color

Digital Multifunction Copier, Standard
Network Print & Scan, Duplexing, 100
Sheet Bypass, 2 x 550 Sheet Cassettes
(L,L,L), 9" Wide Color Touch Screen
Controlls, Scan to File / USB / Email, RADF,
Stand FIE873

Y $3,000.00 40.00%

Each

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




Non-MFD

Non-MFD (Lowest Priced)

Non-MFD (Highest Priced)

Volume Band M1 (Lowest
Priced)

Scanner

Scanner: Up to 4800 dpi optical resolution;
48 bit internal color depth; 8.5" x 11.7"
maximum scan size; easy photo fix
technology; advanced digital dust
correction; 3-color RGB LEDs, Built-in
Kickstand; High-speed usb 2.0 interface;
photo scan software; 1 year warranty

JSLE8743

$4,000.00

45.00%

Each

3D Printer

Pemium Sparkmaker High-Resolution SLA
Resin 3D Printer

DIE594

$249.66

40.00%

Each

3D Printer

Build Area: 2.36 x 1.77 x 3.94 in. (65 x 40 x
100 mm), XY resolution: 33 microns with
patented grayscaling software, footprint: 9
x9.5x24.2in. (22.86 x 24.13 x 61.5 cm),
electrical requirement: 110 VAC @ 3A,
weight: 35 Ibs (16 kg)

SOWO9E

$5,999.00

50.00%

Each

Copier Black and White

Volume Band M1 (Highest
Priced)

Copier Black and White

Volume Band M3 (Lowest
Priced)

Copier Black and White

Volume Band M3 (Highest
Priced)

Copier Black and White

Volumen Band M5

Copier Black and White

21 |(Lowest Priced)
Volumen Band M5 . .
22| (Highest Priced) Copier Black and White
Volume Band C2 (Lowest Copier Color
23 |Priced) P
Volume Band C2 (Highest .
24 |Priced) Copier Color
2 Non-MFD (Lowest Priced) Facisimilie
2% Non-MFD (Highest Priced) Facisimilie
27 Non-MFD (Lowest Priced) Scanner
28 Non-MFD (Highest Priced) Scanner
29 Non-MFD (Highest Priced) 3D Printer
30 Non-MFD (Lowest Priced) 3D Printer
. DOCUMENT IMAGING SERVICES

Il For this category enter "DIS

e BRAND Column (See Example)

PRODUCTS/SERVICES MANUFACTURER RESELLER Discount % off MSRP
CATEGORY BRAND PRODUCT DESCRIPTION SUB DESCRIPTION PRODUCT PART NUMBER/ SKU "y "y MSRP UNIT
IF APPLICABLE IF APPLICABLE

33

34 |Imaging Services Black and White Image Capture Low (200 DPI) Service Y $0.03 20.00%|Per Image
35 |Imaging Services Black and White Image Capture High (400 DPI) Service Y $0.04] 30.00%|Per Image
36 |Imaging Services Color Image Capture Medium (300 DPI) Per Image
37 |Imaging Services Color Image Capture Preservation >= 600 PPI Per Image

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




A B C D E F G H |

8 |Imaging Services Index Field - Type 1 Up to 15 Characters Per Document
9 |Imaging Services Index Field - Type 2 31-45 Characters Per Document
0 |Imaging Services Delivery Media Microfilm (Digital Archive Writer) Per Image

1 [Imaging Services Delivery Media Microfilm (Digital Archive Writer) Per Roll

. . Microfilm Conversion Conversion of microfilm to digital Images
2 [Imaging Services Per Image
3 [Imaging Services Microfiche Conversion Conversion of microfiche to digital Images Per Image

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




IMPORTANT!! For this category enter "ECM" in the BRAND Column (See Example)

Digital Enterprise Mid Level Enterprise [Software is a document management
Content Management Software. solution (DMS) that is suitable for
Software Gartr}er Majic Quadrant rated. The cor.npamef of all sizes and in ? wide range v $6,500.00 25.00%|Perpetual
solution can be hosted on premise or |of industries such as accounting and
in the cloud, depending on the user's |financial services, manufacturing and
needs. health care.
47 SOFTWARE123
Mary Jane ECM offers integration with
Sa?gf;:: whic: ?J:s'r:‘::_s the The system is accessible using mobile apps
Software - " 8 that can be used from a smartphone ot Y $2,000.00 33.00%|Annual Term
ability to drag and drop and manage
. A tablet.
files from either system.
48 TABLET123
49 |Software
50 |Software
51 |Software

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index



Department of Information Resources
Request for Offer DIR-TSO-TMP-419
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related Services; Di Imaging Services/! i ise Content Products, Software and Services

BID PACKAGE 2 - ENTIRE PRODUCT OFFERING MPS
You should list every product that will be offered on a contract. If it is not listed here it will not be included in the contract. BE SURE TO DETAIL YOUR PRODUCT DESCRIPTION.
* For Vendor reference: DIR CUSTOMER PRICE contains 0.75% DIR Administrative Fee and it will be AUTOMATICALLY calculated once all other cells are filled.
For reference purposes, the formula to calculate DIR Customer Price is: DIR Customer Price = MSRP x (1-DIR Discount%) x (1+0.75%)

DO NOT make any changes to the format of the grids. Insert additional rows as needed.

Monochrome, B&W MFD
Volume Band M1 1 - 30 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Valume BandM? | 31- 48 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume BandM3 | 50 - 68 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M4 69 - 89 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band M5 90 + Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Color and BEW MFD

Volume Band C1 130 Pages Per Minute (PPM)
Volume Band C2 31 - 50 Pages Per Minutc (PPM)
Volume Band C3 51 + Pages Per Minute (PEM)

Includes: PS, PCL, and XPS Controller, 100-
sheet Single Pass Duplex Document
Feeder, Standard Wireless Connectivity
EXAMPLE: Volume Band M1 . . and Web Browser, 1 GB Standard Memo
(Lowest Model) CooieyBackanciviie G (when UK-219 is installed), 50 GB HDD, "
Standard USB 2.0 (supports local printing),
Two USB 2.0 Host Ports, 4K Starter Toner
and 60K Imaging Unit

d Print Services and Network
Devices, Non-Network Devices and
Related Services

$1,000.00 15.00% $856.38

Includes: PS, PCL, and XPS Controller, 500-
sheet Single Pass Duplex Document
Feeder, Standard Wireless Connectivity
EXAMPLE: Volume Band M1 . . and Web Browser, 2 GB Standard Memoi
(Highest Model) CoolepBlackancibite LER=223 (when UK-219 is installed), 250 GB HDD, "
Standard USB 2.0 (supports local printing),
Two USB 2.0 Host Ports, 6K Starter Toner
and 60K Imaging Unit

Managed Print Services and Network
Devices, Non-Network Devices and
Related Services

$1,000.00 15.00% $856.38

Includes: PS, PCL, and XPS Controller, 1000
sheet Single Pass Duplex Document
. . Feeder, Standard Wireless Connectivity
Managed Print Services and Network

N ) EXAMPLE: Volume Band M3 . B and Web Browser, 6 GB Standard Memory
::;:::;,Sl:(:;;::twork Devices and (Lowest Model) Copier Black and White BW 7777 $1,500.00 $1,300.00 $1,000.00 $800.00 (when UK-419 is installed), 500 GB HDD,

Standard USB 2.0 (supports local printing),

Four USB 5.0 Host Ports, 12K Starter Toner
and 120K Imaging Unit

$45,000.00 15.00% $38,536.88

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index



Digital MFP Copier, Standard
Managed Print Services and Network |\ 1o e \iojume Band M3 ;‘;tovloii;g‘;ri:an‘ HED Prin Heads
Devices, Non-Network Devices and N ’ Copier Black and White L- 246978 $3,800.00 $2,800.00 $2,300.00 $2,000.00 ! N $225,000.00 20.00% $181,350.00
N (Highest Model) Cassette L,L,L, Duplexing, 100 Sheet
Related Services
Bypass, 2GB HD,
320GB FIPS, 140-2 SED
Digital MFP Color Copier, Standard
M d Print Servi ek Network Print & Scan, LED Print Head,
eSS il EE L S EXAMPLE: Volume Band C2 1x530 Sheet Cassette St-R to LG, 100
Devices, Non-Network Devices and (Lowest Model) Copier Color CL 9999 $2,000.00 $1,050.00 $1,000.00 $900.00 Sheet Bypass, 2GB HD, 320GB FIPS, 140 $100,000.00 25.00% $75,562.50
Related Services 2 SED, RADF, Duplexing
Lease of L-36 Base model includes 8.5" W-
VGA Color Touch Panel, 1 GHz
multitasking controller, 80 GB hard drive
with document filing system, retractable
MR Sy L T EXAMPLE: Volume Band C2 l?c‘gtESr:::( f:?:s;ri Pr(|:r|;(t:|r< PCSLc:n/sm le:
Devices, Non-Network Devices and N ’ Copier Color L-367894 $4,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 P . P g., s $200,000.00 45.00% $110,825.00
T — (Highest Model) pass dual-sided color scanning, network
scanning, 100-sheet doublesided single-
pass feeder, auto duplexing, one 500-
sheet paper drawer and 100-sheet bypass
tray, developer and drum cartridges.
Toner cartridges sold separately
Managed Print Services and Network 1 form 2 3D printer, resin tank, build
Devices, Non-Network Devices and EXAMPLE: Non-MFD 3D Printer 586-3D $139.58 $93.00 $69.79 $55.83 platform, finish kit, per-form software, 1 $3,350.00 20.00% $2,700.10
Related Services year warranty.
SCANNER 11350 DESKTOP SCANNER,
Color, Sheet Fed (Flatbed accessory
d Print Servi d " available), 3000 pages per day, 600DPI
UL AT A ST N e Optical, 25PPM B&W/Color (1st 10 sheets
Devices, Non-Network Devices and EXAMPLE: Non-MFD Scanner S-7870 @ 40PPM), USB 2.0/3.0 , 50 Sheet ADF $40,000.00 10.00% $36,270.00
Related Services (A4), EasyTouch & Capture SW,
WARRANTY 3YR
Per Mo-24 Per Mo-36 Per Mo-48 DIR CUSTOMER DIR CUSTOMER
CATEGORY SUBCATEGORY BRAND SKU / PART NUMBER Per Mo-60 Month PRODUCT DESCRIPTION MSRP
/ Month Month Month |F " o0 Mon DISCOUNT% OFF MSRP PRICE*
. . o, . . . N
Service Level Agreement (SLA) Projects/SOW may have no MSRP but must offer a % discount off of original quoted price
DIR CUSTOMER DIR CUSTOMER
MANAGED PRINT SERVICES SUBCATEGORY BRAND PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU PRODUCT DESCRIPTION MSRP
/ DISCOUNT% OFF MSRP PRICE*
Managed Print Services and Network
Devices, Non-Network Devices and EXAMPLE: MPS N/A Project Agency Growth Project 40.00% Per SLA or SOW

Related Services

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES, NETWORK DEVICES, NON-NETWORK DEVICES RELATED SERVICES

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




DIR CUSTOMER

DIR CUSTOMER
RELATED SERVICES SUBCATEGORY BRAND PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU PRODUCT DESCRIPTION MSRP DISCOUNT®% OFF MSRP PRICE*
RELATED SERVICES EXAMPLE: Training N/A 4847 Copier Training per hour $25.00 40.00% $15.11
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
MANAGED PRINT SERVICES, NETWORK DEVICES, NON-NETWORK DEVICES ACCESSORIES
Per Mo-24 Per Mo-36 Per Mo-48 DIR CUSTOMER DIR CUSTOMER
ACCESSORIES SUBCATEGORY BRAND PRODUCT PART NUMBER/SKU Per Mo-60 Month PRODUCT DESCRIPTION MSRP
/ Month Month Month  |F " ore0 Mon DISCOUNT% OFF MSRP PRICE*
Width : 51 mm to 216 mm (2" to 8.5")
Length : 89 mm to 356 mm (3.5" to 14.0"),
i 3 2
EXAMPLE ACCESSORY Document Feeder Nonac 12345 $14.00 $12.00 $10.00 $8.00 [ILIE e 3? to 128g/r:| (8103216 $895.00 60.00% $360.69
bond), Capacity (80g/m? paper) : 50 sheets|
or stacked to a height of 6.0 mm (0.2")
(including curling)
AMPS 15, Sentury, Plastic, Surge Strip, PN:
100190, Receptacles 6, Surge Suppression:
EXAMPLE ACCESSORY Power Surge John Doe Power Surge Co 3857 Yes, Length Inches: 12; # OF Wires: 3, $95.00 45.00% $52.64
Color: Beige, Joules/Discharge Current:
270, Cord Length Feet: 15
$0.00
$0.00

6 DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 2 Pricing Index




RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

Vendor Contract No.

STATE OF TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES

CONTRACT FOR PRODUCTS AND RELATED SERVICES
VENDOR NAME
1. Introduction

A. Parties
This Contract for products and related services is entered into between the State of Texas,
acting by and through the Department of Information Resources (hereinafter “DIR”) with
its principal place of business at 300 West 15 Street, Suite 1300, Austin, Texas 78701,
and VENDOR NAME (hereinafter “Vendor”), with its principal place of business at VENDOR
ADDRESS.

B. Compliance with Procurement Laws

This Contract is the result of compliance with applicable procurement laws of the State of
Texas. DIR issued a solicitation on the Comptroller of Public Accounts’ Electronic State
Business Daily, Request for Offer (RFO) DIR-TSO-TMP-419, on December 7, 2018, for
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipment and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services. DIR subsequently issued a BAFO
opportunity on BAFO DATE. Upon execution of this Contract, a notice of award for DIR-
TSO-TMP-419 shall be posted by DIR on the Electronic State Business Daily.

C. Order of Precedence

For purchase transactions under this Contract, the order of precedence shall be as
follows: this Contract; Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions For Products and
Related Services Contracts; Appendix B, Vendor’s Historically Underutilized Businesses
Subcontracting Plan; Appendix C, Pricing Index; Appendix D, Software License Agreement;
Appendix E, Service Level Support Agreement; Appendix F, Master Operating Lease
Agreement; Appendix G, Master Lease Agreement; Appendix H, Declared Disaster
Equipment Recovery Program Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response to RFO DIR-TSO-
TMP-419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all
addenda; are incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between
DIR and Vendor governing purchase transactions. For Lease transactions under this
Contract the order of precedence shall be as follows: this Contract; Appendix F, Master
Operating Lease Agreement; Appendix G, Master Lease Agreement, as applicable
depending on the type of lease; Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions For Products
and Related Services Contracts; Appendix B, Vendor’s Historically Underutilized

Department of Information Resources Page 1 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

Vendor Contract No.

Businesses Subcontracting Plan; Appendix C, Pricing Index; Appendix D, Software License
Agreement; Appendix E, Service Level Support Agreement; Appendix H, Declared Disaster
Equipment Recovery Program Agreement; Exhibit 1, Vendor’s Response to RFO DIR-TSO-
TMP-419, including all addenda; and Exhibit 2, RFO DIR-TSO-TMP-419, including all
addenda; are incorporated by reference and constitute the entire agreement between
DIR and Vendor governing lease transactions. In the event of a conflict between the
documents listed in this paragraph related to purchases, the controlling document shall
be this Contract, then Appendix A, then Appendix B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D,
then Appendix E, then Appendix F, Appendix G, Appendix H, then Exhibit 1, and finally
Exhibit 2. In the event of a conflict between the documents listed in this paragraph related
to lease transactions, the controlling document shall be this Contract, then Appendix F or
Appendix G, depending on the type of lease transaction, then Appendix A, then Appendix
B, then Appendix C, then Appendix D, then Appendix H, then Exhibit 1, and finally Exhibit
2. In the event and to the extent any provisions contained in multiple documents address
the same or substantially the same subject matter but do not actually conflict, the more
recent provisions shall be deemed to have superseded earlier provisions.

2. Term of Contract

The initial term of this Contract shall be two (2) years commencing on the last date of
approval by DIR and Vendor, with one (1) optional two-year renewal and one (1) optional
one-year renewal. Prior to expiration of each term, the contract will renew automatically
under the same terms and conditions unless either party provides notice to the other
party 60 days in advance of the renewal date stating that the party wishes to discuss
modification of terms or not renew. Additionally, the parties by mutual agreement may
extend the term for up to ninety (90) additional calendar days.

3. Product and Service Offerings

A. Products

Products available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related
Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management
Products, Software and Services as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may
incorporate changes to their product offering; however, any changes must be within
the scope of products awarded based on the posting described in Section 1.B above.
Vendor may not add a manufacturer’s product line which was not included in the
Vendor’s response to the solicitation described in Section 1.B above.

B. Services
Services available under this Contract are limited to Managed Print Services, Printers,
Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile Equipment and Related
Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise Content Management
Products, Software and Services as specified in Appendix C, Pricing Index. Vendor may

Department of Information Resources Page 2 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

Vendor Contract No.

incorporate changes to their service offering; however, any changes must be within
the scope of services awarded based on the posting described in Section 1.B above.

4, Pricing

Pricing to the DIR Customer shall be as set forth in Appendix A, Section 8, Pricing, Purchase
Orders, Invoices and Payment, and as set forth in Appendix C, Pricing Index, and shall
include the DIR Administrative Fee.

5. DIR Administrative Fee
A) The administrative fee to be paid by the Vendor to DIR based on the dollar value of all
sales to Customers pursuant to this Contract is three quarters of one percent .75%.
Payment will be calculated for all sales, net of returns and credits. For example, the
administrative fee for sales totaling $100,000 shall be $750.00.

B) All prices quoted to Customers shall include the administrative fee. DIR reserves the
right to change this fee upwards or downwards during the term of this Contract, upon
written notice to Vendor without further requirement for a formal contract amendment.
Any change in the administrative fee shall be incorporated in the price to the Customer.

6. Notification
All notices under this Contract shall be sent to a party at the respective address indicated
below.

If sent to the State:

Kelly Parker, CTPM, CTCM

Director, Cooperative Contracts
Department of Information Resources
300 W. 15 St., Suite 1300

Austin, Texas 78701

Phone: (512) 475-1647

Facsimile: (512) 475-4759

Email: kelly.parker@dir.texas.gov

If sent to the Vendor:
Vendor Representative
Company Name
Address

City, State Zip

Phone: ( ) -

Facsimile: ( ) -

Email:

Department of Information Resources Page 3 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

Vendor Contract No.

7. Software License, Service and Leasing Agreements

A. Software License Agreement

1) Customers acquiring software licenses under the Contract shall hold, use and
operate such software subject to compliance with the Software License Agreement
set forth in Appendix D of this Contract. No changes to the Software License
Agreement terms and conditions may be made unless previously agreed to between
Vendor and DIR. Customers may not add, delete or alter any of the language in
Appendix D; provided however, that a Customer and Vendor may agree to additional
terms and conditions that do not diminish a term or condition in the Software License
Agreement, or in any manner lessen the rights or protections of Customer or the
responsibilities or liabilities of Vendor. rder Fulfiller shall make the Software License
Agreement terms and conditions available to all Customers at all times.

2) Compliance with the Software License Agreement is the responsibility of the
Customer. DIR shall not be responsible for any Customer’s compliance with the
Software License Agreement. If DIR purchases software licenses for its own use under
this Contract, it shall be responsible for its compliance with the Software License
Agreement terms and conditions.

B. Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement

Regardless of any other provision or other license terms which may be issued by
Vendor after the effective date of this Contract, and irrespective of whether any such
provisions have been proposed prior to or after the issuance of a Purchase Order for
products licensed under this Contract, or the fact that such other agreement may be
affixed to or accompany software upon delivery (shrink-wrap), the terms and
conditions set forth in this Contract shall supersede and govern the license terms
between Customers and Vendor. It is the Customer’s responsibility to read the
Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement and determine if the Customer accepts the
license terms as amended by this Contract. If the Customer does not agree with the
license terms, Customer shall be responsible for negotiating with the reseller to
obtain additional changes in the Shrink/Click-wrap License Agreement language
from the software publisher.

C. Service Agreement

Services provided under this Contract shall be in accordance with the Service Level
Support Agreement as set forth in Appendix E of this Contract. No changes to the
Service Agreement terms and conditions may be made unless previously agreed to by
Vendor and DIR.

D. Conflicting or Additional Terms
In the event that conflicting or additional terms in Vendor Software License
Agreements, Shrink/Click Wrap License Agreements, Service Agreements or linked or
supplemental documents amend or diminish the rights of DIR Customers or the State,

Department of Information Resources Page 4 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

8.

Vendor Contract No.

such conflicting or additional terms shall not take precedence over the terms of this
Contract.

In the event of a conflict, any linked documents may not take precedence over the
printed or referenced documents comprising this contract; provided further that any
update to such linked documents shall only apply to purchases or leases of the
associated Vendor product or service offering after the effective date of the update;
and, provided further, that, if Vendor has responded to a solicitation or request for
pricing, no update of such linked documents on or after the initial date of Vendor’s
initial response shall apply to that purchase unless Vendor directly informs Customer
of the update before the purchase is consummated.

In the event that different or additional terms or conditions would otherwise result
from accessing a linked document, agreement to said linked document shall not be
effective until reviewed and approved in writing by Customer’s authorized signatory.

Vendor shall not without prior written agreement from Customer’s authorized
signatory, require any document that: 1) diminishes the rights, benefits, or
protections of the Customer, or that alters the definitions, measurements, or method
for determining any authorized rights, benefits, or protections of the Customer; or
2) imposes additional costs, burdens, or obligations upon Customer, or that alters
the definitions, measurements, or method for determining any authorized costs,
burdens, or obligations upon Customer.

If Vendor attempts to do any of the foregoing, the prohibited documents will be void
and inapplicable to the contract between DIR and Vendor or Vendor and Customer,
and Vendor will nonetheless be obligated to perform the contract without regard to
the prohibited documents, unless Customer elects instead to terminate the contract,
which in such case may be identified as a termination for cause against Vendor.

The foregoing requirements apply to all contracts, including, but not limited to,
contracts between Customer and a reseller who attempts to pass through documents
and obligations from its Manufacturer or Publisher.

Authorized Exceptions to Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions for Product and
Related Services Contracts.

No exceptions have been agreed to by DIR and Vendor.

Department of Information Resources Page 5 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-415 Bid Package 3 DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-XXXX

Vendor Contract No.

This Contract is executed to be effective as of the date of last signature.
VENDOR NAME

Authorized By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

The State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information Resources

Authorized By:

Name: Hershel Becker

Title:  Chief Procurement Officer

Date:

Office of
General Counsel:

Department of Information Resources Page 6 of 6 (DIR rev 03/2018)



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 4
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipments and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services
Appendix A Standard Terms and Conditions For Product and Related Services Contracts

Table of Contents

L. CONITACE SCOPE ...uveiniiiiiieinitieteeett ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sat e et esae e e neesaneeneenaee 1
2. NO QUANTLY GUATANTEES.....cccueieiieriieetieeiieeieeeeeeieesiteeteesteeebeesstesbeesseessseeseessseeseessseenseennns 1
3. DO INILIONS. ¢ttt ettt et sttt et b b et 1
4. GENETAL PTOVISIONS .. .vviiiiiieeiiieciieeeieeeeitee ettt e ettt eete e et e e e teeessaeeesateeessseeessaeensseesnsseesnseeennnes 2
A, ENUIE AGIEEIMENT .....viiiiiiiieiieetieeiieeieeete et e site et eeseteebeesateenseessaeeseessseenseessseensaesnsaans 2
B.  Modification of Contract Terms and/or Amendments............ccoceeveeenienienneeneeeneenn 2
C. Invalid Term of CONAItION ......cecvieriieeiieriie ittt ettt e s e eseeseaeensee e 2
D, ASSIZNIMENL ...uiiiiiiiieeiiieciie et eeiee et e et e et e e e s tee e taeeessteeesbeeensaeeensaeeesseeeensaeeenseeeenaeens 3
B SUIVIVAL ottt st 3
F. ChoiCe Of LaW ..co.oiiiiiiiiee ettt st 3
G. Limitation Of AUtROTIEY ......ooiuiiiiiiiieeiiee ettt s 3
H.  Proof of Financial Stability.........ccccccoieiiiiioiiiccie et 3
5. Intellectual Property Matters........ccueiiiiiiiiniieiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et 3
AL DIINIEIONS. ..ecutiiiiiiie ettt e et e et e e et e e e teeeebeeessbaeessaeeesssaeesbeeentaeeenreeeenaeens 3
B OWNETSIIP. oottt et e et e e e e et e e sare e ennee s 4
C.  FUIhEr ACLIONS. ..uiiiiiiiieiiiectie ettt e e tae e e sab e e e taeeestaeesssaeesnseeessseeesnneeas 5
D.  Waiver of Moral RIghtS. ......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicececee e 5
E.  Confldentiality. ........cooeeiiiiiiiiiiiieneeeeete ettt 5
F.  InJunctive REIIET.....coouiiiiiiiieee e e et 6
G. Return of Materials Pertaining to Work Product. ...........cccccooeiiiniininiininiiicee, 6
H.  Vendor License t0 USE. .......coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeite ettt 6
I.  Third-Party Underlying and Derivative WOrKS. .........ccccerviiriiniiniinieninicniecicnecneeeen 6
J. Agreement With SUDCONTIACES. .....ccueeviiiiiiiiiieiiecieceece et 6
K. LiCENSE t0 CUSTOIMCT. ...eceuviiiieiieeeiiieeeiiieeeiieeesiteeesteeeeteeesteeesssaeesssaeessseeesseessseessseessseens 6
L. Vendor Development RIights.........c.ccoouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicce e 7
6.  Product Terms and CONAITIONS .......ceouieruiiiiiieniiiiieeieerie ettt et 7

A.  Electronic and Information Resources Accessibility Standards, As Required
by 1 TAC Chapters 206 and 213 (Applicable to State Agency and

Institution of Higher Education Purchases Only) ..........cococeeiiniiiiniiniiiniiniicnees 7

B.  Purchase of Commodity Items (Applicable to State Agency Purchases
OMNLY ) ettt b ettt ettt e 7
7. Contract Fulfillment and Promotion ............coceviiriiiiniiniiiieneeeteceese et 8

09/29/2017 i



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 4

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipments and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise

Content Management Products, Software and Services

Appendix A Standard Terms and Conditions For Product and Related Services Contracts

A.  Service, Sales and Support of the COntract...........ceceveeveriirienenienieereeeeeeeeeee 8
B.  Use of Order FUIfIIIers .......c.ooiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 8
1) Designation of Order FUlfillers.........cccooiiiiiiiniiniiniiinceececceeeeeee 8

2) Changes in Order Fulfiller List.........ccooiiiriiieiieniieiieieeeee et 8

3) Order Fulfiller Pricing to CUStOMET .........cotiriieiiriiinienierierieeieneee e 8

C. Product Warranty and Return PoliCIes...........ccveviiiiiiiniieiieciiciiecee e 9
D.  Customer Site Preparation ...........cccceceriereriinieninieneeeeieseee et 9
E. Internet Access to Contract and Pricing Information ............cccocceevevievieniienienieenenne, 9
1) Vendor WEDPAZE .....cc.eeviriiiriiiiiiieieeeee ettt 9

2) Accurate and Timely Contract Information............cccoeeveevieeniieiiieniieeieerie e, 9

3) Webpage Compliance Checks ..........coceeviriiriiiiiiiiniinieiiencectcse e 10

4) Webpage Chan@ES.........cccuieeuiieiiieiieeiieeiieeieeeeeeteesteesteesaeebeessseeseessseeseesssesnseas 10

5) Use of Access Data Prohibited ...........ccceviieiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 10

6) Responsibility fOr CONLENL .........ccveieiiiiieiiieiiecieeeeeee e e ens 10

Fo DIR LOZO ettt ettt et et ettt e et e st e e e e 10
G. Vendor and Order Fulfiller LOZO .......c.cooviiiiieiieiieeiieeeeeeee et 10
H. Trade Show PartiCipation............coceeviriiriininiinieeieeiesteteeteeeee ettt 10
[ Orientation MEELING .......c.uiiiiiiieiieeiiie ettt ettt et e et eeaaeesaae e et eesnaaeesaseeenens 11
J. Performance Review MEEtINGS ..........cocueruieiiriiniiiiiiniiiteicet ettt 11
K. DIR COSt AVOIAANCE ....coueiriiiiieieiiieieeie sttt sttt st s sanen 11
8.  Pricing, Purchase Orders, Invoices, and Payments.............ccceeveeviienieeciienienieenieeeeeiee e 11
A. Manufacturer’s Suggested Retail Price (MSRP) or List Price.......ccccceevveeveieerneenee. 11
B, Customer DISCOUNL.......cccuoiiiiiiiiiiiieieeiereee ettt 11
C. CUSLOMET PrICE .. .eiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e st be e ens 11
D. Shipping and Handling FEes ...........coceiviiiiiiiiiiiiieniiieeeeeeeetee e 12
| DI ) 2 53 11 o PSRRI 12
F.  Travel Expense Reimbursement ............ccceeeueevieiiieniieniieiiecieeieecee e 12
G, Changes t0 PriCES...cccuuiiiiiieciiie ettt ettt e e e e e e e et e e seraeeenbaeenens 12
H.  PUrchase OTdErs ........c..ooouiiiiiiiiiiiieieetereeeee ettt 12
Lo IMIVORCES -ttt ettt et ettt e b e ettt e et e e bt e et e beenateen 13
Jo PAYMIGNLS ..ot et ettt bee e 13
9. Contract AdMINISTIALION. ...cc.eiiiuiiiiiiiiiitie ettt ettt ettt st ebeesaeesbeesaneens 13
AL, CONraCt MANAZETS ....eiiiiiiieeeeiiiieeeeitee e et ee e e et ee e ettt eeesaareeessnaaeeeesnsaeeeesnsaeeeennseees 13
1) State Contract Mana@eT...........c.eeeviieiiiieiiiieeiiee ettt esieeesteeesreeesreesireesbeeesneeens 13

2) Vendor Contract ManageT...........eeevuieeriieeniieesieeesieeesieeeesireeessreeseneesseeesseeessneens 13

B. Reporting and Administrative FEEs ........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiienieeeeeceee e 14
1) Reporting ReSpONSIDILILY ......cccveeruiiiiiieiiieiieiiece et 14

2) Detailed Monthly REPOTt .......cccuiiiiiiiiiiieiiee et 14

3) Historically Underutilized Businesses Subcontract Reports...........cccceeeveerviennnnnne 14

4) DIR AdmiInistrative FEE.....c..cevviiiiiiiiiiie ettt 14

5) Accurate and Timely Submission of REpOrts ..........ccecvevieeiiiiiieniiieiecieeeeene 15

09/29/2017

il



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 4

Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipments and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise

Content Management Products, Software and Services

Appendix A Standard Terms and Conditions For Product and Related Services Contracts

C.  Records and AUdit........cccueiieiiiiiiiecciie et et e e e s 15
D. Contract Administration NOtIfICatioNn .........c.eecuerieriiriiiiinieiereeee e 16
10.  Vendor ReSPONSIDIIITIES .....cc.uieiiiiiiiiieiiieie ettt sttt 16
A, INdemnifiCatioN .........coiiiiiiiiiie e e 16
1) INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.......cociiiiiiiiiieieneeeeeeeeeee e 16

2) ACTS OR OMISSIONS ...ttt e 16

3) INFRINGEMENTS ...ttt sttt sttt 17

4) PROPERTY DAMAGE ...ttt 17

B. Taxes/Worker’s Compensation/UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE ..........cccccoene. 18
C.  Vendor CertifiCatioNS. ........coiuiiiiiiiiieiii ettt ettt e s ens 18
D.  Ability to Conduct Business in TeXaS........cccueerieriieniieniieniieeieeriee e esiee e eieeseeeeeees 20
E.  Equal Opportunity COMPHANCE .......c.eeeviuiieiiiieeiieeiiee et eiee e eree e evee e 20
F.  USE Of SUDCONIIACIOTS ....uveiiiiieiieiiieieeiesitee ettt sttt st 20
G.  Responsibility fOr ACLIONS ......ccccuiieeiiiieiiiieeiieeeiee ettt e eaeeeaeeeeree e sreeesreeeeens 21
H.  Confidentiality ........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeieee ettt ettt eeees 21
I.  Security of Premises, Equipment, Data and Personnel..............ccccocvveveiiinciiennenenee. 21
J. Background and/or Criminal History Investigation............cccceeeueerieeiiienieenieeiieeieane 21
K. Limitation of Liability.......cccciiiiiiiieiiiecieece ettt 21
L. OVEICHAIZES ...eiiuvieiieeiieeiie ettt ettt ettt et e et e e bt e ssbeesaeenbeenseessseenseesnseens 22
M. Prohibited CONAUCT ........ccuiiiiiiiiiie et 22
N. Required INSUrance COVETAZE ........cccueeuierireiiieniieeiieeiieeieesieeesreesteeaeessaeenseesaaeenseenens 22
(O O BN o) B 72 (S o V) o) 1 USSR 23
P IMMIGIAtION..cc.tiiitiiiiie ettt ettt et et e et estte e bt e ssbeeaseeeaaeenbeeenaeenneas 23
Q.  PUDBIIC DISCIOSUIE ...ttt e et e e e e aaeea s 24
R.  Product and/or Services SUbSItULIONS .......cc.eeouirierieirieriiniieieseeieeeseeie e 24
S.  Secure Erasure of Hard Disk Products and/or Services.........ccccceeueeieeniiineenieeneene 24
T.  Deceptive Trade Practices; Unfair Business Practices ...........ccccoovevvvenieeviniicncencnnne 24
U. Drug Free Workplace POLICY ....cc.ueieiuiiiiiiiieiieeeeee ettt 24
V.  Accessibility of Public Information.............ccceovueeiiienieniiiniecieceece e 25
W. Vendor Reporting ReqUIremMents ...........cceeeviieeiiieeiiiecieeciee et 25
11. Contract ENfOrCEMENT .......ccccviiiiiiiieiiiiceiie ettt e e e et eeetaeeeaaeeenaeeenseeenes 25
A. Enforcement of Contract and Dispute Resolution ...........ccceeeiievieniiinieniiieniecieee. 25
B.  TeIMINAtION .c...eiiitiiiiiiiieie ettt et ettt e sttt e st e e bt e sateebeesaneens 25
1) Termination for NON-ApPPropriation .........c.ccceeeeveereeeiieenieeieeneesieesieesseesseesaeens 25

2) ADSOIULE RIGNt ....ooiiiiiiiieie e 26

3) Termination for CONVENIENCE .......cceuvieiiieiiieiieeiiesiie ettt ee st eieesteeiee e ebeeseaeens 26

4) Termination fOr CAUSE ......ccveeriiieeriiieeriieerieeerieeeseee et eeeireeetreeseeeesnseeesnseeennneees 26

5) Immediate Termination Or SUSPENSION ....c...evueeuerierieniirienieeieete st 27

6) Customer Rights Under Termination............ccceecveereeeiienieniieenieeeieeieesneeeeeeveens 27

7) Vendor or Order Fulfiller Rights Under Termination...........ccccceceveenereeneennennne. 27

C.  FOTCE MAJCUIC ......eeeiieiieeiie ettt ettt ettt e esteeebe e taeeaseeseeesseessaeesseesseessseesaennseans 27

09/29/2017

il



RFO: DIR-TSO-TMP-419 Bid Package 4
Managed Print Services, Printers, Copiers, 3D Printers, Scanning, Plotting and Facsimile
Equipments and Related Services; Document Imaging Services/Solutions; Enterprise
Content Management Products, Software and Services
Appendix A Standard Terms and Conditions For Product and Related Services Contracts

12, NOUTICATION ..uieieiiiiectie ettt ee ettt ettt e et e et e e et eeetaeesstaaeesseeessseeesseeeasseeassseesssseesssseesnseeens 28
AL INOLICES ettt ettt et h ettt e st bt et she et eaten 28
B. Handling of Written Complaints...........ccceeruiieriiieeiiieeiee et 28
I3, CAPLIONS ettt ettt b ettt b et e et s bttt e ae e h et ebt e bbbt e b eates 28

09/29/2017 v



The following terms and conditions shall govern the conduct of DIR and Vendor during the term of the
Contract.

1.

3.

09/29/2017

Contract Scope

Note: NO EXCEPTIONS OR REVISIONS WILL BE CONSIDERED

The Vendor shall provide the products and related services specified in Section 3 of the Contract
for purchase by Customers. In addition, DIR and Vendor may agree to provisions that allow
Vendor and/or Order Fulfiller to lease the products offered under the Contract. Terms used in this
document shall have the meanings set forth below in Section 3.

No Quantity Guarantees

Note: NO EXCEPTIONS OR REVISIONS WILL BE CONSIDERED

The Contract is not exclusive to the Vendor. Customers may obtain products and related services
from other sources during the term of the Contract. DIR makes no express or implied warranties
whatsoever that any particular quantity or dollar amount of products and related services will be
procured through the Contract.

Definitions

A.

Customer - any Texas state agency, unit of local government, institution of higher education
as defined in Section 2054.003, Texas Government Code, the Electric Reliability Council of
Texas, the Lower Colorado River Authority, a private school, as defined by Section 5.001,
Education Code, a private or independent institution of higher education, as defined by
Section 61.003, Education Code, a volunteer fire department, as defined by Section 152.001,
Tax Code, and those state agencies purchasing from a DIR contract through an Interagency
Agreement, as authorized by Chapter 771, Texas Government Code, any local government
as authorized through the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code,
and the state agencies and political subdivisions of other states as authorized by Section
2054.0565, Texas Government Code and, except for telecommunications services under
Chapter 2170, Texas Government Code, assistance organizations as defined in Section
2175.001, Texas Government Code to mean:

1) A non-profit organization that provides educational, health or human services or
assistance to homeless individuals;

2) A nonprofit food bank that solicits, warehouses, and redistributes edible but
unmarketable food to an agency that feeds needy families and individuals;

3) Texas Partners of the Americas, a registered agency with the Advisory
Committee on Voluntary Foreign Aid, with the approval of the Partners of the
Alliance Office of the Agency for International Development;

4) A group, including a faith-based group, that enters into a financial or non-
financial agreement with a health or human services agency to provide services
to that agency’s clients;

5) A local workforce development board created under Section 2308.253;

6) A nonprofit organization approved by the Supreme Court of Texas that provides
free legal services for low-income households in civil matters;

7) The Texas Boll Weevil Eradication Foundation, Inc., or an entity designated by
the commissioner of agriculture as the foundation’s successor entity under
Section 74.1011, Texas Agriculture Code;

8) A nonprofit computer bank that solicits, stores, refurbishes and redistributes used
computer equipment to public school students and their families; and

9) A nonprofit organization that provides affordable housing.

B. Compliance Check — an audit of Vendor’s compliance with the Contract may be performed

by, but not limited to, a third party auditor, DIR Internal Audit department, or DIR contract

Page 1 of 28



management staff or their designees.

C. Contract — the document executed between DIR and Vendor into which this Appendix A is

incorporated.

CPA — refers to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts.

Day - shall mean business days, Monday through Friday, except for State and Federal holidays,

unless otherwise specified as calendar days. Ifthe Contract calls for performance on a day that

is not a business day, then performance is intended to occur on the next business day.

F. Order Fulfiller — the party, either Vendor or a party that may be designated by Vendor, who
is fulfilling a Purchase Order pursuant to the Contract.

G. Purchase Order - the Customer’s fiscal form or format, which is used when making a purchase
(e.g., formal written Purchase Order, Procurement Card, Electronic Purchase Order, or other
authorized instrument).

H. State — refers to the State of Texas.

= e

4. General Provisions

A. Entire Agreement

The Contract, Appendices, and Exhibits constitute the entire agreement between DIR and the
Vendor. No statement, promise, condition, understanding, inducement or representation, oral or
written, expressed or implied, which is not contained in the Contract, Appendices, or its Exhibits
shall be binding or valid.

B. Modification of Contract Terms and/or Amendments

1) The terms and conditions of the Contract shall govern all transactions by Customers under
the Contract. The Contract may only be modified or amended upon mutual written agreement
of DIR and Vendor.

2) Customers shall not have the authority to modify the terms of the Contract; however,
additional Customer terms and conditions that do not conflict with the Contract and are
acceptable to Order Fulfiller may be added in a Purchase Order and given effect. No additional
term or condition added in a Purchase Order issued by a Customer can conflict with or diminish
a term or condition of the Contract. Pre-printed terms and conditions on any Purchase Order
issued by Customer hereunder will have no force and effect. In the event of a conflict between
a Customer’s Purchase Order and the Contract, the Contract term shall control.

3) Customers and Vendor will negotiate and enter into written agreements regarding statements
of work, service level agreements, remedies, acceptance criteria, information confidentiality and
security requirements, and other terms specific to their Purchase Orders under the Contract with
Vendors.

C. Invalid Term or Condition

1) To the extent any term or condition in the Contract conflicts with the applicable State and/or
United States law or regulation, such Contract term or condition is void and unenforceable. By
executing a contract which contains the conflicting term or condition, DIR makes no
representations or warranties regarding the enforceability of such term or condition and DIR
does not waive the applicable State and/or United States law or regulation which conflicts with
the Contract term or condition.

2) If one or more terms or conditions in the Contract, or the application of any term or condition
to any party or circumstance, is held invalid, unenforceable, or illegal in any respect by a final
judgment or order of the State Office of Administrative Hearings or a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remainder of the Contract and the application of the term or condition to other

09/29/2017 Page 2 of 28



parties or circumstances shall remain valid and in full force and effect.

D. Assignment

DIR or Vendor may assign the Contract without prior written approval to: 1) a successor in interest
(for DIR, another state agency as designated by the Texas Legislature), or ii) a subsidiary, parent
company or affiliate, or iii) as necessary to satisfy a regulatory requirement imposed upon a party
by a governing body with the appropriate authority. Assignment of the Contract under the above
terms shall require written notification by the assigning party and, for Vendor, a mutually agreed
written Contract amendment. Any other assignment by a party shall require the written consent of
the other party and a mutually agreed written Contract amendment.

E. Survival

All applicable software license agreements, warranties or service agreements that were entered into
between Vendor and a Customer under the terms and conditions of the Contract shall survive the
expiration or termination of the Contract All Purchase Orders issued and accepted by Vendor or
Order Fulfiller shall survive expiration or termination of the Contract for the term of the Purchase
Order, unless the Customer terminates the Purchase Order sooner. However, regardless of the term
of the Purchase Order, no Purchase Order shall survive the expiration or termination of the Contract
for more than five years, unless Customer makes an express finding and justification for the longer
term. The finding and justification must either be included in the Purchase Order, or referenced in
it and maintained in Customer’s procurement record. Rights and obligations under this Contract
which by their nature should survive, including, but not limited to the DIR Administrative Fee; and
any and all payment obligations invoiced prior to the termination or expiration hereof; obligations
of confidentiality; and, indemnification, will remain in effect after termination or expiration hereof.

F. Choice of Law

The laws of the State shall govern the construction and interpretation of the Contract. Exclusive
venue for all actions will be in state court, Travis County, Texas. Nothing in the Contract or its
Appendices shall be construed to waive the State’s sovereign immunity.

G. Limitation of Authority

Vendor shall have no authority to act for or on behalf of the Texas Department of Information
Resources or the State except as expressly provided for in this Contract; no other authority, power
or use is granted or implied. Vendor may not incur any debts, obligations, expenses, or liabilities of
any kind on behalf of the State or DIR.

H. Proof of Financial Stability

Either DIR or Customer may require Vendor to provide proof of financial stability prior to or at
any time during the contract term.

Intellectual Property Matters

A. Definitions

1) Work Product” means any and all deliverables produced by Vendor for Customer under a
Statement of Work issued pursuant to this Contract, including any and all tangible or intangible
items or things that have been or will be prepared, created, developed, invented or conceived
at any time following the effective date of the Contract, including but not limited to any (i)
works of authorship (such as manuals, instructions, printed material, graphics, artwork, images,
illustrations, photographs, computer programs, computer software, scripts, object code, source
code or other programming code, HTML code, flow charts, notes, outlines, lists, compilations,

09/29/2017 Page 3 of 28



manuscripts, writings, pictorial materials, schematics, formulae, processes, algorithms, data,
information, multimedia files, text web pages or web sites, other written or machine readable
expression of such works fixed in any tangible media, and all other copyrightable works), (ii)
trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade names, logos, or other indicia of source or origin,
(ii1) ideas, designs, concepts, personality rights, methods, processes, techniques, apparatuses,
inventions, formulas, discoveries, or improvements, including any patents, trade secrets and
know-how, (iv) domain names, (v) any copies, and similar or derivative works to any of the
foregoing, (vi) all documentation and materials related to any of the foregoing, (vii) all other
goods, services or deliverables to be provided to Customer under the Contract or a Statement
of Work, and (viii) all Intellectual Property Rights in any of the foregoing, and which are or
were created, prepared, developed, invented or conceived for the use or benefit of Customer in
connection with this Contract or a Statement of Work, or with funds appropriated by or for
Customer or Customer’s benefit: (a) by any Vendor personnel or Customer personnel, or
(b) any Customer personnel who then became personnel to Vendor or any of its affiliates or
subcontractors, where, although creation or reduction-to-practice is completed while the person
is affiliated with Vendor or its personnel, any portion of same was created, invented or
conceived by such person while affiliated with Customer.

2) “Intellectual Property Rights” means the worldwide legal rights or interests evidenced by or
embodied in: (i) any idea, design, concept, personality right, method, process, technique,
apparatus, invention, discovery, or improvement, including any patents, trade secrets, and
know-how; (i1) any work of authorship, including any copyrights, moral rights or neighboring
rights; (iii) any trademark, service mark, trade dress, trade name, or other indicia of source or
origin; (iv) domain name registrations; and (v) any other proprietary or similar rights. The
Intellectual Property Rights of a party include all worldwide legal rights or interests that the
party may have acquired by assignment or license with the right to grant sublicenses.

3) “Statement of Work” means a document signed by Customer and Vendor describing a
specific set of activities and/or deliverables, which may include Work Product and Intellectual
Property Rights, that Vendor is to provide Customer, issued pursuant to the Contract.

4) “Third Party IP” means the Intellectual Property Rights of any third party that is not a party
to this Contract, and that is not directly or indirectly providing any goods or services to
Customer under this Contract.

5) “Vendor IP” shall mean all tangible or intangible items or things, including the Intellectual
Property Rights therein, created or developed by Vendor (a) prior to providing any Services or
Work Product to Customer and prior to receiving any documents, materials, information or
funding from or on behalf of Customer relating to the Services or Work Product, or (b) after
the Effective Date of the Contract if such tangible or intangible items or things were
independently developed by Vendor outside Vendor’s provision of Services or Work Product
for Customer hereunder and were not created, prepared, developed, invented or conceived by
any Customer personnel who then became personnel to Vendor or any of its affiliates or
subcontractors, where, although creation or reduction-to-practice is completed while the person
is affiliated with Vendor or its personnel, any portion of same was created, invented or
conceived by such person while affiliated with Customer.

B. Ownership.

As between Vendor and Customer, the Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights therein are
and shall be owned exclusively by Customer, and not Vendor. Vendor specifically agrees that the
Work Product shall be considered “works made for hire” and that the Work Product shall, upon

09/29/2017 Page 4 of 28



creation, be owned exclusively by Customer. To the extent that the Work Product, under applicable
law, may not be considered works made for hire, Vendor hereby agrees that the Contract effectively
transfers, grants, conveys, assigns, and relinquishes exclusively to Customer all right, title and
interest in and to all ownership rights in the Work Product, and all Intellectual Property Rights in
the Work Product, without the necessity of any further consideration, and Customer shall be entitled
to obtain and hold in its own name all Intellectual Property Rights in and to the Work Product.
Vendor acknowledges that Vendor and Customer do not intend Vendor to be a joint author of the
Work Product within the meaning of the Copyright Act of 1976. Customer shall have access, during
normal business hours (Monday through Friday, 8AM to SPM) and upon reasonable prior notice to
Vendor, to all Vendor materials, premises and computer files containing the Work Product. Vendor
and Customer, as appropriate, will cooperate with one another and execute such other documents as
may be reasonably appropriate to achieve the objectives herein. No license or other right is granted
hereunder to any Third Party IP, except as may be incorporated in the Work Product by Vendor.

C. Further Actions.

Vendor, upon request and without further consideration, shall perform any acts that may be deemed
reasonably necessary or desirable by Customer to evidence more fully the transfer of ownership
and/or registration of all Intellectual Property Rights in all Work Product to Customer to the fullest
extent possible, including but not limited to the execution, acknowledgement and delivery of such
further documents in a form determined by Customer. In the event Customer shall be unable to
obtain Vendor’s signature due to the dissolution of Vendor or Vendor’s unreasonable failure to
respond to Customer’s repeated requests for such signature on any document reasonably necessary
for any purpose set forth in the foregoing sentence, Vendor hereby irrevocably designates and
appoints Customer and its duly authorized officers and agents as Vendor’s agent and Vendor’s
attorney-in-fact to act for and in Vendor’s behalf and stead to execute and file any such document
and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further any such purpose with the same force and effect
as if executed and delivered by Vendor, provided however that no such grant of right to Customer
is applicable if Vendor fails to execute any document due to a good faith dispute by Vendor with
respect to such document. It is understood that such power is coupled with an interest and is therefore
irrevocable. Customer shall have the full and sole power to prosecute such applications and to take
all other action concerning the Work Product, and Vendor shall cooperate, at Customer’s sole
expense, in the preparation and prosecution of all such applications and in any legal actions and
proceedings concerning the Work Product.

D. Waiver of Moral Rights.

Vendor hereby irrevocably and forever waives, and agrees never to assert, any Moral Rights in or
to the Work Product which Vendor may now have or which may accrue to Vendor’s benefit under
U.S. or foreign copyright or other laws and any and all other residual rights and benefits which arise
under any other applicable law now in force or hereafter enacted. Vendor acknowledges the receipt
of equitable compensation for its assignment and waiver of such Moral Rights. The term “Moral
Rights” shall mean any and all rights of paternity or integrity of the Work Product and the right to
object to any modification, translation or use of the Work Product, and any similar rights existing
under the judicial or statutory law of any country in the world or under any treaty, regardless of
whether or not such right is denominated or referred to as a moral right.

E. Confidentiality.

All documents, information and materials forwarded to Vendor by Customer for use in and
preparation of the Work Product shall be deemed the confidential information of Customer, and
subject to the license granted by Customer to Vendor under sub-paragraph H. hereunder. Vendor
shall not use, disclose, or permit any person to use or obtain the Work Product, or any portion
thereof, in any manner without the prior written approval of Customer.

09/29/2017 Page 5 of 28



F. Injunctive Relief.

The Contract is intended to protect Customer’s proprietary rights pertaining to the Work Product,
and the Intellectual Property Rights therein, and any misuse of such rights would cause substantial
and irreparable harm to Customer’s business. Therefore, Vendor acknowledges and stipulates that a
court of competent jurisdiction may immediately enjoin any material breach of the intellectual
property, use, and confidentiality provisions of this Contract, upon a request by Customer, without
requiring proof of irreparable injury as same should be presumed.

G. Return of Materials Pertaining to Work Product.

Upon the request of Customer, but in any event upon termination or expiration of this Contract or a
Statement of Work, Vendor shall surrender to Customer all documents and things pertaining to the
Work Product, including but not limited to drafts, memoranda, notes, records, drawings, manuals,
computer software, reports, data, and all other documents or materials (and copies of same)
generated or developed by Vendor or furnished by Customer to Vendor, including all materials
embodying the Work Product, any Customer confidential information, or Intellectual Property
Rights in such Work Product, regardless of whether complete or incomplete. This section is
intended to apply to all Work Product as well as to all documents and things furnished to Vendor by
Customer or by anyone else that pertain to the Work Product.

H. Vendor License to Use.

Customer hereby grants to Vendor a non-transferable, non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up
license to use any Work Product solely as necessary to provide the Services to Customer. Except as
provided in this Section, neither Vendor nor any Subcontractor shall have the right to use the Work
Product in connection with the provision of services to its other customers without the prior written
consent of Customer, which consent may be withheld in Customer’s sole discretion.

I. Third-Party Underlying and Derivative Works.

To the extent that any Vendor IP or Third Party IP are embodied or reflected in the Work Product,
or are necessary to provide the Services, Vendor hereby grants to the Customer, or shall obtain from
the applicable third party for Customer’s benefit, the irrevocable, perpetual, non-exclusive,
worldwide, royalty-free right and license, for Customer’s internal business purposes only, to (i) use,
execute, reproduce, display, perform, distribute copies of, and prepare derivative works based upon
such Vendor IP or Third Party IP and any derivative works thereof embodied in or delivered to
Customer in conjunction with the Work Product, and (ii) authorize others to do any or all of the
foregoing. Vendor agrees to notify Customer on delivery of the Work Product or Services if such
materials include any Third Party IP. On request, Vendor shall provide Customer with
documentation indicating a third party’s written approval for Vendor to use any Third Party IP that
may be embodied or reflected in the Work Product.

J. Agreement with Subcontracts.

Vendor agrees that it shall have written agreement(s) that are consistent with the provisions hereof
related to Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights with any employees, agents, consultants,
contractors or subcontractors providing Services or Work Product pursuant to the Contract, prior to
their providing such Services or Work Product, and that it shall maintain such written agreements at
all times during performance of this Contra